
 

 

CARE, HEALTH AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
AGENDA 

 
 
Tuesday, 6 December 2022 at 1.30 pm in the Bridges Room - Civic Centre 
 
From the Chief Executive, Sheena Ramsey 
Item 
 

Business 
  

1   Apologies for absence  
  

2   Minutes of last meeting (Pages 3 - 12) 
 
The Committee are asked to approve the minutes of the last meeting held on 25 
October 2022 (attached). 
  

3   Update on Primary Care Networks/Work to Attract and Retain a multi 
professional Workforce /Access to GP Appointments  
 
Lynne Paterson, Portfolio Lead Gateshead Place, NE& NC ICB, will provide the 
OSC with a presentation on this matter. 
  

4   Performance Management and Improvement Framework - Six Month Update 
(Pages 13 - 46) 
 
Report of Strategic Director, Resources and Digital (attached). 
  

5   Annual Report of Local Safeguarding Board and Business Plans and 
emerging priorities (Pages 47 - 94) 
 
Report of Dale Owens, Strategic Director, Integrated Adults and Social Care 
Services (attached). 
  

6   OSC Work Programme (Pages 95 - 98) 
 
Joint Report of the Chief Executive and Strategic Director, Corporate Services 
and Governance (attached). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact: Helen wade  email helenwade@gateshead.gov.uk, Tel: 0191 433 3993, Date: 
Monday, 28 November 2022 



 

GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

CARE, HEALTH AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
MEETING 

 
Tuesday, 25 October 2022 

 
 
PRESENT: Councillor W Dick (Chair) 
  
 Councillor(s): B Goldsworthy, M Goldsworthy, R Mullen, 

I Patterson, J Wallace, M Hall, J Gibson, P Diston, H Haran, 
J McCoid, D Robson, J Green, S Potts, D Weatherley and 
A Wintcher 

  
  
  
  
  
CHW12 MINUTES OF LAST MEETING  

 
 The minutes of the last meeting held on 14 June 2022 were approved as a correct 

record. 
  

CHW13 WORKFORCE AND DIGITAL INCLUSION PLACE BASED APPROACHES 
INCLUDING HEALTH AND CARE RECRUITMENT  
 

 Steph Downey, Service Director, Integrated Adults and Social Care, provided the 
OSC with an update on workforce and digital inclusion place - based approaches. 
  
Steph advised that the NE&NC ICS has a population of approximately 3 million and 
a workforce of around 270,000. Within the ICS there are four sub – regional 
integrated care partnerships (ICPs) and Gateshead is part of the north ICP. 
  
Steph explained that local authorities and partners within the ICS system have a 
number of shared priorities and carrying out work to develop an integrated workforce 
is one such priority. 
  
Steph advised the OSC that currently there are a number of challenges across the 
NHS and Social care in terms of shortages in the workforces and significant 
recruitment challenges not just in relation to social care front line workers in care 
homes but also in relation to recruitment of social workers and doctors and nurses.  
  
Steph explained that parts of the system have an ageing workforce who may leave 
the workforce in the not-too-distant future. This is set alongside increased levels of 
demand and need. 
  
Steph advised that a further challenge is that of in sector recruitment and that social 
care jobs are currently not viewed as attractive There has also been a large exodus 
of staff from the care sector during the pandemic which has created a knock on 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

effect. 
  
Steph advised that work had commenced pre-pandemic to try and address some of 
the workforce challenges but this had halted to focus on keeping people safe. This 
work had recommenced in the last three to four months and was looking at how a 
career in the health and social care sector. As part of this work there is a particular 
focus on developing career pathways. 
  
Steph advised that there is a big emphasis on apprenticeships in Adult Social Care 
utilising the apprenticeship levy and similarly for OT’s and the plan is to work with 
NHS colleagues to build a joint career path. 
  
Steph advised that a particular area of challenge was workforce planning and data 
sets as social care has not had the same level of data analysis as the NHS. 
However, Steph advised that the LGA and Health Education England had been 
trialling some tools for such analysis in Gateshead with the aim of rolling this out 
nationally in the future. 
  
Steph advised that work was also taking place in relation to health and social care 
shared career and job events with the local authority and NHS providing a joint offer. 
  
Staff retention was another key area which was being looked at with a view to better 
integrating the training and wellbeing offer for staff. 
  
There was also a focus on training leaders and developing a new course to help 
everyone think as a system. 
  
The OSC queried whether recruitment efforts are being targeted towards people 
working in other fields who might be thinking of changing careers. 
  
Steph stated that this was happening with recruitment events seeking to target 
different groups. There had been recruitment events taking place at the Metro 
Centre so this might attract individuals currently in the retail sector who might be 
thinking a career change. There had also been a focus individuals in the Shared 
Lives Scheme as they may be able to work from home. 
  
The OSC queried the position in relation to Adult Social Care data sets as they had 
understood that there were national minimum data set requirements. 
  
Steph clarified that the issue was not about the data sets themselves but rather a 
lack of tools / capacity to carry out robust analysis of the data sets. The focus now 
was around gaining additional capacity to ensure robust data. 
  
Steph advised that the impetus for work in relation to digital inclusion had arisen 
from a review of all the joint work carried out during the pandemic when there had 
been a huge increase in digital access to health and social care services. 
  
Steph stated that it was known that inequalities in Gateshead had worsened as a 
result of the pandemic and so it had been agreed that the health and social care 
system would work together to better understand digital exclusion. 

Page 4



 

  
Steph advised that there isn’t a clear understanding of digital exclusion. Estimates 
don’t allow a drilling down into local areas to identify pockets of exclusion so there is 
a need for a greater understanding of the situation as there is a risk of further 
inequalities amongst marginalised groups. 
  
Further key concerns are that the cost of living crisis may lead to some people being 
unable to renew devices and cancelling broadband connectivity  due to the costs as 
well as accessibility issues if individuals have language or disability needs and 
literacy levels, particularly health literacy, as this may prevent individuals from 
effectively navigating routes into services. 
  
Steph stated that whilst an aim was to help the majority of individuals towards digital 
access to services eventually it was acknowledged that there would always be some 
individuals who would not be able to access services digitally. However, if the 
majority of individuals are able to access services digitally it will then release 
resources to support those who are unable to do so. 
  
Steph advised that there is a GP practice in Gateshead which is inviting in patients 
to the practice to show them how to request a prescription on-line and use the e-
consult platform. 
  
Steph stated that there is a lot of good work going on within the Gateshead system 
and a Programme Manager’s post has just been established in the voluntary and 
community sector through Connected Voice with a view to connecting up all groups 
working on digital inclusion so that learning and research is shared across the 
borough and applying for suitable pots of funding to progress work. 
  
Steph stated that there will also be wider benefits to this type of work as if individuals 
are enabled to request prescriptions on line or make referrals on line for adult social 
care then they will also be able to seek employment on line and request assistance 
for housing on line etc. 
  
The OSC thanked Steph for the information provided and asked how the success of 
the work being progressed was being measured. 
  
Steph advised that a starting point was working with the Academic Health Science 
Unit to map the work that is taking place so that it can be counted and outcomes 
where a difference is being made can be identified. 
  
Steph advised that in addition the intention was to have a funded research 
programme which would be able to demonstrate the impact of the work being 
progressed and a bid had been submitted with a view to achieving this. 
  
The OSC stated that it was interesting to see that a GP practice in Gateshead was 
offering digital training to patients and it was queried whether this was being rolled 
out to other practices. 
  
Steph advised that it was intended to evaluate the impact of the work progressed at 
the specific GP practice first and where it is demonstrated that this is working well 

Page 5



 

the aim will be to share across all practices. 
  
Steph advised that as it was considered that recruiting into the Programme Manager 
post may be a challenge they had secured mentorship from two SME technical 
organisations so that the individual would be supported. 
  
The OSC queried the timeframe for the post. 
  
Steph advised that the Programme Manager job was for 18 months and the advert 
would be going out in the next few weeks. 
  
The OSC queried whether there were any developments in relation to assisted 
healthcare. 
  
Steph stated that this had been one of the levers into the work which was now being 
progressed. A lot of devices rely on broadband so another workstream was piloting 
new devices and they had just awarded a NEPO contract in relation to this and the 
first two lots had gone live and another two were due to go live in the near future. 
Steph advised that they are working with technical providers with a view to devising 
solutions to problems. 
  
The OSC asked if they could have an update on this work going forwards 
  
Steph advised that the OSC was due to receive a briefing in relation to assisted 
technology in due course and an update on this work would be included in that. 
  
The OSC noted that there are social tariffs for broadband and queried whether there 
were significant advantages and whether the Council was making people aware of 
this via places such as foodbanks. 
  
Steph advised that there are many warm spaces which are promoted by the Council 
in partnership with others that have digital connectivity and this another reason for 
people to use those spaces. Steph stated that they are looking at the Council, Trusts 
and University who are all spending a great deal on devices and connectivity and 
how they can use social value to influence BT etc to give low or very low cost 
internet. 
  
The OSC noted that during Covid home visits to provide oxygen monitors were 
linked with mental health first aid to combat loneliness and it was queried whether 
this could also be progressed via this work as there are some individuals who are 
attending GP practices due to loneliness rather than medical issues. 
  
Steph advised that the Council was working with Edberts House around social 
prescribing to pick up those individuals who are approaching GP practices for social 
reasons rather than medical. Steph also advised that they were working with 
Connected Voice who manage Our Gateshead to provide QR codes which can take 
individuals to the Our Gateshead website which details a wide range of support. 
  
The OSC highlighted the issue of online scams as a potential reason for some 
individuals failing to use digital resources.  

Page 6



 

  
Steph acknowledged that this is an issue and that a key area is not just to teach 
people the skills to use technology but also how to stay safe on line so that they can 
use technology confidently. 
  
  
RESOLVED                      That the views of the OSC be noted. 
  

CHW14 ASC CQC ASSURANCE UPDATE  
 

 Steph Downey, Service Director, Integrated Adults and Social Care provided the 
OSC with an update on the preparation being undertaken for the new Adult Social 
Care (ASC) CQC Assurance Framework which is due to be implemented from April 
2023. 
  
The OSC noted that the Health and Social Care Bill gives CQC the power to 
assure/inspect Local Authorities in respect of their Adult Social Care duties, and the 
newly formed Integrated Care Systems. 
  
It was noted that Gateshead Adult Social Care ( ASC) was last inspected by CQC in 
2010 and the Assurance framework being developed for implementation in April 
2023 has the following 4 key themes  

       Working with people - assessing needs (including unpaid carers), supporting 
people to live healthier lives, prevention, well-being, information and advice 

       Providing support - markets (including commissioning), workforce equality, 
integration and partnership working 

       Ensuring safety - safeguarding, safe systems and continuity of care 
       Leadership and workforce - capable and compassionate leaders, learning, 

improvement, innovation 
  
Each of the themes has several quality statements and ‘I’ statements within it which 
demonstrate expectations around the level/ quality of care. The draft framework is 
expected to be signed off soon and CQC is recruiting into roles to facilitate new 
duties and is procuring the web portal that will enable LA’s to submit their evidence. 
  
All 12 NE local authorities are completing a draft self – assessment and Gateshead’s 
self -assessment was submitted a couple of weeks ago. Mini reviews are planned 
with an ex - Director of Adult Social Services and Gateshead’s will take place 
tomorrow. 
  
Regional working groups providing support network for LA’s on inspection 
preparation 
  
Steph explained that Gateshead has implemented the ADASS top tips for 
preparation for CQC assurance as per the report circulated to OSC which outlined 
the activity which had taken place so far aligned to the recommended areas. Policies 
and procedures are were also being updated. 
  
In terms of next steps the Council would obtain feedback from the self- assessment 
and mini review and would then update the self - assessment and maintain and 

Page 7



 

update it on a quarterly basis. Improvement workstreams would be ongoing and 
there would be regular briefings to leaders, members and the workforce. 
  
The OSC queried what the position was in relation to the “I” statements for those 
who might have cognitive impairments. Steph advised that CQC would adapt the 
approach dependent on individual’s cognitive needs and will also be looking at 
whether local authorities are providing information in easy read formats and whether 
information might be accessible to carers 
  
The Vice Chair noted that at a recent OSC Steph had reported on the capacity 
pressures across the social care system and asked how CQC would apply their 
assurance as nationally most local authorities have significant waiting lists for 
assessments and packages of care. 
  
Steph advised the OSC that CQC have to assess against the framework and can’t 
take account of the workforce crisis but will look at how local authorities are 
managing risks and will ask the Council about how its is risk rating those who are 
waiting for assessments so that CQC can be confident the local authority is 
managing those risks. However, there is a concern amongst local authorities that the 
impact of workforce challenges will have a negative impact on their CQC 
assessment. 
  
The OSC noted that part of the new framework includes assessing needs including 
those of unpaid carers but that this relies on carers coming forward voluntarily for 
such assessments as there is no requirement for them to do so. In addition, many 
carers either aren’t aware that they are entitled to such assessments or do not see 
the benefits of having them. The OSC therefore queried how CQC would assess the 
Council on this area given these factors. 
  
Steph advised that CQC would look at how the Council is advertising carers 
assessments to ensure that they understood the benefits. Steph stated that while the 
duty is on the Council to carry out carers assessments Gateshead has devolved 
such assessments to Gateshead Carers Association and this has helped increase 
the uptake of stand alone carers assessments. Steph stated that Gateshead Carers 
try and encourage carers, particularly where they have significant stress to have 
assessments. Gateshead Carers Association acts as a one stop shop understanding 
carers needs and the support that can be offered. 
  
The Chair asked what areas of good practice and further development have been 
identified in terms of the self-assessment that the Council has completed. 
  
Steph stated that an area of good practice would relate to workforce and the social 
work apprenticeships being taken forward. A webinar is taking place on these 
apprenticeships and there has been much interest across the region. The Council is 
also speaking to the Dept of Health and Social Care about its trainee Social Worker 
Model which is open to people in lower grade roles. Recently Gateshead advertised 
6 trainee posts and had 89 applicants which is really positive. 
  
The OSC was advised that an area for improvement was the process of updating IT 
from CareFirst to Mosaic. Performance data also needs to improve and the Council 

Page 8



 

is also an outlier in terms of spend on residential care compared to our neighbouring 
local authorities and statistical local neighbours. 
 
RESOLVED            That the OSC is satisfied with the progress to date and next 

steps outlined 
  
  

CHW15 SOCIAL SERVICES ANNUAL REPORT ON COMPLAINTS AND 
REPRESENTATIONS - ADULTS  
 

 The OSC was advised that during 2021/22 55 complaints had been received 
regarding Adult Social Care Services which was a 34% increase on complaints 
received during 2020/21 (where there were 41). However, 74% (274) of 
representations made during 2021/22 were compliments and only 26% (97) were 
expressions of dissatisfaction. 
  
The OSC noted that the majority of complaints related to assessment and 
personalisation and there were two key themes lack of service and quality. The OSC 
noted that this was the first time that there had been complaints relating to lack of 
service highlighting the challenges being faced in Adult Social Care. 
  
OSC received information on the timeframes for dealing with complaints; Health and 
Social Care Joint Investigations; complaints referred to the Local Government and 
Social Care Ombudsman; Equalities monitoring and learning from complaints. 
  
The OSC asked whether in terms of equalities monitoring, the Council has a 
common monitoring form for complaints. 
  
Steph advised that she would check the position on this with the ASC Complaints 
manager and provide the OSC with this information in due course. 
  
The OSC asked Steph how the Council gauges whether a complaint is vexatious. 
  
Steph advised that all complaints are treated fairly and equally and given due 
consideration. However, there is a process in place should a complaint be taken to 
extremes. 
  
RESOLVED  (i)       That the information in the 2021/22 annual 

report be noted.  
(ii)      That the OSC is satisfied with the performance of Children 

Adults and Families (now Integrated Adults and Social Care) in 
responding to complaints and ensuring that this results in 
continuous service improvement. 

  
CHW16 ICS/GATESHEAD PLACE FOCUS  

 
 John Costello, Gateshead System Integration Manager, provided the OSC with an 

overview of the NENC Integrated Care Board (ICB), the NENC Integrated Care 
Partnership (ICP) and Area ICPs and the NENC Integrated Care System (ICS) and 
outlined how the ICB and ICP interfaces with the Gateshead Health and Care 

Page 9



 

System (Gateshead Cares). 
  
The OSC queried whether the NE & NC ICS was too big. John advised that there 
were significant advantages in operating at scale such as in the areas of heart 
surgery, workforce and digital where it was more effective to work at a regional level. 
However, John acknowledged that operating at this scale also presents challenges 
in terms of communication and John stated that this is why the four area sub ICPs, 
although not statutory bodies, will play an important role in acting as a link to the 
statutory ICP. John stated that it is too early to say how well all the structures will 
knit together but if the ICB achieves a truly population health approach this would be 
a significant achievement. 
  
John advised that there is a Joint OSC for the NE& NC ICS and North and Central 
ICPs which is chaired and hosted by Gateshead Council so there is regular scrutiny 
which includes updates on the ICB and ICP. 
  
The OSC raised concerns that the needs/ priorities of Gateshead might be lost in the 
new structures. 
  
John advised that the ICB/ ICP are committed to primacy of place and the 
Gateshead System has built good relationships with clinicians and the ICB is 
maintaining the teams that local authorities worked with when CCGs were still in 
existence. In addition, Gateshead has a councillor representative on the System 
Board to help ensure relationships are maintained and work for Gateshead. 
  
Steph advised that the rationale around the size of the patch relates to patient flows. 
The size of the ICS has been raised by local authorities who have asked that it is 
recognised by the system that they have very different geographies. 
  
Steph advised that one of the most challenging aspects is that the CQC will be 
inspecting local authorities and ICS and here we have one huge ICS with 13 local 
authority “places” and 8 provider trusts. However, in another area there is one local 
authority and two ICS so there is a mismatch. 
  
RESOLVED            That the information be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

CHW17 HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD UPDATE  
 

 John Costello, Gateshead System Integration Manager, provided the OSC with an 
update on the work of the Gateshead Health and Wellbeing Board during the six 
month period April to September 2022 which covered:- 
  

       Development of an approach and plan for implementation of the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy 

       The NE& NC ICS development and implications for Place systems. 

Page 10



 

       Endorsement of the Climate Change Strategy for Gateshead 
       Support for the Anti-Social Behaviour Review 
       Support for the People@theHeartProgramme which is focusing on people 

with multiple and complex needs and how they can best be met across the 
system. 

       Consultation on proposed changes to the Housing Allocations Policy and 
Tenancy Strategy  

       Consultation on the Gateshead Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment for 2022 
       Consideration of regular updates on the work of Gateshead Cares System 

Board 
  
The OSC also noted that as part of the Board’s assurance role it had also :- 
  

       Received regular updates on the Covid 19 response and the vaccine rollout in 
Gateshead /consideration of Gateshead’s Covid 19 Control Plan 

       Considered the way Gateshead’s health protection system provides 
leadership and a co-ordinated/consistent approach to outbreak 
control/infection prevention and the treatment and management of disease. 

       Considered the annual report of the Local Safeguarding Children Board 
(LSCB) 

       Endorsed the Better Care Fund end of year return for 2021/22 
       Considered the proposed arrangements for the CQC Assurance Framework 
       Signed off the Children and Young People Local Transformation Plan refresh. 

  
  
RESOLVED            That the progress made by the Health and Wellbeing  

Board during April to September 2022 be noted. 
  

CHW18 WORK PROGRAMME  
 

 The OSC received a report setting out changes to the provisional work programme 
for the municipal year 2022-23 as set out in the appendices to the report. 
  
  
RESOLVED            i) That the information be noted 

ii) That further reports on the work programme be brought  
to Committee to identify any additional policy issues  which 
the Committee may be asked to consider. 

 
 
 
 

Chair……….……………….. 
 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

      
 CARE, HEALTH & WELLBEING  

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
                                       6 December 2022  

 
TITLE OF REPORT:     Performance Management and Improvement Framework – 

6-Month Performance Report 2022/23 
  
REPORT OF:  Darren Collins, Strategic Director, Resources and Digital  
 

SUMMARY  

This report provides the Committee with the Council’s new Performance Management and 

Improvement Framework, reporting performance on the delivery of Council priorities for 

the period 1 April 2022 to 30 September 2022. It also provides an overview of performance 

relevant to the role and remit of this committee. 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

Purpose of the Performance Management and Improvement Framework (PMIF) 

1. The Performance Management and Improvement Framework (PMIF) enables the 

Council to know how it is delivering on its Thrive policy. It has a clear focus on priorities, 

delivery, measurement and analysis of impact. It is based on Thrive and the Health 

and Wellbeing Strategy and incorporates an organisational ‘health check’ Balanced 

Scorecard.   

 
Background 

2. The Council’s performance framework was reviewed and a new approach was agreed 

by Council on 27 May 2021. The draft measures were considered and agreed by 

Cabinet in October 2021. The reporting of 6-month performance which was considered 

by Overview and Scrutiny Committees at the end of January and agreed by Cabinet in 

March 2022, was the first-time performance was reported using the new approach.   

 

3. The PMIF aims to: 

• Enable the Council to know whether it is achieving its priorities. (Thrive Policy). 

• Ensure that the Council's resources are being deployed effectively. 

• Make both short and long-term effective decisions. 

• A whole systems approach – embedded in our partnership working to deliver the 

Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 

 
6 - Month Performance Reporting 

4. The analysis of performance for 1 April 2022 to 30 September 2022, against each of 

the 6 policy objectives of the Health & Wellbeing Strategy and the Balanced Scorecard 

is set out at Appendix 1. Areas of particular relevance to this Committee are highlighted 

in this report alone, however, the full Performance Management & Improvement 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



 

 

Framework is provided to enable members to see the full picture of performance 

across all priority areas.   

 

5. The report outlines the challenges, achievements, actions, and resources for each pol-

icy objective. It also contains performance data including strategic and operational 

measures and is informed by qualitative and quantitative assessment to inform policy 

and resource decisions. 

 
6. Some data is not available at 6-month stage. Indicators are released throughout the 

year, some annually which do not coincide with this reporting cycle. Where provisional 

data is available this has been provided and noted. The report sets out the current 

performance for the strategic and operational measures where data is available at the 

6-month stage.   

 

7. Cross-cutting key emerging areas already being highlighted are:  

• Budget pressures continue to provide a significant challenge. There is an increased 
level of uncertainty around the government financial settlement however, it is not 
anticipated the settlement will address the gap in Council budgets and future de-
mand pressures. 

• Continuing demand pressures being faced by services particularly across social 
care. 

• The continued impact of Brexit and the increasing outcomes from the current con-
flict in Ukraine impacting on costs facing local people as well as in the delivery of 
council services. The continuing legacy impact of Covid 19 on performance. 

• Widening inequalities, income and the longer term anticipated impact for the future 
on issues such as health. Latest data shows an increase of over 2 percentage point 
increase in those people who are considered vulnerable. 

• Staffing pressures across the Council including recruitment and retention, and sick-
ness, continues to present challenges in delivering services. 

• Steady progress in key areas such as climate change strategy and engagement. 

• Continuing increase in the access of digital and online services.   

 

Update Since the Year End Stage for this Committee 

8. An overview of the 6-month performance will be provided at the Committee meeting.  

This will include the Balanced Scorecard ‘organisational health check’ along with a 

focused ‘deep dive’ on Adult Social Care.   

   

9. The overall report at Appendix 1, identifies a number of performance challenges, areas 

of excellence and activities for improvement. Key highlights relevant for Care Health & 

Wellbeing Overview & Scrutiny Committee include:  
 

Challenges 

Page 14



 

 

• Vast amount of change in the Adult Social Care sector is on the horizon with the 

ASC White Paper, charging reforms, fair cost of care as well as CQC Assurance 

and changes around Liberty Protection Safeguards all culminating at once. 

• Increases in demand for health and social care services while recruitment and 

retention issues continue to be a challenge across the Adult Social Care 

workforce both in house and commissioned services. 

• Conditions in key social determinants of health have deteriorated and Covid-19 

containment measures appear to have resulted in some changes to health 

behaviours such as smoking and diet choices, increasing inequalities and causing 

concerning deteriorations in mental health. 

• There are increased waiting times for mental health services locally and 

regionally. The reasons for this could be a mixture of issues linked to the 

pandemic as well as unmet need coming forward.  

• There has been a decrease in adult smokers successfully quitting after 4 weeks, 

potentially linked to pandemic.   

 

Areas of excellence and improvement include 

• Response to the Covid-19 pandemic continued throughout 2021/22 with support 

to the most vulnerable, public health advice and campaigns. 

• The pandemic response being scaled back proportionate to risk and national 

guidelines with focus on the health impacts of the pandemic. 

• Targeted Covid vaccination clinics have been delivering an offer to local 

communities with greatest need.   

• Work to deliver the Health and Well-Being strategy outcomes has commenced.  

This had previously been on hold due to pandemic however a new group has 

been established involving the Council and its partners to understand what has 

changed, and how best to deliver the objectives set out in the cross-cutting 

strategy.  

 

Actions include 

• Development of 3-year alcohol and substance misuse plan, to utilise significant 

Home Office investment in treatment service following the Dame Carol Black 

Review.  

• Budget review work is underway across the Council to ensure Council resources 

are deployed in a prioritised way focusing on delivery of Thrive outcomes and 

impact. 

• Preparation for CQC Assurance, implications of the ASC White Paper, charging 

reforms and fair cost of care with a particular focus on data, practice and policies. 

• Focus on the preparation and implementation of the new Mosaic care 

management system which is a big area of change for the service. 

Page 15



 

 

• Take forward Technology Enabled Care using digital solutions to promote 

independence and support health and wellbeing. 

• Reviewing recruitment and retention issues with proposals being developed for 

consideration. 

 
Further development 

10. This is the second cycle of the 6-month performance against the new framework. While 

some data is still not yet available, these are areas that are important to measure as 

part of the framework, so they have continued to be included. A review of measures 

will be undertaken to understand where changes may be needed to ensure the PMIF 

remains robust. 

 

11. Work continues to develop the framework further to ensure it is best placed to enable 

the Council to understand its performance against priorities.  
 

12. The impact of the pandemic and recent economic events may influence and inform 

future priorities of the Council which would then inform the performance content of the 

framework. It is important the PMIF is flexible and able to evolve to ensure it remains 

relevant.    
 

13. An overview document has been developed at Appendix 2. This document outlines the 

importance of performance management at the Council and provides details of the 

background and purpose of the PMIF, including its links to the wider policy framework 

of Thrive and the Health & Wellbeing Strategy. The document also details the out-

comes and interventions, which underpin the performance measures for each of the 

six Policy Objectives, and it explains the purpose of the balanced scorecard. The doc-

ument also demonstrates the newly developed branding for the Performance Manage-

ment and Improvement Framework. 

 

14. The overview document will be placed in the Performance Management section of the 

Intranet and internet pages. This document could be provided to members as part of 

performance reporting in response to the request to improve the presentation of 

performance information. 

 

15. An online/digital format is also being considered with a pilot approach being developed. 

This will aim to cluster measures around key priority areas and present a visual 

representation of the performance data to be used alongside the analysis. This is a 

complex task and will involve areas across the Council, link to existing data 

approaches such as LIoN but will provide performance data at different levels from 

strategic to operational in an accessible way. 

16. A glossary has been developed of terms used in the creation of this report and within 

the PMIF, for ease of reference. This is included at Appendix 3.   

Page 16



 

 

Recommendations 

17. Care, Health and Wellbeing Overview & Scrutiny Committee is recommended to:  

• Comment on the 6-Month performance report at Appendix 1 and identify any 

areas for further scrutiny 

• Recommend the performance report to Cabinet for consideration in January 

2023. 

 
Contact:  Lindsay Murray                             Ext: 2794 

 

Page 17



 

DRAFT 
 

Please note this document is regularly being updated 

P
age 18



  

RESOURCES 
Gateshead are working hard to address recruitment and retention 
concerns through the ‘grow your own’ initiatives. In contrast, other 
LAs are using ‘parachute teams’ of agency workers to address 
staffing recruitment issues, which come at a high cost.  We aim only 
to use Agency staff for the purpose of back-fill where all other 
options have been exhausted. 
 
The pandemic and cost of living crisis have had a significant impact 
on children’s social care and the increase in LAC numbers with 
significant budget pressures continuing in 2022/23 and for the 
foreseeable future as things stand. Previous year savings have now 
been fully achieved but the focus is now on reducing in year 
overspends and managing future demand growth pressures. 

 
 
 

CHALLENGES / AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT 
 

Strategic 

· Number of pupils in Gateshead eligible for free 
school meals has increased. 

· Demand for social care support continues to 
increase. At the end of September 2022, 504 
children were looked after, a 4% increase since 
March 2022, and a 19% increase compared to 
the same time last year. This includes 
increases in Children becoming looked after for 
the first time and Children being referred to 
social care. The number of children becoming 
subject to a child protection plan has 
decreased. 

· There has been an increase in the amount of 
time from a child entering care to being adopted 
or made subject to a special guardianship 
order. 

 
Operational 

· Free school meals uptake has seen a slight 
decrease since the year-end stage. 

· Challenges remain in terms of recruiting 
qualified children’s social workers, which is a 
local, regional and national issue. A regional 
HR working group has been established to 
address these issues by sharing ideas, 
experiences, and best practice. 

· The average waiting time for children entering 
care and being placed for adoption has 
increased compared to the previous reporting 
period.  The main reason for this increase can 
be attributed to the Somerset Judgement, 
which has resulted in delays in placement 
orders. 

· Mosaic: some emerging challenges due to the 
significant change in process due to new case 
management system, recording and reporting.  

AREAS OF EXCELLENCE 
Strategic 

· More families being offered and accepting the opportunity to be supported as part of an Early 
Help Family Group Conference, indicating stronger working relationships with families who 
need early help. The proportion of cases being closed showing ‘all needs’ met has also 
improved. 

· Number of families supported through the Family Drug and Alcohol Courts (FDAC) has 
increased, demonstrating the work being achieved through the FDAC Team. 

· 6 areas for improvement identified through the September 2021 Ofsted focused visit Short 
Inspection are being progressed with a plan in place.  An update on the plan was presented 
to OSC Families in September 2022, with good progress being made against the 6 areas of 
improvement identified. An inspection preparation group is in place, to manage the 
implementation plan and provide governance around inspection preparedness. 

Operational 

· Continue to meet the outcomes target set by the Department for Levelling Up, Housing & 
Communities for whole-family support through the Supporting Families Programme.  So far, 
we have achieved 49% of the target of 275 for the full year. Gateshead has met 100% of the 
targets set since the programme’s inception in 2012. 

· Triaged 1,899 referrals during 21/22 for the Reducing Parental Conflict Programme, 
exceeding the referral target set by DWP by 13% and posting a programme start rate 
(parents/carers) of 73%. We have secured a new DWP grant of £30K x 2 years to train 
facilitators in some of the programmes offered so that interventions can continue to be 
delivered as part of a local RPC offer. 

· Pre-birth service was launched in October 2022 with a focus on supporting babies to remain 
at home with Families. It is anticipated that the introduction of prebirth model will reduce the 
number of new-born babies coming into care, by placing more value upon the birth parents 
and wider family by working with them at earlier stages. 

· Behaviour Change Programme is well established, working directly with perpetrators to break 
the cycle of abuse. Funding secured from the PCC Violence Reduction Unit to increase 
capacity within the team by 1 FTE for 12 months until September 2023.The team have worked 
with a further 71 clients during April to September 2022. 

· Outcome 22 continues to be used as an Out of Court disposal. This intervention is a deferred 
prosecution, meaning the young person will not come through the formal criminal justice 
system unless they fail to comply with the programme. This intervention has been extremely 
successful in reducing the number of first-time entrants. In the past 12 months there have 
been 128 Out of Court Disposals. Only 1 young person declined intervention. In the current 
open case load 88% of Out of Court Disposals are Outcome 22’s. 

· Mosaic: Children’s services implemented in January 2022 and we have seen some significant 
process improvements, there have been some emerging challenges due to the significant 
change in process, recording and reporting.  We continue to work to address these issues 
with governance in place via the Mosaic Programme Board and the Children’s sub-board. 

ACTIONS 
Strategic 

· In collaboration with the ICB, Gateshead are in the process of creating 
a multi-disciplinary trauma informed service for children who are on 
the edge of care, cared for, in receipt of youth justice services or at 
risk of admission or due to be discharged from tier four provisions. 
The service will be in-house and aligned to our contextual 
safeguarding service. 

· Q3 and Q4 learning audits will be completed over the next 6 months 
and results analysed and presented in line with the framework as 
described. 

· To improve recruitment and retention in children’s social care to 
ensure sustainability and succession planning we have implemented 
a grow your own initiative, with the intake of 2 cohorts of 10 student 
social workers per year. Through targeted recruitment campaigns with 
universities, we can attract a high calibre of candidates.  This also 
helps with our succession planning where experienced Social 
Workers act as mentors to students, allowing them to gain managerial 
experience helping to grow opportunities for progression within the 
service. 

· Take forward activities to support engagement of children and their 
families in SEND development, implement the recommendations from 
the recent Green paper, review Secondary ARMS provision during 
2022/23. 

Operational 

· Working to target low uptake schools in a bid to increase school meal 
uptake i.e., attending open evenings, leaflet drops, social media 
campaigns. Ongoing Implementation of the new electronic school 
meals system to offer a range of benefits, by streamlining the 
operation and offering time efficiencies and a quality service that 
better needs the needs of pupils 

· We have now embedded an Early Help and Social Worker as part of 
our new community-based family intervention alongside Edbert’s 
House colleagues in Beacon Lough East.  It is too early to judge the 
impact of this intervention and an evaluation will be conducted in the 
coming months. 

· Mosaic: we continue to work to address the emerging issues with 
governance in place via the Mosaic Programme Board and the 
Children’s sub-board. 

 
 

SUMMARY 
What is this telling us about how we are performing across Gateshead? 
Demand for services continues to increase, a trend noted at the last full year report, and is particularly evidenced through the increase in children in our care and the rate 
of referrals into Social Care. There are still some area’s not able to be updated due to ongoing national disruption in collecting data during the pandemic.  Early Help 
Services continue to perform well, and it is hoped that these improvements will support a longer-term reduction in demand, although this will take some time show impact.  
Despite increases in demand we continue to meet our statutory duties and the impact on children and families. 

What will we be doing in response? 
Continue to work on innovative approached to recruitment and retention with particular emphasis on our grow-your-own initiative which will help to mitigate the demand 
pressures whilst supporting our work towards reducing overspends. Several initiatives and partnership working to improve services for children and their families. More 
targeted work being done around free school meals uptake to ensure families are accessing the support available to them during the cost-of-living crisis. 

Future Direction of Travel and Expectations over the next six months   
The shorter- and longer-term impacts of the pandemic and current economic pressures facing families will be monitored as these issues may well impact of performance 
against our desired outcomes. 
 
 

GIVE EVERY CHILD THE BEST START TO LIFE - ANALYSIS – WHAT IS THIS TELLING US?   Appendix 1 DRAFT 
WHAT DO WE WANT TO ACHIEVE? – Our Outcomes 

The circumstances which result in adverse childhood experiences are prevented                                                                                                                                                                                 All children start school ready to learn 
All permanent school exclusions are prevented                                                                                                                                      Parents can access support proportionate to meet their needs, to be the best parents they can be 

 

P
age 19



 Outcome Intervention On track DoT Strategic performance Baseline Latest Target DoT Operational Performance Baseline Latest Target DoT 

The 
circumstan
ces which 
result in 
adverse 
childhood 
experience
s are 
prevented 
 
Parents can 
access 
support 
proportiona
te to meet 
their needs, 
to be the 
best 
parents 
they can be 
 
All children 
start school 
ready to 
learn 
 
 
 
All 
permanent 
school 
exclusions 
are 
prevented 

Implementation of Gateshead's 
Economic Strategy 
 
Support our schools to deliver an 
effective curriculum that addresses 
the skills required for later life and 
supports emotional well-being  
 
 
 
C&F Early Help Strategy - 
providing support to families when 
a need is identified or as soon as 
a problem emerges, at any point 
in a child 
 
Focus on supporting confident, 
positive and resilient parenting, to 
those who most need our support 
 
 
Reducing the Number of Children 
in Care Strategy Interventions: 

· Keep families together safely 

· A culture that works with safe 
uncertainty and supports 
social workers across 
services in their work with 
edge of care families 

· Achieve permanency quickly 

· Develop enough and 
affordable high quality 
placement options 

Increase the focus of existing 
expenditure on early years to 
reduce inequalities in early 
development. 

Ensure maternity services, 
parenting programmes, childcare 
and early year’s education are of 
high quality and meet needs of all 
groups 
 
Build resilience and well-being of 
all children and young people 

 
Economic 
Strategy 

being 
implemen

ted 
 
 
 
 

Early 
Help 

Strategy 
being 

implemen
ted 

 
 
 
 

Reducing 
the 

Number 
of 

Children 
in Care 
Strategy 

agreed by 
Cabinet 

 
 
 

Budget 
review  

 

 
 
 

 

% of pupils eligible for free school 
meals  

26.44%   
Oct 2021 

27.06% Tracking 
 

% take up of free school meals in 
primary schools 

72% 
(2021) 

73% 

Maintain 
then 

increase 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Gap in Life expectancy at birth 
male/female Inequality in life 
expectancy at birth Males/Females 
Annual indicator 

10.7 (M)            
9.6 (F) 

2017-19 

10.8 (M) 
8.8 (F) 

2018-20 

Reduce 
 

 

Children in relative low-income families 
(under 16s) compared to England 
Average 

19.1%  
2019/20 

28.9% 
2020/21 

Reduce 
 

% of state funded Gateshead schools 
graded good or outstanding 

 93% (21) 90.40% Tracking 
 

% of Gateshead local authority schools 
graded good or outstanding in relevant 
categories 

Reporting to be developed during 2022/23 with defined 
categories 

% of Early Help cases closed with ‘all 
needs met’ as an outcome 

55.36% 64.49% 
Maintain 

or 
increase 

 

Hospital admissions caused by 
unintentional and deliberate injuries in 
children (0-14 years)  

113.3 
(2019/20) 

86.7 per 10,000 

(2020/21) 
Reduce 

Annual 

% of cases closed to early help which 
remain out of statutory services at 6 
months and 12 months 

88.83% / 
81.59% 

89.24% /   
86.73% 

Increase 
 

Reduction in number of children who 
need to be taken in to care 
 

184 / 46.7 
per 10,000 (at 
31/03/21 for 

previous 12m) 

227 / 57.9 per 
10,000 (at 30/09/22 
for previous 12m) 

Reduce 
 

Increase in the number of families who 
are offered the opportunity to be part of 
a Family Group Conference 

163 referrals 

submitted for 
FGC 

352 referrals 

submitted for 
FGC 

Increase 
 

Reduction in number of children who 
need to become the subject of a Child 
Protection Plan 

287 / 72.8 
per 10,000 (at 
31/03/21 for 

previous 12m) 

322 / 82.1 per 

10,000 (at 
30/09/22 for 

previous 12m) 

Reduce 
 

Increase in the number of families to 
take up the offer to be part of a family 
group conference 

79 closures with 

outcome ‘FGC 
Successful’ 

170 closures 

with outcome 
‘FGC 

Successful’ 

Increase 
 

Reduction in the rate of children who 
need to be referred to Children Social 
Care services  

1,621 / 
411.6 per 

10,000 (at 
31/03/21 for 

previous 12m) 

2,244 /     
572.4 per 

10,000 (at 
30/09/22 for 

previous 12m) 

Reduce 
 

Increase in the number of families 
supported through the FDAC (Family 
Drug and Alcohol Courts)  

5 families 

supported (End 
Sept 21) 

13 Families 

being supported 
(Sep 22) 

Increase 
 

School readiness: percentage of 
children achieving a good level of 
development at the end of Reception 
and maternal health 

73.4% 
(2018/19) 

Not published 
since covid 

Increase  

The percentage of children assessed by 
Children Social Care, where 3 or more 
ACE (Adverse Childhood Experience) 
factors were identified  

Measure to be developed from new Mosaic system for 6-
month stage 2022/23 

 

 

School readiness % of children with 
free school meals achieving a good 
standard of development at end of 
reception 

52.7%     
(2018-19) 

Not published 
since covid 

Increase  

Reduction in the average time between 
a child entering care and being made 
subject of a Special Guardianship Order 

427 Days (as at 

31/03/2022) 

454 Days        

(as at 
30/09/2022) 

Reduce 
 

No of permanent exclusions from 
Gateshead schools 

38 
(19/20) 

38 
(20/21) 

Reduce  
Annual 

Reduction in the average time between 
a child entering care and placed for 
adoption 

416 days (at 

31/03/21, 
previous 12 

months) 

418 days (at 
30/09/2022) for 

previous 12 
months 

Reduce 
 

No. of children looked after by the local 
authority 

435 
(Q4 2021/22) 

504 
(Q2 2022/23) 

Reduce 
 

% smoking at time of delivery 
12.58 

(2018/19) 

11.6            
(2020/21) 

Reduce  
Annual 

6-8-week breastfeeding rate 
38.7 

(2019/20) 

41.8              
(2020/21 

Increase  
Annual 

Pupils who have missed 10% or more of 
school sessions during an academic 
year 

18.14% 20/21 
academic year 

24.54% 
(21/22 academic 
Year, Aut/spring 
terms only, as at 

May 22) 

Reduce 
 

 

Investment Strategy & Resources 

Revenue 22/23 (21% 
of total gross budget) 

5yr 
Capital 

Gross  Net   

£133 £000 £000 

133,056 47,614 19,276 

Commissioned Spend: tbc 
Employees – 513.17 FTE   
Figures based on 2022/23 budget 
setting 
 

Risks to Achievement rated after mitigation 

· Failure to safeguard vulnerable children & 
adults Amber 

· Non-compliance with statutory requirements 
resulting in prosecution & subsequent penalties 
Amber 

· The Council is hit by a Cyber-attack that 
compromises confidentiality, integrity & 
availability of information Amber 

· Failure to address financial gap in the Council’s 
budget & systems Amber 

 
 

Qualitative Impact 

· Demand for services continues to increase, a trend noted at the 
last full year report, and is particularly evidenced through the 
increase in children in our care and the rate of referrals into 
social care.  

· Early Help Services continue to perform well, and it is hoped 
that these improvements will support a longer-term reduction in 
demand, although this will take some time show impact.  

· Despite increases in demand we continue to meet our statutory 
duties and the impact on children and families. 

 
 
 

Geographic Impact - Explore the data - LIoN data shows… 

· Child poverty remains highest around the urban centre of 
Gateshead, with smaller pockets further afield and in outlying 
areas such as Allerdene, Elisabethville and Highfield East. 

· high numbers of vulnerable children spread across our more 
deprived neighbourhoods around the borough in every locality. 

· Children requiring help and intervention are more prevalent on 
the urban town centre of Gateshead in the inner east with 
pockets in the outer west around Chopwell, High Fell and 
Birtley. 

 
 
 

Geographic Impact - Explore the data - LIoN data shows… 

· child poverty remains highest in and around the urban centre of 
Gateshead, with smaller pockets further afield in areas such as 
Allerdene, Harlow Green East, Elisabethville and Barley Mow. 

· high levels of persistent school absence particularly evident in 
a number of areas within Bensham and Felling. 

· high numbers of vulnerable children in multiple areas of 
Deckham, Felling and High Fell. Other areas with large 
numbers include Staneway East, Elisabethville, Winlaton East 
and Chopwell North. 

  

 
 

GIVE EVERY CHILD THE BEST START TO LIFE  
WHAT DO WE WANT TO ACHIEVE? 

 

P
age 20



 

RESOURCES 
A zero-based budget review is ongoing with specific focus on Older People Residential Care, 
Hospital Discharge to Assess, Mental Health and Section 117 funding, Complex Learning 
Disability community packages, Transforming Care, transitions and Provider Services. The 
work will be completed by January 2023. 
 
Adults received significant levels of Covid support for workforce recruitment & retention, 
infection control and rapid testing funds and ASC omicron support funding in 2021, which has 
offset additional expenditure with most of the grants being transferred to providers. 
 
Covid impacts in ASC were offset by significant additional funding provided by CCG/DHSC, 
which is no longer being provided. There is budget pressure in maintaining Hospital Discharge 
to Assessment due to the cessation of covid support funding and the increased need levels 
and quantities. The promise of £500m nationally to the Adult Social Care sector for winter 
pressures has not progressed due to the current national political landscape, and currently 
there is no further indication of what is happening (as at 08/11/22). 
 
A further agreement was reached for a pooled budget for the hospital discharge scheme via 
CCG’s for a further year, however, significant pressure is showing as costs continue to rise. 
 
Going into 2022 the ASC Package saving (£2.5m) & Hospital Discharge savings (£1m) without 
budget mitigation both continue to be a budget pressure. The current reported in year 
overspend on Adult Social Care budget is £2.125m. 
 

 
 
 

Enable all Young People and Adults to Maximise their Capabilities and have Control over their Lives 
ANALYSIS – WHAT IS THIS TELLING US? DRAFT 

All young people are resilient, with good physical and mental health and wellbeing                                                                                                                                   All young people are ready and appropriately skilled for the workplace 
Gateshead is a positive place in which everyone’s mental health and wellbeing can flourish                                                        Everyone is able to be an active part of their community and feel connected to communities and networks 

 
     

CHALLENGES / AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT 
 
Strategic 
· Impact following the pandemic continues to be seen with 

increased frailty and complexity of need amongst those 
needing services, more people waiting for services and 
increased strain on the mental wellbeing of the community and 
the workforce.  

· Level of need of those being admitted to hospital (particularly 
older frail people) and the requirement to discharge people 
earlier in their recovery journey means people with more 
complex needs are being discharged from hospital, putting 
pressure on health and care community services. 

· Recruitment and retention issues continue to be a challenge 
across the Adult Social Care workforce both in house and 
commissioned services, despite several innovative 
approaches. 

· Implemented a trainee Social Worker model and focused on 
apprenticeships to try and help in our approach to recruitment 
issues, but recruitment of experienced social workers remains 
challenging. 

· Currently in a period of significant change within the ASC 
Sector, which is further being impacted by the increased level 
of uncertainty due to the national political landscape. 

· Seeing a disruptive impact on supporting people with Learning 
Disabilities into paid employment given the emerging longer-
term implications of the pandemic and the national economic 
crisis, with a decrease in those supported compared to the 
same time last year. 

 
Operational 
· Budget pressures continue to provide a significant challenge.  

There is an increased level of uncertainty around the 
government financial settlement however, it is not anticipated 
the settlement will address the gap in Council budgets and 
future demand pressures. 

 

AREAS OF EXCELLENCE 
Strategic 

· A research project is being conducted on the impact 
of the dementia friendly flats in Watergate Court, with 
the results so far yielding positive results for 
residents. 

· The ASSET Team launch was successfully 
completed, and the evaluation so far has identified 
that excellent outcomes are being achieved. There 
has been recognition that the model could become 
overwhelmed with the volume of referrals, so a multi-
agency triage process has been developed and is 
being trialled 

· The Adult Social Care Services Business Plan is now 
linking into Health & Wellbeing Strategy review and 
further work is planned in collaboration with the Local 
Government Association to develop an integrated 
adults and social care service strategy. 

· Housing LIN have awarded a contract to undertake 
and complete the strategy for the supported housing 
needs assessment. 

 
Operational 
· Recruited six Trainee Social Workers into two ‘pods’ 

in Assessment Services: one in generic Adult social 
care and one in Mental Health giving us additional 
assessment capacity now, and qualified social 
workers in the future.  The Occupational Therapy 
‘pod’ model is also now being scoped out. 

· Recruited the Strategic Locality Lead, the Co-
ordinator, and the Connector for Locality Working 

· Increase in the number of permanent adaptations 
carried out, which enables Gateshead residents to 

remain in their own homes. 
 
 
 

ACTIONS 
Strategic 
· Ongoing development of locality working, and work to identify the assets within the areas. 

· Further work in preparation for CQC assurance has seen the completion of the self-
assessment report and we have undertaken a mock annual conversation with a regional 
consultant, following which we will be developing an action and implementation plan over the 
coming months. 

· The roll out of the adult social care practice quality assurance framework has been completed 
and we are now undertaking a learning review which will feed into our service development 
plan. 

· First thematic audit within the quality assurance framework is due to be undertaken in January 
2023, focusing on Strength based practice.  We have also developed a new conversational 
record within the new IT system (Mosaic) which will support and enhance our approach to 
strength-based practice. 

· Implementation of the new Activity Based Care model to offer an innovative and diverse range 
of day service options for our service users has now been completed. 

 
Operational 
· implementation of the new adult social care case management system, Mosaic, continues, 

bringing significant amounts of change across the area. 

· We have taken the lead in developing a regional procurement framework for Technology 
Enabled Care and have a range of pilots ready to launch over the 6 months focussing in this 
area. 

· Whitley Court development at Wrekenton ongoing; 4 bungalows and 12 apartments will be 
directly commissioned by ASC for the purposes of supported accommodation. The bungalows 
will be designed to house tenants with complex needs and will be built to fully accessible and 
adaptable standards. The scheme includes a sensory garden and landscaped area designed 
specifically to support individuals with autism. 

 

SUMMARY  
 

What is this telling us about how we are performing across Gateshead? 
The ongoing impact of the pandemic, the increasing and complex needs being presented by people who require support and the 
significant budget pressures faced in Adult Social Care continues to affect services. Waiting lists for assessments and packages of 
care are monitored and robust risk management arrangements are in place. 
 
What will we be doing in response? 
The learning from internal quality assurance activity, targeted thematic audits around strength-based practice and the feedback and 
learning from the Adult Social Care services CQC preparedness work will lead to an implementation plan in order to improve 
outcomes for adult social care users. The zero-based budget review of services will allow us to determine any areas of savings 
linked to current budgetary pressures. 
 
Future Direction of Travel and Expectations over the next six months   
This is a very challenge time for Adult Social Care with a lot of competing demands and priorities. The response to these challenges 
will be managed through the work we are doing and the longer-term impacts and emerging pressures around budget, staffing and 
complexity of need continue to be monitored and responded to. 
 

P
age 21



aseline is latest 

Outcome Intervention On track DoT Strategic performance Baseline Latest Target DoT Operational Performance Baseline Latest Target DoT 

All young 
people are 

resilient, with 
good 

physical and 
mental 

health and 
wellbeing 

 
All young 

people are 
ready and 

appropriately 
skilled for the 

workplace 
 

Gateshead is 
a positive 
place in 
which 

everyone’s 
mental 

health and 
wellbeing 

can flourish 
 

Everyone is 
able to be an 
active part of 

their 
community 

and feel 
connected to 
communities 

and 
networks 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All domestic 
abuse is 

prevented 

· Prioritise creating 
the conditions for 
people to enjoy 
positive 
emotional health 
& well-being. 

· Support our 
schools to deliver 
an effective 
curriculum that 
addresses skills 
required for later 
life and supports 
emotional well-
being  

· Implement 
Economic 
Strategy 

· Research 
commissioned 
into wellbeing of 
children and 
young people 

· Health and 
wellbeing 
intervention  

· Delivery of Health 
& Wellbeing 
review 

· Support people 
through locality 
case working, 
even not eligible 
for statutory 
services but who 
require support 

· Ensure views & 
opinions of local 
people are 
represented in all 
aspects of our 
work 

· Prioritise 
preventing 
&reducing scale 
& impact of 
violence & 
domestic abuse  

.    

 
Economic 
Strategy 
being 
implemented 
 
Children and 
Young 
people 
Survey 
commissione
d by public 
health with 
consultation  
 
 
Health and 
Wellbeing 
review being 
progressed 
 
 
Locality 
working 
approach 
being 
developed 
working with 
partners and 
communities 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Year 6: Prevalence of obesity (including severe 
obesity) Child and Maternal Health 

24.9 
(2019/20) 

No new 
data 

available 
Reduce  

Households with dependent children owed a duty 
under the Homelessness Reduction Act Child 
and Maternal Health 

23.0 
(2019/20) 

No new data – 
reporting to begin 
within next 12mth 

 
Reduce 

 
 

Gap in life expectancy at birth male/female 
Inequality in life expectancy at birth 
males/female (Annual) 

10.7 (M)            
9.6 (F) 

(2017-19) 

10.8 (M)     
8.8 (F) 

(2018-20) 
Tracking 

 
Hospital admissions caused by unintentional & 
deliberate injuries in young people (aged 15-24 
per 10,000) 

167.5 
(2019/20) 

155.8 
(2020/21) 

Reduce  
Annual 

 

People reporting low life satisfaction % 
(compared to England Average) 

6.1% 
(20/21              

Eng Ave) 

8.0% 
(2020/21) 

Reduce 
 

Children 5-17 years attending holiday activities 
126 

(Summer 
2020)  

530 
(Up to             

Sept 2022) 
Increase  

 

16-18-Year-olds not in education, employment 
or training (NEET) 

5.2%                
(Dec 19-Feb 20) 

5.8%       
(Mar-Aug 

22) 
Reduce 

 

Inequality in attainment between children looked 
after by the local authority & those not KS4 
Attainment 8 Score 

CLA 21.8 
NCLA 47.2 
(2018/19) 

CLA 25   
(Summer 2021) 

NCLA                   
(Not available) 

Reduce  
Annual 

GCSE achieved 5 9-including English & Maths 
(%) / with free school meals (%) 

No longer published 
No of people supported by a caseworker who 
report improvement in their satisfaction with life 

Locality teams, being developed for 2022/23 
 

Inequality in attainment between children 
eligible/ not eligible for FSM KS1 Expected 
Level 

FSM 46% 
NFSM 70% 
(2018/2019)  

FSM 33.2% 
NFSM 
58.1% 

(Sept 2022) 

Reduce 
 

Successful completions from substance misuse 
treatment 

New definition and baseline to be determined 

Inequality in attainment between children 
eligible for and not eligible for free schools KS2 
(RWM Expected Standard) 

FSM 52% 
NFSM 73% 
(2018/19) 

FSM 39.9% 
NFSM 
67.5%    

(Sept 2022) 

Reduce 
 

Education Health and Care Plans issued within 
20 weeks (Including / Excluding exception) 

97% Inc 
exception 
93% Exc 
exception 

(2021) 

98.3% including 
exception 

98.3% excluding 
exception 

finalised in 20wks 

Increase  
Annual 

% of physically inactive adults compared to 
England Baseline*(Musculo-skeletal 
conditions) 

22.9% 
(England 
2019/20) 

24.7%                               
(April          
2021) 

Reduce 
 

Smokers that have successfully quit at 4 weeks 
compared to England Average 

1,808 
(2019/20 
Eng Avg) 

1,979 
(2019/20) 

Increase 
 

Admission episodes for alcohol-specific 
conditions - Under 18s per 100,000 

50.5 per 
100,000 (17/18 

- 19/20) 

50.8 per 
100,000 
(18/19 - 
20/21) 

Reduce 
 

% of eligible adults with a learning disability 
having a GP health check 

52.3%                            
(England 
2018/19) 

66.2% 
(2018/19-

awaiting new 
data) 

Increase 
 

Smoking Prevalence in adults compared to 
England Average Baseline 

13.9% 
(Eng Avg) 

17.1% 
(2019) 

Reduce  

Adult Social Care Self-reported user experience: 
ASCOF 3A Overall Satisfaction of people who use 
services with their care and support 
ASCOF 3B overall satisfaction of Carers with social 
services 

64.2% 
(2019/20) 

62.9% 
(2021/22) 

Increase 

 

 
 

43.6% 
(2018/19) 

42.8% 
(2021/22)  

Those with learning disabilities in suitable 
accommodation & supported into paid 
employment 

8.88% 
(2020/21 

provisional) 

7.6% 
(Sep 22)  

Increase 
 

Volunteering levels /Supporting and working with 
the VCS measures (new measure in development) 

2,116 
(2018/19) 

No data 
available 

Increas
e 

Annual 

Proportion of adults with a learning disability 
who live in their own home or with their family 

82.94% 
(2020/21 

(@ 6-Month 
2021/22 = 

33.4%) 

60.6%        
(6-Month /  

Cumulative) 
 

Increase 

 
 

Social isolation % of adult social care users who 
have as much social contact as they would like 

52.3% 
41.1% 

(2021/22) 
Increase  

Annual 

Total no. of accessible and adaptable homes 
built from 1st April 2021/22 baseline 

Baseline to be 
set in 2022/23 

3 Increase  
No of permanent adaptations carried out (to 
enable people to stay in their home) 

600 1,372 Increase  
Annual 

Those with learning disabilities in suitable 
accommodation & supported into paid 
employment 

8.88% 
(2020/21 

provisional) 

7.6% 
(Sep 22)  

Increase 
 

% of social care users aged 18+ with personal budgets 
/ direct payments: 
ASCOF 1C part 1a (adults receiving self-directed 
support) 

98.29% 
(20/21) 

94.7%          
(Sept 2022/23) 

Increase 
 

Rate of domestic violence reports / convictions/ 
repeat victims of domestic violence and/or 
children affected by domestic abuse – 
Measure definition to be determined 

Measure definition to be agreed 

ASCOF 1C part 1b (carers receiving self-directed 
support) 

98.61% 
(20/21) 

100%            
(Sept 2022/23) 

Increase 
 

ASCOF 1C part 2a (adults receiving direct payments) 
20.5% 
(20/21) 

16.6%           
(Sept 2022/23) 

Increase 
 

ASCOF 1C part 2b (carers receiving direct payments 
for support direct to carer 

63.89% 
(2020/21) 

81.0%           
(Sept 2022/23) 

 
Increase  

 
Geographic Impact Explore the data 
LIoN data shows… 

· high rates of domestic abuse incidents where children are involved 
in many of the overall most in need areas of Gateshead. 

· first time entrants into the youth justice system in a number of areas 
that do not typically feature as most in need areas. For example, 
areas of Ryton, Whickham, and Wardley. 

· high densities of long term adult social care users across the 
borough in neighbourhoods within Winlaton, Whickham, Sheriff Hill 
and Windy Nook, as well as Derwentwater West/Racecourse 
Estate, Barley Mow and Sunniside. 

 
 
 

Investment Strategy & Resources  

Revenue 21/22 (27% 
of Council budget) 

5yr 
Capital 

Gross  Net   

£000 £000 £000 

176,345 84,156 21,718 
Commissioned spend: tbc Assets: Asset 
Strategy Review.Employees 1041.16FTE 
tbc Figs based on 2022/23 est. 

Risks to Achievement rated after mitigation 
· Failure to safeguard vulnerable children & adults Amber 

· Non-compliance with statutory requirements resulting in 
prosecution & subsequent penalties Amber 

· The Council is hit by a Cyber-attack that compromises 
confidentiality, integrity & availability of information Amber 

· Failure to manage demand and expectations could result 
in the Council not achieving its Thrive agenda Amber 

· Failure to address financial gap in Council’s budget & 
systems Amber 

 

 
 

Qualitative Impact 

· Earlier intervention can help to reduce health inequalities faced 
in later life + improve health and wellbeing outcomes, which can 
help to reduce demand for services. Gateshead Council is one 
of ten local authorities to receive £5m over 5 years to increase 
capability and capacity for research into health inequalities. 

· Behind the Masks”, Gateshead’s Covid stories, Director of 
Public Health Annual Report 2021/22” highlighted: pressures 
and demand on Adult Social Care services during the pandemic 

 
 

 
 

ENABLE ALL YOUNG PEOPLE AND ADULTS TO MAXIMISE THEIR CAPABILITIES AND HAV E CONTROL OVER THEIR LIVES  
WHAT DO WE WANT TO ACHIEVE? – OUR OUTCOMES AND PERFORMANCE 

P
age 22



 

RESOURCES 
 

· Budget review area for the Economy and Business, considering 
the new Economic Strategy outcomes. 
 

· Administered the £4.1m COVID-19 Additional Relived fund to 
support those businesses affected by the pandemic but that were 
ineligible for existing support linked to business rates. 

 

· Secured £2.145m funding from CRF for projects including “Future 
You” (£0.733m) considering unemployment, “Immex City” 
(£0.732m) considering immersive technology adoption, 
“Gateshead Riverside Partnership” (£0.55m) enhancing the visitor 
market, and “Future Markets Acceleration Programme” (£0.128m) 
considering business innovation. 

 
 
 
 
 

CHALLENGES AND AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT 
 
Strategic 

· Rising cost of doing business – Business investment delays, small 
business concerned they do not have the resource to continue trading. 

· Demand for certain key sectors for business workspace out-stripping 
supply. 

· Disruption in provision of business support programmes due to 
transition from EU funding. 

· Economic inactivity is at its highest level since 2013 meaning tens of 
thousands of residents aged 16-64 are not participating in the labour 
market. Nearly a third of economic inactivity is reported as due to long-
term sickness. 

· Decrease in apprentice figures due to several factors, mostly due to 
COVID or financial reasons - closing businesses, staff redundancies, 
recruiting less new staff, staff too busy to spend time on an 
apprenticeship, young people staying on at school rather than entering 
an apprenticeship 

 
Operational 

· Helping people understand how changes to Universal Credit will 
impact upon their work and the requirements for them to look for work 
as 'managed migration' from legacy benefits is rolled out and the 
administrative earning threshold is raised. 

· Encouraging employers to access apprenticeship levy funding to help 
them create jobs with progression opportunities and develop their 
existing workforce. 

 
 

AREAS OF EXCELLENCE 
 
Strategic 

· Strategic Account Management Programme engaging key employers to attract and 
retain investment and jobs and to promote responsible business practices. 

· Council led Growth Fund, a £4.5m grant programme operating across Gateshead, 
Sunderland, and South Tyneside to support business investment projects that lead to 
job creation. 

· Support for North East Screen Industries Partnership 
 
Operational 

· Launched a social enterprise accelerator working with a cohort of 12 social 
enterprises to help scale them up to deliver services to meet local need and address 
gaps in local supply chains 

· Supporting readiness of local supply chains and promotion of business opportunities 

· 251 residents started work with help from Working Gateshead, double the number for 
the same period in 2021/22. This has been boosted through targeted activity in 
communities, partnership working, flexible personalised support and a multi-agency 
approach. 

· 28 businesses received support to create Kickstart job placements, resulting in 56 
young people at risk of long-term unemployment starting work in high quality roles at 
the beginning of their careers. 

· Established a 'skills hub' in partnership with the Department for Work & Pensions at 
the Metrocentre Jobcentre Plus unit, circa 15 residents per week have been engaged 
and have benefited from one-to-one information, advice and guidance upon 
becoming unemployed. This has included an event focused on Ukrainians welcomed 
into Gateshead who were otherwise not accessing mainstream employment and 
skills support. 

 

ACTIONS 
 
Strategic 

· Commissioning of activity to 
accelerate business formation rates 
and improve business reliance and 
growth through UK Shared Prosperity 
Fund. 

· Capitalise in strengths in immersive 
technologies 

· Implementation of the Economic 
Development Strategy 

· A note is being prepared to provide 
further qualitative analysis and 
context around the decrease in 
employment / unemployment rates 

 
Operational 

· Establish Business Support Hub to 
help business impacted by cost of 
doing business 

· Deliver specialised employment 
support for care-experienced young 
people to help them navigate the 
world of work and achieve 
sustainable economic security. 

· Work with national, regional, and 
local employment related services 
providers, training providers and 
specialist support organisations to 
connect and align employment and 
skills support. 

 
SUMMARY 

 
What is this telling us about how we are performing across Gateshead? 
Ongoing impacts of Brexit, Covid-19 and the conflict in Ukraine continue to affect Gateshead’s economy, as is the case nationally, although 
the full extent of those impacts are yet to be fully understood. Rising costs and the impact that Brexit is having on business continues to be 
felt, with some small business expressing their concerns around their ability to viably trade. The Council has a role in continuing to support 
businesses operationally, particularly with accessing opportunities for funding and growth, as well as strategically by considering how it 
invests. 
 
What will we be doing in response? 
Implementation of Gateshead’s Economic Development Strategy will be key to helping to address some of the challenges being faced. 
Ongoing monitoring to fully understand the impacts of the factors outlined above so that potential interventions are identified, to contribute 
towards Thrive outcomes. Continuing support to enable businesses to access opportunities and funds, with a focus on the environmental 
impact of the local economy in Gateshead. 
 
Future Direction of Travel and Expectations over the next six months 
The economic future remains uncertain at present with the impacts outlined above yet to be fully understood. Monitoring this will be important 
as well as identifying potential interventions to contribute to Thrive outcomes. It is anticipated that attendance levels at events will continue to 
increase as a result of the ongoing recovery from restrictions during covid-19, which will provide a boost to the visitor economy. 
 
 

Create Fair Employment and Good Work for All - ANALYSIS – WHAT IS THIS TELLING US?    
What do we Want to Achieve? Our Outcomes 

· All working age residents have access to good quality, sustainable work with decent pay and conditions 

· All people in low paid, low skilled jobs have opportunities to improve their skills base so they can more easily achieve personal progression and attain an improved standard of living 

P
age 23



tn 

Outcome Intervention On track DoT Strategic Performance Baseline Latest Target DoT Operational 
Performance 

Baseline Latest Target DoT 

All working age 
residents have 
access to good 
quality, 
sustainable work 
with decent pay 
and conditions 
 
All people in low 
paid, low skilled 
jobs have 
opportunities to 
improve their 
skills base so 
they can more 
easily achieve 
personal 
progression and 
attain an 
improved 
standard of 
living 
 

Implementation of 
Gateshead's 
Economic Strategy 
• Visitor Economy 
• Green Economy 
• Digital Economy 
• Local Economy 
(Community Wealth 
Building) 
e.g. Delivery of 
Gateshead Quays 
development 
including 
Conference and 
Exhibition Centre 
Gateshead Town 
Centre Regeneration 
Masterplan 
 
Helping people into 
work from direct 1:1 
support in their own 
localities. 

Strategy 
agreed and 
being 
implemented 
across core 
themes 
 
 
Gateshead 
Quays 
Conference 
and 
Exhibition 
Centre 
progressing 
 
 
 
 
 
Locality 
approach 
being 
developed 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Unemployment rate % 
 

5.5% 
(2019/20) 

5.2% 
(Jul21–Jun22) 

Reduce  Individuals helped into 
work 

266 
(YE 2021/22) 

251 
(6mth) 

Increase  Apprenticeship starts 
 

1,760 
(2018/19) 

1,220 
(Aug 21-Apr 22) 

Increase  

Apprenticeship completion 
940 

(2018/19) 
390 

(Aug 21-Apr 22) 
Increase  

Jobs created 
To be set (641 

at 6-month 
stage) 

250 Increase 
 Business births in Gateshead  

 
800 

(2019) 
730 

(2020) 
Increase  

Annual 

Total no of enterprises in Gateshead 
5,270 
(2019) 

5,610 Increase  
Jobs safeguarded 

To be set  
(373 at 6-

month stage) 
76 Increase 

 
Jobs density in Gateshead 

0.81 
(2019) 

0.71 
(2020) 

Increase  
Annual 

Sustain Gateshead’s working age 
population at a minimum of 2018 
baseline of 128,300 

128,300 
(2018) 

127,300 
(2019) 

Tracking 
 

Start-ups commenced 
trading 

To be set  
(38 at 6-month 

stage) 
68 Increase 

 

Employment Rate 
73.3% 

(2019/20) 
71.3% 

(Jul21–Jun22) 
Increase  Business 

improvement & 
expansion projects 
completed 

To be set 
(11 at 6-month 

stage) 
37 Increase 

 
Economic Inactivity Rate 

22.9 
(2019/20) 

24.9 
(Jul21–Jun22) 

Reduce  

Staying visitors to Gateshead 
(Annual) 

665,080 
(2019) 

406,000 (2021 – 

impacted by Covid) 
Increase 

 

Inward investment 
success 

14 (12 
months) 

(2019/20) 
7 Increase 

 
Gap in life expectancy at birth 
male/female: Slope index of 
inequality 

2017-19 
10.7 (M)             

2018-20 
10.8 (M) 

Reduce 

 

 

9.6 (F) 8.8 (F)  

 

Qualitative Impact 

· Adverse impact on the economy following the Covid-19 
pandemic with certain sectors including retail and 
hospitality impacted. Cost of living rise also impacting on 
disposable income levels. 

· Data gathered found that businesses are suffering from 
cost increases for materials, while some have found 
there are labour shortages in some sectors following EU 
Exit.   

· Many businesses are adjusting to the changing 
economic conditions.  

· Progression of major projects including Gateshead 
Conference and Exhibition Centre. 

 

 

 
 

Geographic Impact Explore the data 
LIoN data shows… 

· there are high proportions of out of work benefits 
claimants particularly around the centre and 
towards the east of Gateshead in areas such as 
Bensham, Deckham, Felling and High Fell. 
However, there are also high proportions in areas 
further afield including Harlow Green East, 
Allerdene, Elisabethville and Chopwell North. 

· transport access to 42 key employment sites in 
the NE within 30 minutes is worst in the more rural 
West, Inner West and South, but is also an issue 
for those living along the B1288 Leam Lane 
corridor. 

 
 

 
 
 

Investment Strategy & 
Resources 

21/22 Revenue 
(1% of Council 
gross budget) 

5 Year 
Capital 

Gross  Net   
£000 £000 £000 

6,450  646 154,912 

Commissioned Spend: tbc 
Assets: Asset Strategy Review 
Employees 137.38 FTE 
Figures based on 2022/23 budget setting 

 

Risks to Achievement rated after 
mitigation 

· Failure to attract inward 
investment and deliver 
sustainable economic growth 
Amber 

· The Council is hit by a Cyber-
attack that compromises 
confidentiality, integrity & 
availability of information Amber 

· Failure to address financial gap in 
the Council’s budget & systems 
Amber 

 
 
 
 
 

CREATE THE CONDITIONS FOR FAIR EMPLOYMENT AND GOOD WORK FOR ALL 

WHAT DO WE WANT TO ACHIEVE? – OUR OUTCOMES AND OUR PERFORMANCE  

P
age 24



 

Ensure a Healthy Standard of Living for All, in Accordance with International Law on Economic and Social Rights ANALYSIS – WHAT IS THIS TELLING US?   
What do we want to Achieve?  Our Outcomes 

· All working age residents receive a wage that considers the true cost of healthy living 
· Affordable childcare is accessible to those who need it 

 

CHALLENGES / AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT 
 
Strategic 

· Thrive: over 2 percentage point increase in those 
vulnerable. Fewer people managing or just coping. 

· Cost of living crisis is having significant impact on some 
residents ability to thrive and sustain tenancies. 

· Gap in annual household income between highest and 
lowest areas of Gateshead is widening, now £28,302. Using 
LIoN 2022 data and CACI Household Income data for 2022 
- average household income: 

o 10% most in need areas = £26,031 
o 10% least in need areas = £54,333 

 
Operational 

· Rent collected from tenants as a % of rent due to date is 
reducing, from 99.23% at the previous 6-month stage, to 
97.42%. Tenants in receipt of Universal Credit tend to have 
much higher rent arrears than those on Housing Benefit or 
not in receipt of benefit. The number in receipt of Universal 
Credit increased from 5,733 to 6,440 during the year. 

· Direct debits have previously been a more stable source of 
rent income, but we have seen a large increase in direct 
debit failures 

· Since April, Citizens Advice Gateshead and Council 
Housing Services have seen a dramatic rise in queries 
around food banks and charitable support, debt 
assessment and fuel supply issues from this group. 

· The guidance and allocation of funding from DWP has not 
been timely which has meant that each local scheme has 
had to be set up very quickly.  

 
 

AREAS OF EXCELLENCE 
Strategic 

· Energy roadshows delivered in partnership between the council, CAG and others have 
supported circa 200 residents over several weeks. 

· Teams have worked well across the Council, Citizens Advice Gateshead and the voluntary 
and community sector 
 

Operational 

· 75 Warm Spaces registered in Gateshead 

· Recruited the Strategic Locality Lead, the Co-ordinator, and the Connector for Locality 
Working 

· Number of people/families helped through locality partnership support to maximise their 
household income has increased substantially, from 650 for 2021-22 to 1143 during the first 
6-months of 2022-23 

· There was quick allocation of funds through existing systems e.g., Free School Meals and 
Local Council Tax Support Scheme  

· Payments that could be cashed at the post office was used for the first time following the 
positive experience of implementing the £150 Energy Rebate Scheme.  

· The grants to the Food Network helped to target those households who would not necessarily 
access Council support. 

· Administration of the £1.832m fund on 24 May 2022 for the period up to 30 September 2022: 
o £811,390 was allocated to support children eligible for free school meals. Over 7,800 

vouchers to cover the May half term and the summer holidays (7 weeks) 
o £582,940 of payments were made to over 8,500 pensioner households identified 

through data from Revenues and Benefits (Local Council Tax Support data). There 
were also direct referrals for those older people who are “just coping”.  An additional 
1,406 payments made, amounting to £70,300. 

o 1,421 Vouchers were issued to a mixture of households and this amounted to 
£150,275 from referrals from Citizens Advice Gateshead, Schools, Councillors and 
Council Services e.g., Neighbourhood Management, Council Tax, Benefits, Social 
Care etc.   

ACTIONS 
 
Strategic 

· Developing a fuel poverty action 
plan for Gateshead, work in 
progress 

· Ongoing development of locality 
working, and work to identify the 
assets within the areas. 

· The new round of the Household 
Support Scheme will run from 1 
October to 31 March 2023 

 
 
Operational 

· The DWP Household Support Fund 
has been extended until 31 March 
2023, providing £1,836,629.95 of 
funding. Local Authorities have 
discretion on exactly how this 
funding is used within the scope 
set out in the DWP guidance. 

· The Council is currently 
considering options to provide 
additional support to our most 
vulnerable families over the festive 
period, possibly in the form of 
hampers or additional food 
vouchers. 
 
 
 
 

SUMMARY  
What is this telling us about how we are performing across Gateshead? 
The cost-of-living crisis is already having a huge impact on residents household income and financial wellbeing, which is beginning to affect people’s 
standard of living and their ability to sustain tenancies. These issues are being experienced locally, regionally, and nationally due to several factors. The 
Council has been working well with residents and partners to support residents as much as possible as inequalities widen, the analysis highlights the efforts 
to support local people to increase their household income and manage the cost-of-living crisis. 
 
What will we be doing in response? 
The Council agreed a Motion on 21st July 2022 recognising that the increase in the cost of living constitutes an emergency for many. The DWP Household 
Support Fund has been extended until 31 March 2023 and we will deliver the scheme through a variety of routes including providing vouchers to 
households, making direct provision of food or goods, or issuing grants to third parties.  We are also considering ways to support the 227 properties within 
Council housing stock that we know are disconnected, particularly in circumstances that support maintaining connection and providing household support 
and addressing fuel poverty. 
 
Future Direction of Travel and Expectations over the next six months   
It is anticipated that the cost-of-living crisis will continue to negatively impact on the standard of living for many residents, particularly those who are more 
vulnerable. We will continue to support residents through locality working and the distribution of the £1,836,629.95 funding. Rent collection is expected to 
remain a significant challenge and rent arrears / income will also be impacted upon because of the cost-of-living crisis. 
 

RESOURCES 
 

· Two of the Transformation Areas as part of the budget 
approach are Assets and Locality Working which will 
make better use of assets to help support people 
through local hubs with ongoing advice being critical to 
local people. 

· A further area is through the review of Economy & 
Business considering the new Economic Strategy 
outcomes, the approach to jobs and support to 
businesses which can help local people to improve their 
income and standard of living through employment. 3-
year plan with savings identified for each year. 

· The DWP Household Support Fund has been extended 
until 31 March 2023, providing £1,836,629.95 of funding. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

· Individuals and families are supported to have the best possible financial well-being to access debt and 
social welfare advice to maximise household income and improve financial management skills 

 

P
age 25



 

Investment Strategy & Resources  

21/22 Revenue 8% 
of Council Budget 

5-Year 
Capital 

Gross Net  
£000 £000 £000 

49,775 596 TBC 

Commissioned spend: tbc 
Assets: Asset Strategy Review 
Employees: FTE (tbc 22/23) 
 
Figures based on 2022/23 budget setting 

 
 

Risks to Achievement 
rated after mitigation 

· Failure to attract inward 
investment and deliver 
sustainable economic growth 
Amber 

· The Council is hit by a Cyber-
attack that compromises 
confidentiality, integrity & 
availability of information 
Amber 

· Failure to address financial 
gap in the Council’s budget & 
systems Amber  

 
 
 
 

ENSURE A HEALTHY STANDARD OF LIVING FOR ALL, IN ACCORDANCE WITH INTERNATIONAL LAW ON ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL RIGHTS  
WHAT DO WE WANT TO ACHIEVE? – OUR OUTCOMES AND OUT PERFORMANCE– 

 

Outcome Intervention On track DoT Strategic Performance Baseline Latest Target DoT 
Operational 

Performance 
Baseline Latest Target DoT 

6991All working 
age residents 
receive a wage 
that considers 
the true cost of 
healthy living 
 
Individuals and 
families are 
supported to 
have the best 
possible 
financial well-
being to access 
debt and social 
welfare advice 
to maximise 
household 
income and 
improve 
financial 
management 
skills 
 

Affordable 
childcare is 
accessible to 
those who need 
it 

Intervention from 
Economic Strategy 
•Visitor Economy 
•Green Economy 
•Digital Economy 
•Local Economy 
(Community Wealth 
Building) 
e.g., Delivery of 
Gateshead Quays 
development 
including Conference 
and Exhibition Centre 
Gateshead Town 
Centre Regeneration 
Masterplan 
 
Locality working 
development 
 
Administration of 
grant funding to 
support low-income 
households 

Economic 
Strategy 
agreed and  
 
Quays and 
major 
projects 
progressing 
 
 
Locality 
working 
approach 
developing 
building on 
hub work 
with pilot 
planned 
 
 
Funding 
allocated 
with further 
funds to be 
distributed 
in 2022/23 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

All residents have the 
opportunity to thrive: 
% residents who are vulnerable 

39.5% 34.1% Reduce  

Number of people/ 
families helped through 
locality partnership 
support to maximise 
household income 

To be set 
when 

locality 
working 

established 

1,143 
To be 

set 
(22/23) 

Baseline 
to be set 

% residents who are just coping 29.5% 40% Tracking  

% residents who are managing 13.3% 15.9% Tracking  

Rent collected from 
tenants as a % of rent 
due in the financial year 

98.78% 
(2020/21) 

97.42% 98% 
+/- 2%  

% residents who are thriving 17.7% 10% Increase  Households in Council 
Tax arrears 

6,991 
(Baseline 
2021/22) 

No 
update 

available 

Reduce Annual 

% of population income 
deprived (IMD)  

16.7% 
(2019) 

No new 
data 

Reduce 
No new 

data 

£ Gap in average household 
income between highest and 
lowest areas of need in 
Gateshead 

£27,043 
(2021) 

£28,302 Reduce  

No of domestic 
properties supplied by 
District Energy Scheme 

800 TBC 389 10,000 Annual 

Average number of 
days taken to process 
Housing Benefits claims 
and changes 

8.91 
(Sep 20) 

5.34 
(2021/22) 

Reduce  
Annual Households in Fuel Poverty (%) 

15.1% 
(2019) 

14.2% 
(2020) 

Reduce  

Gap in life expectancy at birth 
male/female Inequality in life 
expectancy at birth for Males / 
Females 

10.7 (M)            
9.6 (F)           

(2017-19) 

10.8 (M) 
8.8 (F)                                                   

(2018-20) 
Tracking 

 

 
 Average days taken to 

process Council Tax 
support claims and 
changes 

13.98 
(Sep 20) 

7.6 
(2021/22) 

Reduce  
Annual 

 

 

Qualitative Impact 

· Behind the masks, Gateshead’s Covid 
stories, Gateshead Director of Public 
Health highlighted that, inequalities 
had worsened during the pandemic 
and that low-income households were 
particularly impacted. 

· Build on hub working success which 
has provided lessons and learning on 
supporting vulnerable local people in 
accessing the support they need 
including services and financial 
support. 

 

 
 
 

 

Geographic Impact 
Explore the data 

 
LIoN data shows… 

· there are clusters of areas with low income 
households (<£15k annually) in Teams, Felling 
and High Fell with other individual areas 
elsewhere. 

· many of the neighbourhoods that on average have 
high Council tax arrears are located in the urban 
centre of Gateshead. Areas slightly further afield 
include Beacon Lough East, Springwell Estate, 
Birtley, Barley Mow and Chopwell North. 

· many households in fuel poverty are in/around 
Felling and Deckham. Other areas are Bensham 
West, Springwell Estate, Elisabethville, Winlaton 
East, Bleach Green North and Chopwell South. 

 
 
 
 

P
age 26



 

RESOURCES 
 

· Budget reviews will address longer term challenges with a focus on 
delivering Council services differently and managing demand.  

· 30-year costed, affordable and sustainable HRA Business Plan 
approved by Cabinet and has a £3.5mefficiencies target built in for 
2022/2026. This includes capacity to deliver new affordable homes 
together with the objectives of the HRA Asset Strategy. 

· Demand for debt advice is increasing. Partnership activity underway 
with CAG. Demand for assistance with energy bills is also increasing. 

· Transition from Tyne and Wear Homes to Gateshead Home Choice 
requires a transfer of customer data (10,000+ application records) 
from the Tyne and Wear IT system to Gateshead’s system. 

· Ensure effective implementation and delivery of the Housing 
Improvement Plan. 

 
 
 
 

· Gateshead has clean air with low levels of pollution 

· Gateshead has low levels of crime and anti-social behaviour 

· Gateshead is carbon neutral by 2030 

 

 

SUMMARY  
What is this telling us about how we are performing across Gateshead? 
Requests and referrals for advice and support with bills have increased. Targets for reduction in vacant property rent loss will not be achieved  
The challenge for community safety is the cost-of-living crisis. Increasing crime and ASB, more domestic-related incidents, potential for more drug-
related deaths as more and more individuals and families struggle to make ends meet. Then there’s also the exploitation side. There is the possibility 
that more organised groups could exploit individuals and communities (e.g., increased loan shark activity, vulnerable individuals being financially 
exploited, that sort of thing). 

What will we be doing in response? 
Over the next 18 months, our capacity, skill base, and responsiveness will increase so that we offer a much-improved repairs service for our tenants. 
Range of support measures for residents in relation to energy charges (see areas of excellence above). Actions are in place to recruit to vacant posts 
in Construction Services and to increase the number of vacant properties being repaired. Lettings teams are ready to advertise more properties. 
Feedback from members, residents and repairs is being used to support a bid submission to the Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund (SHDF); The 
triangulated data along with energy performance metrics have been used to identify properties where a SHDF bid could supplements HRA funding – 
interventions to improve the thermal efficiency of these properties would reduce the number of repairs, increase the affordability of the properties and 
ensure the long-term sustainability of both tenancies and the homes (bid will be submitted in November 2022, if successful works will be delivered 
2023-25). More vacant properties to be made ready to reduce vacant property rent loss and support applicants into new homes. The impact of the 
changes taking place right now will take some time before tenants see the full benefits.  

Future Direction of Travel and Expectations over the next six months   
Community safety data suggests violence against the person and serious acquisitive crime have reduced. Overall crime is still lower than pre-
pandemic and ASB is approximately where expected, however, this is expected to change. 
 

CHALLENGES / AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT 
Strategic 

· Cost of living crisis is having significant impact on council tenants’ ability to thrive and sustain tenancies.  

· There has been an increase in the number of people in urgent housing need since April 2022. The current 
number of vacant properties has increased. There are plans in place to increase the numbers of properties 
available to let each week and reduce the numbers of voids in repairs. 

· The Tyne and Wear lettings scheme will be disbanded in the coming months and a new Gateshead system 
established. There are plans in place to manage the transition. The nature of the partnership with local 
Registered Providers of social housing under the new arrangements is in development. 

Operational 

· Recent events, including the Covid-19 pandemic, and the series of severe storms last winter, had 
increased demand for home repairs in Gateshead to an unprecedented level. 

· Construction Service (CS) are making sweeping changes to improve the level of customer service we offer. 

· Demand for debt advice is increasing & energy bill referrals is also increasing. 

· There are an increased number of urgent rehousing cases. 

· Management of the transition for the new lettings system  

· Public transport passenger journeys for 21/22 impacted by Covid 

· The latest summary contamination figure for FY2022/23 is a 15.22% contamination rate, which shows a 
marginal improvement and positive direction for travel. 

· The first quarter FY2022/23 recycling rate figure is 37.5% which shows a promising although no guarantee 
of a sustained improvement at this stage. 

· Anecdotal information suggests many crimes/incidents are going under-reported as some feel reporting is a 
waste of time as nothing will be done. 

· Target of 100,000 trees on Council land by 2030 and is achievable subject to unlocking the identified 
Council owned strategic woodland planting sites.  Issues currently with some of the identified sites being 
occupied by third parties (e.g., farmers) and there being no lease/licence agreement in place. The 
person(s) occupying the land can claim adverse possession owing to the length of time they have occupied 
the site. The other main challenge is around capacity however the Woodland Creation Accelerator Fund 
funded posts should go some way to addressing this. Must be mindful of the number of trees lost/removed 
by the Council – the 100,000 target should constitute a net increase against the number of standing trees 
on Council land at the time of the target being set. Last planting season we planted 15,500 trees at 
Whitehills, have since lost approx. half to drought and vandalism. All losses will be replaced this planting 
season and the next two planting seasons in line with the requirements of the funding agreement. 

AREAS OF EXCELLENCE 
Strategic 

· Assistance to tenants in response to 
rising energy bills, working in partnership 
with agencies such as 2 Way Tenancy 
Solutions. 

 
Operational 
· Construction Services have listened 

carefully to what our tenants had to say 
about their experiences in engaging with 
our repairs and maintenance service, and 
we are investing heavily in improving the 
service to meet their expectations 

· Emergency top ups for prepayment 
meters 

· Increased grant applications to have 
energy arrears reduced 

· Support for residents with prepayment 
meters with unexpected standing charges 

· Support for gas-capped residents 
· Focus on lettings to relieve pressure on 

B&B and temporary accommodation 
· Completion and occupation of 82 extra 

care apartments at Watergate Court 
Lobley Hill, enabling older people to live 
in good quality accommodation with some 
support where necessary to meet their 
needs. 

· Building new affordable homes for 
Gateshead residents at Whitley Court 
including new family homes and 
supported apartments and bungalows to 
enable individuals to live independently. 

ACTIONS 
Strategic 

· Ongoing contribution to council response to cost of living and 
energy bills 

· Move towards Gateshead Home Choice to replace Tyne & Wear 
Homes, end March 2023 

· Investigating the potential to convert council garages which are in 
poor repair and attracting anti-social behaviour into energy efficient 
bungalows. An ongoing review of the land and assets the Council 
holds, to maximise potential and where possible to develop new 
homes. 

Operational 

· CS aim to complete a repair, or multiple repairs, on the first visit to 
a home, particularly if they relate to the same trade. If CS can’t 
complete first time, we keep you the tenant updated until complete. 

· Out of hours, CS aim to complete a repair, rather than just make a 
home safe & have to return at a later date. 

· CS are piloting evening appointments 1 day per week. If 
successful, CS will add additional days. 

· CS have introduced a Customer Promise that sets out the standard 
of service customers can expect from CS & sub-contractors.  

· CS are increasing recruitment to make sure CS have sufficient staff 
with the right skills to deliver a customer focused service. 

· CS are investing in comprehensive ongoing staff training, with a 
focus on performance management. 

· Advice and support and referrals for tenants struggling to pay bills 

· Extraction of a Gateshead Housing Register from the Tyne and 
Wear register Nov/Dec 22. 

· The Community Safety Board is proposing a suite of measures to 
monitor to help understand the impact this is having on 
communities in Gateshead. Also, launching a domestic abuse 
campaign later this month, which aims to encourage more victims 
to come forward; we’re testing a new way of tackling anti-social 
behaviour and supporting both victims of ASB and those causing 
ASB so, where possible, we are resolving the issue at the first time 
of asking. 

 

       Create and Develop Healthy and Sustainable Communities and Places - ANALYSIS – WHAT IS THIS TELLING US?         
What do we want to Achieve? – Our Outcomes 

· Local communities and social networks are strong 

· All residents have access to a high quality, affordable, warm and energy efficient home 

· All communities have access to good quality natural environment 

 

P
age 27



 
Outcome Intervention On track DoT Strategic Performance Baseline Latest Target DoT Operational Performance Baseline Latest Target DoT 

Local 
communities 
and social 
networks are 
strong 
 
All residents 
have access to 
a high quality, 
affordable, 
warm and 
energy 
efficient home 
 
All 
communities 
have access to 
good quality 
natural 
environment 
 
Gateshead has 
clean air with 
low levels of 
pollution 
 
Gateshead has 
low levels of 
crime and anti-
social 
behaviour 
 
 
Gateshead is 
carbon neutral 
by 2030 
definitely 
 

· Support development of 
community activities - remove 
barriers to community 
participation & support people to 
be involved locally and develop 
Community Wealth Building. 
Completion of workstream on 
locality working. 

· Ensure provision of homes to 
meet current and future needs  

· Promote low carbon housing 
development and improve 
insulation to Council owned 
properties and install low carbon 
heat and energy where feasible 

· Improve and invest in the local 
environment and increase 
woodland coverage by 250ha by 
2050 

· Make Gateshead accessible to 
all, achieving a shift to 
sustainable forms of travel and 
increase Council use of low 
carbon vehicles  

· Support agile working by 
expanding use of digital tech, 
minimise paper & reduce the 
need for staff to travel 

· Promote community cohesion + 
prevention of crime & anti-social 
behaviour. 

· Take forward Climate Change 
Strategy 

· Continue to deliver low carbon 
heat and power via district 
heating networks 

· Identifying funding to assist with 
recycling & waste minimisation 
projects & implement behavioural 
change initiatives 

· Ensure goods & services 
procured by the Council are 
compatible with our Climate 
Emergency commitments 

Community 
wealth building 
progressing 
 
 
 
Closer to 
housing 
requirement but 
not yet at target 
 
 
Environment 
investment 
schemes 
delivered 
 
 
Electric feet 
vehicles on 
order but supply 
issues persist 
 
 
 
Consultation 
progressing 
District Heating 
Scheme 
progressing 
 
 
Commissioning 
Strategy 
implementation 
 

 % satisfaction with neighbourhood 
as a place to live 

64% 
No new  

data 
Increase 

No 
data 

% of Council housing stock 
empty for 6 months 

0.55% 0.54% Reduce 
 

No. of homes built against annual 
housing requirement 

301 
(2019/20) 

373 Increase  
Annual 

Activity to support community 
capacity building 

Measure to be defined 2022/23 

% of new homes built that are 
affordable 

13.8% 
(2020/21) 

18% Increase 
 
 

Annual 

No. of private dwellings identified 
as having a Category 1 hazard 
and No. had this hazard removed 

To be set 
at year 

end 

137 / 
87 

0 
No new 
Data - 
Annual 

% of homes (remaining tenures) 
empty for 6 months or more 

2.3% 
(2019) 

No new 
data 

Reduce 
No 

data 
Annual 

% of Council commercial fleet 
operating on electricity 

2% 5% Increase 
 

Gap in life expectancy at birth 
male/female: Slope index of 
inequality 

10.7 (M)          
9.6 (F) 

(2017-19) 

10.8 (M) 
 8.8 (F) 

(2018-20) 
Reduce 

 
Progress towards GMBC being 
carbon neutral by 2030 (% 
achieved as per annual audit 
external assessment) 

70% 75% 
100% 

Cumulati
ve 

 
Annual 

 

Number of homes with zero 
carbon heat source 

To be set No data To be set 
No 

data 

No of trees planted on Council 
land per annum towards target 0 

2,759 
Cumulat

ive 

100,000 
by 2030 

 
Annual 

% of Council homes that meet the 
Decent Homes Standard 

94.46% 
(2020/21) 

96.2% 
(2021/22) 

Increase  
Annual 

% repairs completed within 
timescales: 
Highways (within 10 days) 

71% 

(21/22) 
76% 

 

> 90% 

  

% of functional green space 
amenable to healthy lifestyles in 
the 25% most deprived wards  

Measure to be defined 2022/23 – based on 
Marmot 

% repairs completed within 
timescales: Streetlights (within 5 
days) 

91% 
(21/22) 

96% > 90%  

Number of public transport 
passenger journeys in Gateshead 
(millions) 

26.749 
(2020/21) 

17.828 
(2021/22) 

Increase  
Annual 

Council emissions reduction from 
2008 baseline 

0% 
(2008) 

63.6% 100%  
Annual 

Gateshead areas compliance with 
Local Air Quality Management 
Framework  

Compliant Compliant Compliant Annual % of the overall tonnage in 
recycled waste collected that is 
contaminated with non-
recyclable materials 

15.8% 
(20/21) 

15.22% 
(April-Sept 

22) 

13% 
Increase 
over 3 
years 

 
% of household waste sent for 
reuse, recycling and composting 

32.3% 
(Jun 21) 

37.5% 
(April-Sept 

22)  

Towards 
50%  

 

Total recorded crime in 
Gateshead  

227.4 per 
1,000 pop 
(2021/22) 

No data 
released 

Reduce  

% of homes with SAP energy 
rating score above 65 

64% 

62.75% 
(Local Auth 

90% 
Housing 

assoc. 72%. 
Owner-

occupied 
41%.                

Private rented 
48%) 

Increase 
 

Recorded instances to the police 
of violence against the person 

43.7 per 
1,000 pop 
(2021/22) 

No data 
released 

Reduce  

Serious acquisitive crime 
incidents (excluding shoplifting)  

4.8 per   
1,000 pop 
(2021/22) 

No data 
released 

Reduce  

Anti-social Behaviour (All 
incidents 

38.4 per 
1,000 pop 
(2021/22) 

14.1 per 
1,000 pop 
(April-Sept 

22) 

Reduce 

 

Anti-social Behaviour (All 
incidents NOT youth related  

40.1 per 
1,000 pop 
(2021/22) 

13.5 per 
1,000 pop 

April-Sept 22 
Reduce 

 
 Risks to Achievement rated after mitigation 

· Failure to address financial gap in the Council’s budget & 
systems Amber 

· Failure to provide a response during major incident impact 
on ability to deliver critical services or impact on a 
community. Green 

· The implications of EU Exit potentially affecting availability 
of resources to deliver services which may impact on 
communities Amber 

· Failure to manage demand/expectations could result in the 
Council not achieving its Thrive agenda Amber 

 
 

Geographic Impact  Explore the data 
LIoN data shows… 

· there is high housing turnover in and around the centre of Gateshead. 
Outside of that Blaydon also shows significantly high turnover rates. 

· many of the areas with high victims of crime rates are central, within 
Bensham, Deckham and Felling, and also within High Fell and the 
Chowdene area. 

· housing is generally less affordable in the most in need areas of 
Gateshead, although there are some exceptions such as Glebe West and 
Barley Mow. 

· Although access to usable open space may be seen as an issue for built 
up areas, it can affect rural areas such as Crawcrook South. 

 
 

Qualitative Impact 

· Director of Public Health Annual report 
“Behind the Mask” identified the 
importance of good public space and 
homes to health and wellbeing and mental 
health.   

· The report highlighted how communities 
came together more during the pandemic 
strengthening local areas and people 
found new meaning in volunteering. 

Investment Strategy & Resources 
(25% of Council gross budget) 

22/23 Revenue  
5 Year 
Capital 

Gross Net  

£000 £000 £000 

158,815 28,236 113,672 
Commissioned Spend: tbc 
Assets: Asset Strategy Review 
Employees 1206.46 FTE Figures based 
on 2022/23 budget setting 
 

CREATE AND DEVELOP HEALTHY AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES AND PLACES  
                       WHAT DO WE WANT TO ACHIEVE? – OUR OUTCOMES AND OUR PERFORMANCE 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 28



 

CHALLENGES / AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT 
 

Strategic  

· Significant service disruption / distraction remains post-
pandemic. Several measures were not collected during the 
pandemic while some activities were stopped due to the need 
to social distance as well as prioritise public health resource to 
tackle the pandemic while the impact is showing an increase in 
equalities – DoPH Annual report “Behind the masks, 
Gateshead’s Covid stories, Gateshead Director of Public Health 
Annual Report 2021/22”. 

· Actions as set out for each of the 4 aims within New 
Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy. 

· Delivery of the Homelessness and Allocations Review (March 
2023). 

Social care focus on supporting the most vulnerable during the 
pandemic. 

Operational 

· Lack of suitable or appropriate accommodation and support 
for those who are homeless or at risk of homelessness 

· Lack of direct access into appropriate emergency and crisis 
accommodation. 

· No existing ‘Gateway’ model to access accommodation and 
support We have a manual spreadsheet to manage currently.  

 
 

AREAS OF EXCELLENCE 
Strategic 

· Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy agreed by Cabinet January 2022. 

· Homelessness Charter formally launched March 2022. 

· Implementation of Changing Futures Programme has begun Campbell Tickell contracted for 
Homelessness and Allocations Review. Joint cross department Project Team Meetings 
established.  

· Bids successful for RSI and RSAP funding and funding allocated to Home Group to improve 
response for victims of domestic abuse. 

· Supported Housing Improvement Programme (SHIP) funding bid submitted. 

Operational 

· Implementation of homelessness prototype via the Changing Futures Programme.  

· Proactive approach to homelessness prevention beyond statutory requirement. 

· Partnership working established linked to homeless pathway for offenders and ex-offenders. 

· Strong partnership arrangements with Oasis Community Housing in supporting those at risk of 
homelessness and rough sleeping with multiple or complex needs; including health offer 
improving access to health care for rough sleepers/those at risk of rough sleeping (nurse 
practitioner post in Basis and part funded Mental Health worker with Mental Health Matters). 

· Implementation of fortnightly rough sleeper action group, which is multi-agency 
coordination/case management including health partners. 

· Delivery of private rented sector funded project supporting ex-offenders with accommodation. 

· Delivery of existing RSI and NSAP funded accommodation programmes. 

· Winter Flu Vaccination Programme & successful approaches to deliver Covid-19 vaccines with 
our partners. 

 

ACTIONS 
Strategic 

· Implementation of actions outlined in new Strategy, 
which sets out our four key strategic aims to tackle 
homelessness. 

· Completing actions within our Homelessness and 
Allocations Project Plan, including remodelling and 
recommissioning homelessness accommodation plus 
supporting and developing a Homelessness Gateway. 

· Implementation of the Changing Futures Programme. 

· Respond to the COVID-19 pandemic and continue to 
identify short and long-term impacts – DoPH Annual 
Report. 

· Ongoing development of Locality Working. 

Operational 

· Work together to remodel and recommission provision 
and develop a Gateway model.  

· Continue to embed and develop partnership working. 

· Further develop homeless prototype approach linked to 
implementation of Changing Futures programme. 

· New Mosaic Social Care System being developed for 
Adult Social Care and now due to be live in Q4 2022/23. 
This will help to streamline processes and payments 
improving the service to social care users and carers. 

 

SUMMARY  
What is this telling us about how we are performing across Gateshead? 
The pandemic had a significant impact on the ability to deliver services, with some being disrupted, ceased or reduced in order to direct 
resources to dealing with the pandemic. Post pandemic, there is significant demand on homelessness services; the new strategy will 
support the service and partner agencies to respond to all the needs of those facing homelessness and rough sleeping in addressing 
the underlying causes of homelessness and provide appropriate accommodation and support. Ill health prevention by its nature considers 
the longer-term impacts of health and tackling issues that can result in poorer outcomes over the course of a lifetime. This means it can 
take a while for changes at population level to be seen. The pandemic response has had to be prioritised with resources being diverted 
to support this.   
 
What will we be doing in response? 
Delivering on the 4 key aims and associated actions within the new Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy, which include 
remodelling and recommissioning accommodation and support as well as developing a gateway to support any new model. This will be 
delivered in 22/23 through the Homelessness & Allocations Review.  

We are still responding meaning the full impact in the longer terms still needs to be determined. A key area will be focusing on the 
response and recovery from the pandemic, focusing on ill health prevention. Ongoing development of locality working; recruited the 
Strategic Locality Lead, the Co-ordinator, and the Connector  - working to identify the assets within the areas. 
 
Future Direction of Travel and Expectations over the next six months   
A new Allocations Policy and a new Tenancy Strategy have been created as part of the Homelessness and Allocations Review and will 
go to Cabinet for approval in October 2023. We are also developing a Gateshead Allocations Model, undertaking homelessness 
remodelling/recommissioning and developing a ‘marketplace’ and ‘homelessness gateway’ (by March 23).  

Responding to the pandemic will be a focus in the short term over the next 6 months along with understanding the longer-term impacts. 

 

Ill Health Prevention - ANALYSIS – WHAT IS THIS TELLING US?  
What do we want to Achieve – Our Outcomes 

· All preventable ill health is reduced, to end the gap in inequalities within the borough 

· To prevent and end homelessness, in all forms in Gateshead  

RESOURCES 

· Earlier intervention can help to reduce health inequalities faced in later life and improve 
health and wellbeing outcomes, which can help to reduce demand for services. 
Gateshead Council is one of ten local authorities to receive £5m over 5 years to 
increase capability and capacity for research into  health inequalities  

· Two of the Priority Based Transformation Areas as part of the budget approach are 
Adults Social Care and Housing Improvement which will directly inform this priority 
objective.   

· Locality Working to be piloted, short term will support early intervention with longer 
term goal of improving life chances and reducing dependence on council services. 

· Homelessness funding subject to annual grant allocations makes long term investment 
decisions difficult £0.5m 2021/22 and confirmed as same for 2022/23. Consultation 
ongoing regarding Homeless Prevention Grant (HPG), further details to be provided. 
During the pandemic specific additional funding has been provided to ensure we can 
meet our obligations £0.080m 2020/21, 2021/22 £0.239m. 

· Successful funding bid for accommodation for ex-offenders totalled £66,707.  

· Rough Sleeping Initiative Funding (RSI) funding secured to 2025 (joint bid with South 
Tyneside). Gateshead allocation is £1.85m over three years.  

· RSAP funding secured to 2024, to deliver 4 units (in partnership with Tyne Housing) 
with support for rough sleepers with complex needs. This is additional to the 15 
properties already provided through previous successful funding bids. 

 

· All residents will be able to access flexible health and care support, when and where they need it 
 

P
age 29



 

Qualitative Impact 

· People living in the most deprived areas of England have seen a 
significant recent decrease in life expectancy (LE). The upcoming new 
data release will include the period of COVID and indicate the impact 
of this period on LE.  

• Areas with higher deprivation also have larger differences in LE 
between males & females than areas with lower deprivation 
(difference most deprived females to males 4.8yrs, compared to 3.1yrs 
least deprived). 

· Females living in most deprived areas expected to live less than two-
thirds (66.3%) of their lives in good general health (three-quarters for 
males), compared with 82.0% in least deprived areas.  

 

 
 

Investment Strategy & 
Resources 

22/23 Revenue (4% 
of the Council’s 
gross budget) 

5 Year 
Capital 

Gross  Net   

£000 £000 £000 

23,425 15,282 835 
Commissioned Spend: tbc 
Assets: Asset Strategy Review 
Employees: 263.23 FTE (tbc)  
Figures based on 2022/23 budget 
setting 

Risks to Achievement rated after mitigation 

· Failure to safeguard vulnerable children & adults Amber 

· Non-compliance with statutory requirements resulting in 
prosecution & penalties Amber 

· Council suffers Cyber-attack that compromises 
confidentiality, integrity & availability of information Amber 

· Failure to manage demand & expectations could result in 
the Council not achieving Thrive agenda Amber 

· Failure to address financial gap in the Council’s budget & 
systems Amber 

· Failure to provide a response during a major incident 
impacting on ability to deliver critical services or an impact 
on a community. Green 

 

 

Outcome Intervention On track DoT    Strategic Performance Baseline Latest Target DoT 
Operational 
Performance 

Baseline Latest Target DoT 

All 
preventable 
ill health is 
reduced, to 
end the gap 
in 
inequalities 
within the 
borough 
 
No-one will 
be homeless 
or living in 
accommodat
ion that does 
not provide a 
safe and 
healthy 
environment 
 
 
 
All residents 
will be able 
to access 
flexible 
health and 
care support, 
when and 
where they 
need it 

Develop and 
implement 
Health and 
Wellbeing 
Review  
 
Accelerate 
preventative 
programmes;  
 
Deliver 
Community 
Based 
approaches as 
a core principle;  
 
Learn lessons 
from the 
pandemic;  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Embed health 
inequalities 
within, wider 
public services 
& recovery 
plans 
 
ASC 
interventions 
And ASC 
Budget 
implementation 
 

Health and 
Wellbeing 
review 
progressing 
 
 
 
 
Locality 
working 
approach 
developing 
building on 
hubs 
 
Lessons 
being 
learned and 
impact being 
understood 
 
 
 
 
Approach 
being 
developed 
including 
delivery of 
Health and 
Wellbeing 
Strategy 
with partners 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Gap in life expectancy at birth male/female: Slope 
index of inequality (Annual) 

10.7 (M) 
9.6 (F)             

2017-19 

 
10.8 (M)                
8.8 (F)                                                   

2018-20 
 

Tracking 

 
 

Population vaccination 
coverage - Flu (aged 
65+) 
Compared to England 
rate as baseline 

80.9 
(England 
2019/20) 

83.5 
(2020/21) 

Increase  
Annual 

 

Estimated smoking prevalence Cardiovascular 
Disease Compared to England average as 
baseline 

15.9%       
(England    
2020/21) 

16.9% 
(Newcastle/ 

Gateshead ICG 
2020/21) 

Reduce from 
17.5%          
(19/20)  

 
Annual 

Age standardised 
mortality rate for deaths 
related to drug misuse - 
persons by local 
authority 

28                    
(2019) 

26                              
(2021) 

Reduce  
Annual 

Suicide rate Public Health Profiles 
Compared to England rate as baseline 

10.4 
(England  
2018-20) 

 
9.6 

(England      
2019-21) 

 

Reduce  
Annual 

Chlamydia detection 
rate / 100,000 aged 15 
to 24 Compared to 
England rate as 
baseline 

1,408 
(England 

2020) 

1,334                             
(2021) 

Reduce  
Annual 

Admission episodes for alcohol-specific 
conditions - Under 18s Compared to England rate 
as baseline 

239.3 per 100,000    
(England     
2017/18-     
2019/20) 

50.8 per  100,000 
(2018/19 - 
2020/21) 

Reduce  
Annual 

The proportion of older 
people (aged 65 and 
over) who were still at 
home 91 days after 
discharge from hospital 
into reablement/ 
rehabilitation services 

 
 

77.97% 
2020/21 

(provisional) 

77.4%   
(22/23)      

(Sep Q2) 
Increase  

Annual 

Under 75 mortality rate - Cancer considered 
preventable 
Compared to England rate as baseline 

51.5             
(England          

2020) 

76.7              
(latest data    

2020) 
Reduce  

Annual 

% of clients using 
technology assisted 
care 

Reporting to be developed during 2022/23 
when Mosaic system goes live 

Total households assessed who are owed a duty, 
who were sleeping rough at the time of 
application 

35 8 Reduce 
 

Total households 
initially assessed as 
owed a homeless duty 

824 
(2020/21 
baseline 

used) 

729 
households 
assessed - 

721  

To be 
set  

(A) % of households where homeless prevention 
duty ended that maintained / secured 
accommodation for 6+mths. 

(B) % of these identified maintained/secured 
accommodation that remained in existing 
accommodation. 

(A) 54%      
                                                                                                                                                                                

(B) 15%        
remained in existing  

accommodation 

(A) 52% 
 

(B) 21%    
remained in 

existing 
accommodation 

2020/21  
data used 

to formulate 
baseline 

 
 
 

 

% of council dwellings 
with a valid gas safety 
certificate 

99.80% 99.9% 100%  
Annual 

Person shaped measures used in locality working 
TBC 

Baseline to be set at end  of Year 1 TBC 2022/23 data to be used to formulate 

 

Geographic Impact 
Explore the data - LIoN data shows… 
· High levels of alcohol related hospital admissions 

are evident in many of the most in need areas of 
Gateshead. However, there are also large 
proportions of higher risk drinkers in least in need 
areas such as Stella, Crawcrook South, Sunniside, 
Whitehills, Low Fell East, and Wardley Central. 

· neighbourhoods with high densities of obesity are 
spread out across Gateshead. 

· smokers are more likely to be towards the east of 
Gateshead in areas like Deckham, Felling, and 
High Fell. Other areas include Allerdene, Harlow 
Green, Elisabethville, and Winlaton East. 

 
 

 

STRENGTHEN THE ROLE AND IMPACT OF ILL HEALTH PREVENTION 
WHAT DO WE WANT TO ACHIEVE? – OUR OUTCOMES AND OUR PERFORMANCE 

 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 30



ORGANISATIONAL HEALTHCHECK – BALANCED SCORECARD – SUMMARY OF PERFORMANCE 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACTIONS 
Strategic 

· Employee survey to be undertaken, hopefully during 2023 subject to budget 

approval for this. Also looking at a framework of engagement activity which will 

cover all employees; this is likely to include a combination of frontline visits, 

virtual focus groups and 15- to-1 sessions with leaders within the organisation. 

Recently recruited a Senior Communications & Engagement Officer to oversee 

internal communications, propose new ways of working, consult and develop 

engagement activity and repurpose the current offer based upon this. This role 

will work closely with Human Resources and Workforce development. 

Several actions identified to address root causes that are driving recruitment 

and retention problems across the Council are subject to the budget review, as 

resourcing of this activity will impact upon delivery. The actions identified are 

those within the Workforce Strategy. 

· Leavers and stayers interviews have been designed. Roll out of a new format 
and collation of data is the next step of the process. 

· Progress and delivery of fundamental budget reviews and Transformational 
Budget. 

· HR are continuing to work closely with managers to manage attendance in 
relation to both short & long-term absence, including increased referrals to 
Occupational Health. Additional training is also being delivered to managers 
where this would be beneficial. 

· Looking at number of corporate workstreams, including the budget consultation 
framework, with a view to making this accessible to all. 

· Actions to build understanding of the impact of the cost of living, including debt, 
crisis are included in a separate report on Welfare Support.   

Operational 

· Support Gateshead businesses to respond to tendering opportunities to help 
increase the amount of local spend through Council contracts. 

· The Council is working on a 'borough-wide' survey for residents, which it is 
hoped will be issued in 2023. 

· Work is ongoing to improve the uniformity of how call handling is managed 
across the Council. The new telephony system will provide an opportunity to 
re-baseline this measure. 

· Agree and take forward approach to consultation with communities to 
understand view of their area and Council services. 

 

CHALLENGES / AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT 
Strategic 

· The Councils percentage staff turnover 2021/22 was 12.74%. This is lower than 
the national average and lower than the average for public sector organisations, 
which had a labour turnover rate of 15.6%.  While the highest number of leavers 
is due to resignation, the Council currently do not and have not, to date, the ability 
to capture the reason for the resignation.  

· Challenges of delivering the Medium-Term Financial Strategy budget gap and 
delivering intervention to enable people in Gateshead to Thrive. 

· Continue to ensure adequate assurance coverage of key risks as Council 
processes change to reflect different ways of working, objectives and reducing 
funding envelopes. 

· Embed and fully exploit the capabilities provided by the Fraud Data Sharing Hub 
in conjunction with Durham and Newcastle Councils, which is due to go live in 
the coming months. 

· Sickness absence days per FTE has increased from 10.58 baseline in July 2021, 
to 11.3 at 21/22 6-month stage, to 12.32 days for the period from 1 April 2021 to 
31 March 2022. 

· Regulator of Social Housing Consumer Standards compliance is continually 
progressing.  The result will show Progressing until we fully complete all 
outstanding actions & total compliance with the Regulatory Standards is met. 
Work is ongoing with regular reporting and monitoring taking place. 

· There has been an increase in the number of corporate complaints upheld after 
Chief Executive review. Of the 25 Reviews of Corporate Complaints undertaken 
to date, 6 (24%) were upheld and 19 (76%) were not upheld. 

· There were 5 final decisions made by the Ombudsman following the investigation 
of complaints against the Council. 3 were not upheld and 2 were upheld with the 
Council required to pay compensation. 

Operational 

· A dip in performance in Adult Social Care and Housing telephony contact 
response has been due to a combination of lack of available resource and high 
demand - which is being addressed. 

 

AREAS OF EXCELLENCE 
Strategic 

· There have been two senior manager conferences held 
in the past six months.  These sessions provide are an 
opportunity for senior leaders within the organisation to 
gather to discuss organisational challenges, share future 
ways of working and cascade corporate updates. A series 
of sessions have now been established over the next 12 
months 

· Online payments continue to increase due to general 
trend and impact of coronavirus.   

· There is a steady increase in the proportion of 
transactions. 

· The Council is supporting people who find it difficult to 
access online services.  

· Delivery of the Audit Work Programme agreed with the 
Audit & Standards Committee all within Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards. 

· Adequate achievement of the audit plan to inform the 
Chief Internal Auditors annual opinion to support the 
Annual Governance Assurance Process. 

· The volume of compliments received about the council 
has increased by around 30%. 

Operational 

· Employees are being encouraged to report health & 
safety near misses, so the increase is positive and means 
higher reporting can lead to identification of particular 
issues and improvements meaning a safer workplace.  

· Average telephony contact response rate has remained 
stable at 86%. 

· The volume of compliments continues to increase, from 
78 at the previous 6-month stage, to 131. 

 

WHAT DO WE WANT TO ACHIEVE – OUR OUTCOMES 
Employees 
Ø Employee satisfaction – Gateshead Council a great place to work 
Ø Diverse & inclusive workforce 
Ø Maximising Employee Potential – opportunities to learn, develop and aid succession planning 
Finance, Governance & Risk 
Ø Revenue Budget, Capital Budget; HRA; Income received, Risk 

SUMMARY  
What is this telling us about how we are performing across Gateshead? 
Performance has continued to be impacted by the lasting effects of the pandemic. While the expansion of the digital customer experience continues to progress, 
recruitment and retention issues continue to pose a challenge for the Council. Self-serve digital interaction with the Council is growing but customer contact via 
telephone remains high. This is despite the introduction of avenues to work more seamlessly with other support providers, such as direct access to Citizens Advice 
Gateshead, in order to provide better support to residents. 

What will we be doing in response? 
Our approach to continual improvement in the employee experience (i.e. ‘What it feels like to work for Gateshead Council’) ‘’, resulting in Gateshead being a great 
place to work, are subject to the culture at the Council and improving all factors of the employee life cycle, which includes, but is not limited to: how we attract and 
recruit; how we onboard, induct and help people settle in; what we pay; how we recognise and reward people; what benefits we provide for employees; the 
systems we operate to enable our employees and managers; what opportunity there is for personal growth etc. The Workforce Strategy and Plan outlines the 
areas of work needed to deliver against the outcomes in the performance management framework aimed at making Gateshead a great place to work. However, 
it should be noted that the resourcing of the delivery of the Strategy and Plan to achieve the outcomes sought is subject to the budget review. 

Future Direction of Travel and Expectations over the next six months 
Workforce Strategy and improvements to recruitment and retention should help to address current workforce issues. It is anticipated that widening inequalities 
and the cost-of-living crisis will impact further impact on resident’s wellbeing; a borough-wide survey is in development. 

RESOURCES 

The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy was reported to Cabinet on 
25 October. The MTFS estimates a £55m financial gap over the medium 
term, a worsening position due to significant pressures manifesting over the 
last six to twelve months in inflation, pay, utilities and cost of living. Although 
the financial context continues to be challenging and uncertain the Council 
has a strong track record of meeting its financial obligations and maintaining 
financial sustainability through delivery within budget. A Council wide 
approach to the budget, which is priority driven and over a medium-term 
planning horizon will ensure that this continues to be the case. 

Customer Experience 
Ø Thrive – reduce the number of residents vulnerable or just coping 
Ø Resident’s satisfaction with Gateshead and Gateshead Council 
Ø Improved customer experience through better contact with the Council (right first time 
External Assessment 
Ø External Audit; Regulators Assessment (Ofsted, CQC, Housing); Compliance; Partners 
 

P
age 31



 

ORGANISATIONAL HEALTHCHECK – BALANCED SCORECARD – SUMMARY OF PERFORMANCE  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE 
Ø Thrive – reduce the number of residents vulnerable 
Ø Resident’s satisfaction with Gateshead and Gateshead Council 
Ø Improved customer experience through better contact with the Council (right first time) 

 Baseline Latest Target DoT 

% residents satisfied with Gateshead as a place to live 
 

64%        
(2016) 

64%          
(2018) 

None set  

% satisfied with the Council  

52%        
(2016) 

42%          
(2018) 

None set  

% residents who are vulnerable 39.5% 34.1% Reduce  

% residents who are just coping 29.5% 40.0% None set - 

% residents who are managing 13.3% 15.9% None set - 

% residents who are thriving 17.7% 10% Increase 
 

% of stage 3 corporate complaints upheld 
15%        

(2021) 
24% (6/25) 

(Apr-Sep 22) 10%   

% of complaints upheld by the LG Ombudsman 
 

12%        
(2020) 

40% (2/5) 
(Apr-Sept 22) 10%   

No of complaints upheld by the ICO 
 

1 0 1   

No of compliments received about Council services 
78           

(2021) 
131 

(Apr-Sept 22) 
None set  

Digital Customer Experience % of transactions completed 
online for Garden Waste; Birth/Deaths; Fly-tipping 

76% 84% Increase  

Number / £ of online payments 
98,961 / 
£12.5m 

104,583 / 
£14.17m       

(Apr-Sep 22) 
Increase  

Telephony contact response answer rate (Average of 
Customer Contact Unit; Revs & Bens; Housing; Adult 
Social Care Direct) 

86%    
(2021) 

82% Increase  

Key Tolerance Key 

Achieving or exceeding target 
 

Underachieving within tolerance% if set 
 

Underachieving over tolerance 
 

EMPLOYEES 
Ø Employee satisfaction – Gateshead Council a great place to work 
Ø Diverse & inclusive workforce 
Ø Maximising Employee Potential – opportunities to learn, develop and aid succession planning 

 Baseline Latest Target DoT 

Employee survey – The Council is a good place to 
work (new measure in future on employee morale and Covid-19 
impact) 

64%                   
(2016) 

73%    
(2018) 90%   

No. of apprentices as a % of total employee 
headcount (as @ 31 March) 

3.29% 
(Mar 21) 

2.91% 
(Mar 22) 

6.5%  

% Apprenticeship levy spent (incl transfers) – 
towards March 2023 

50% 
51%       

(Mar 22) 
70%        

by 2023  

No. of Employee resignations as % of headcount 
3.04% 
Jul 21 

12.74% 
(Apr 21-Mar 

22) 
2.50%  

Average Sickness Absence days per FTE 10.58 
12.32 days 

(Mar 22) 
9 days  

Agency worker costs £1.412m 
£2.491m 
(Mar 22) 

None set  

% employees completed GDPR training 0% 
62.64% 
(Oct 22) 

95% 
(2023/24)  

% employees reporting their protected 
characteristics  

35% 
Mar 2021 

55% 
(Mar 22) 

70% by 
2023 

 

     
 

 
FINANCE, GOVERNANCE & RISK 

Ø Revenue Budget, Capital Budget; HRA; Income received, Risk 
 Baseline Latest Target DoT 

Revenue Budget position % over/ under  
0.11% over 

(Q3) 
2.11% over 

(Q2) 
-  

In-Year 2021/22 budget savings £8.1m delivered 
97.5% 

 6-month 
97.5% 

Year-end 90%   

Capital Programme Position £ Outturn - 
£97.140m 
est. outturn  

- 

% Council spend with Gateshead based organisations 
To be set 
(14.5% for 
2021/22) 

15.82% Increase  

% Invoices paid within 30 days 
87.32%  
(2021) 

74.99% 95%  

% Council Tax collected 
94.1%  
(20/21) 

52.4% 
(cumulative) 

Increase  

% Business Rates collected 
88.4%  
(20/21) 

53.9% 
(cumulative) 

Increase  

Financial Assessments and social care finance - % of 
debt in year collected 

92.89%  
(20/21) 

91.04% Increase  

Value of Services provided by the Council to schools £11.2m £12.2m   

No of serious data breaches reported to ICO 
0  

(20/21) 
2   

Health and Safety near miss / hazard reports 
116 / 45% of 
near misses 

116 of 362 
(32%) 

Increase     

Audit High Priority Recommendations made and 
those outstanding 

28 
0 

3 
0   

 
 

 
EXTERNAL ASSESSMENT 

External Audit; Regulators Assessment (Ofsted, CQC, Housing); Compliance; Partners  
 Baseline Latest Target DoT 

CQC Council Registered Schemes (11 
total) 

Good 
Good  
(2022)   

Ofsted Learning Skills Good Good   

Ofsted Children’s Social Care Services Good Good   

Ofsted SEND (Narrative assessment) 
Significant 

strengths. No areas 
for priority action 

Strong & effective 
support provided   

External Audit (Mazars) Unqualified 
Unqualified  

(2021)   

Regulator of Social Housing Consumer 
Standards  

- 
Compliant – 5 

Progressing – 3 
Noncompliant – 2 

  

HSE Enforcement Actions 
0  

(2021) 
1 FFI   

Council working in partnership (Survey 
VCS; Private and Public sector partners) 

Baseline to be set No update - - 

 

 

P
age 32



Performance 
Management & 
Improvement 
Framework

P
age 33



Performance management is used by Gateshead 
Council to understand what it is doing well and 
where it needs to improve. As well as involving 
performance measurement systems, processes 
and analysis, performance management is about 
managing resources, people, and the way people 
within the Council work together.

The Council’s Performance Management & 
Improvement Framework (PMIF) is based on our 
strategic approach, Thrive, which focuses on tackling 
inequalities. It comprises a Corporate Framework that 
sets out performance against Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy outcomes and incorporates an organisational 
‘health-check’ Balanced Scorecard. The framework has 
a clear focus on priorities, delivery, measurement, and 
analysis of impact.

The purpose of the PMIF is to: 

• Enable the Council to know whether it is achieving its priorities

• Ensure that the Council’s resources are being deployed effectively

• Inform both short and long-term effective decisions, and the Council’s approach to resource allocation and budget setting

• Support a whole-systems approach - embedded in our partnership working to deliver the Health & Wellbeing Strategy

P
age 34



Give every child the 
best start to life

PO1

Enable all young 
people and adults 
to maximise their 

capabilities and have 
control over  

their lives

PO2
Create the 

conditions for fair 
employment and 
good work for all

PO3
Create and 

develop healthy 
and sustainable 

communities and 
places

PO5

Strengthen the role 
and impact of ill health 

prevention

PO6
Ensure a healthy 

standard of living 
for all, in accordance 

with international law 
on economic  

and social rights

PO4

The PMIF is framed around the six policy objectives (PO)  
of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy:

The framework also includes a Balanced Scorecard.

The purpose the new PMIF is to: 

•  Enable the Council to know whether it is achieving its priorities

•  Ensure that the Council’s resources are being deployed effectively

•  Make both short and long-term effective decisions

•  Support a whole systems approach - embedded in our partnership working 
to deliver the Health & Wellbeing Strategy.

P
age 35



PO1
Give every child the best start 
to life

Outcomes:
The circumstances which result in adverse childhood 
experiences are prevented

Parents can access support proportionate to meet their 
needs, to be the best parents they can be

All children start school ready to learn

All permanent school exclusions are prevented

Interventions:
Implementation of Gateshead’s Economic Strategy

Support our schools to deliver an effective curriculum that 
addresses the skills required for later life and supports 
emotional well-being 

C&F Early Help Strategy - providing support to families 
when a need is identified or as soon as a problem emerges, 
at any point in a child

Focus on supporting confident, positive, and resilient 
parenting, to those who most need our support

Reducing the Number of Children in Care Strategy 
Interventions:

• Keep families together safely

•  A culture that works with safe uncertainty and supports 
social workers across services in their work with edge of 
care families

• Achieve permanency quickly

•  Develop enough and affordable high quality placement 
options

Increase the focus of existing expenditure on early years to 
reduce inequalities in early development

Ensure maternity services, parenting programmes, 
childcare and early year’s education are of high quality and 
meet needs of all groups

Build resilience and well-being of all children and young 
people

P
age 36



Enable all young people 
and adults to maximise their 
capabilities and have control 
over their lives

Outcomes:
All young people are resilient, with good physical and 
mental health and wellbeing

All young people are ready and appropriately skilled for the 
workplace

Gateshead is a positive place in which everyone’s mental 
health and wellbeing can flourish

Everyone is able to be an active part of their community and 
feel connected to communities and networks

All domestic abuse is prevented

Interventions:
Prioritise creating the conditions for people to enjoy 
positive emotional health & well-being.

Support our schools to deliver an effective curriculum 
that addresses skills required for later life and supports 
emotional well-being 

Implement Economic Strategy

Research commissioned into wellbeing of children and 
young people

Health and wellbeing intervention 

Delivery of Health & Wellbeing review

Support people through locality case working, even not 
eligible for statutory services but who require support

Ensure views & opinions of local people are represented in 
all aspects of our work

Prioritise preventing &reducing scale & impact of violence 
& domestic abuse

PO2

P
age 37



Create the conditions for fair 
employment and good work 
for all

Outcomes:
All working age residents have access to good quality, 
sustainable work with decent pay and conditions

All people in low paid, low skilled jobs have opportunities 
to improve their skills base so they can more easily achieve 
personal progression and attain an improved standard of 
living

Interventions:
Implementation of Gateshead’s Economic Strategy:

• Visitor Economy

• Green Economy

• Digital Economy

• Local Economy (Community Wealth Building)

Delivery of Gateshead Quays development including 
Conference and Exhibition Centre

Gateshead Town Centre Regeneration Masterplan

Helping people into work from direct 1:1 support in their 
own localities

PO3

P
age 38



PO4
Ensure a healthy standard of 
living for all, in accordance 
with international law on 
economic and social rights

Outcomes:
All working age residents receive a wage that considers the 
true cost of healthy living

Individuals and families are supported to have the best 
possible financial well-being to access debt and social 
welfare advice to maximise household income and improve 
financial management skills

Affordable childcare is accessible to those who need it

Interventions:
Intervention from Economic Strategy:

• Visitor Economy

• Green Economy

• Digital Economy

• Local Economy (Community Wealth Building)

Delivery of Gateshead Quays development including 
Conference and Exhibition Centre

Gateshead Town Centre Regeneration Masterplan

Locality working development

Administration of grant funding to support low-income 
households

P
age 39



PO5
Create and develop healthy 
and sustainable communities 
and places

Outcomes:
Local communities and social networks are strong

All residents have access to a high quality, affordable, warm 
and energy efficient home

All communities have access to good quality natural 
environment

Gateshead has clean air with low levels of pollution

Gateshead has low levels of crime and anti-social behaviour

Gateshead is carbon neutral by 2030

Interventions:
Support development of community activities - remove 
barriers to community participation & support people to be 
involved locally and develop Community Wealth Building. 
Completion of workstream on locality working

Ensure provision of homes to meet current and future needs 

Promote low carbon housing development and improve 
insulation to Council owned properties and install low 
carbon heat and energy where feasible

Improve and invest in the local environment and increase 
woodland coverage by 250ha by 2050

Make Gateshead accessible to all, achieving a shift to 
sustainable forms of travel and increase Council use of low 
carbon vehicles 

Support agile working by expanding use of digital 
technology, minimise paper and reduce the need for staff to 
travel

Promote community cohesion and prevention of crime and 
anti-social behaviour.

Take forward Climate Change Strategy

Continue to deliver low carbon heat and power via district 
heating networks

Identifying funding to assist with recycling and waste 
minimisation projects and implement behavioural change 
initiatives

Ensure goods and services procured by the Council are 
compatible with our Climate Emergency commitments

P
age 40



Strengthen the role and impact 
of ill health prevention

Outcomes:
All preventable ill health is reduced, to end the gap in 
inequalities within the borough

No-one will be homeless or living in accommodation that 
does not provide a safe and healthy environment

All residents will be able to access flexible health and care 
support, when and where they need it

Interventions:
Develop and implement Health and Wellbeing Review 

Accelerate preventative programmes

Deliver Community Based approaches as a core principle

Learn lessons from the pandemic

Embed health inequalities within, wider public services & 
recovery plans

PO6

P
age 41



BALANCED 
SCORECARD
The Balanced Scorecard focuses on the internal health of the Council 
as an organisation and considers four areas: 

• Employees

• Customer experience

• Finance, governance & risk

• External assessment 

Performance measures have been identified within each of these 
thematic areas, which further supports the assessment of how the 
Council is performing. The Balanced Scorecard support the Council 
to ensure that the organisation is in the best position to deliver on its 
priorities.

For more information about Performance Management 

Contact the Commercialisation and Improvement Team on 
0792 606 5409 or 0792 758 8815

P
age 42



 
 

APPENDIX 3 
 

GLOSSARY 

ACE Adverse Childhood Experience 

ADASS Association of Directors of Adult Social Services 

Agile 
Agile working – ability to work in the place and at the time most appropriate for the task 
in hand. 

API 
Application Programming Interface. In the context of APIs, Application refers to any 
software with a distinct function. API is a code that helps two different software 
packages to communicate and exchange data with each other.  

ASB Anti-Social Behaviour 
ASC Adult Social Care 
ASCOF Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework 
Azure Microsoft cloud platform 
BCP Business Continuity Plan 
BIA Business Impact Assessment 
BSC Balanced Scorecard 
CAB Citizens Advice Bureau 

CAHMS 
Child & Adolescent Mental Health Services - NHS service that aims to help young 
people < = 18, who are finding it hard to manage their emotional/ psychological health 
& who are suffering with acute, chronic & severe mental health issues. 

Capital 
Budget 

Capital expenditures are typically one-time large purchases of fixed assets that will be 
used for revenue generation over a longer period. 

CCE Climate Change Emergency 
CCG Clinical Commissioning Group (also see ICS AND ICB) 
CDIP Corporate Data, Insight and Performance Management group 
C&I Commercialisation & Improvement (Service within Resources & Digital) 
CMT Corporate Management Team 
CPP Child Protection Plan 
CQC Care Quality Commission 
CSG Corporate Services & Governance 
CSP Community Safety Partnership 

CSR 
Comprehensive Spending Review - govt process carried out by the Treasury to set 
expenditure limits & define key improvements the public can expect.  

DCE Digital & Customer Experience 
DPH Director of Public Health 
DPO Data Protection Officer 
EHCP Education, Health & Care Plans 
EV Electric Vehicles 
FDAC Family Drug & Alcohol Courts 

Fingertips 
Fingertips is a large public health data collection source. Data is organised into themed 
profiles. 

FTE Full Time Equivalent 

Page 43



 
 

GDPR General Data Protection Regulation 
GMT  Group Management Team 
GTC Gateshead Trading Company 
HEHC Housing, Environment & Healthy Communities (Directorate) 
HRA Housing Revenue Account 
HSE Health & Safety Executive 
HWB Health & Wellbeing 
IA Internal Audit (Chief Internal Auditor - Craig Oakes) 
ICB Integrated Care Board (New NHS structure to replace the CCGs) 
ICO Information Commissioner’s Office 
ICS Integrated Care System (New NHS structure to replace the CCGs) 

JSNA 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment - an assessment of the current and future health 
and social care needs of the people of Gateshead. 

KPI Key Performance Indicator 
LAC Looked After Children 
LD Learning Difficulties 

LEP 
Local Enterprise Partnership – North East LEP covers the areas of County Durham, 
Gateshead, Newcastle, North Tyneside, Northumberland, South Tyneside & 
Sunderland. 

LGA Local Government Association 
LIoN Local Index of Need 
Mazars Gateshead Council’s external auditors 
MTFS Medium Term Financial Strategy 
NDTMS National Drug Treatment Monitoring Service 
NEET Young people Not in Education, Employment or Training 

NEJTC 
North East Joint Transport Committee - transport plan covering Newcastle, Gateshead, 
North Tyneside, South Tyneside, Northumberland and Durham. It includes road, rail 
and public transport projects. 

NICD National Innovation Centre for Data (@Newcastle University) 
NOMIS Official census & labour market statistics - provided by ONS. 
OSTED Office for Standards in Education, Children’s Services & Skills. 
ONS  Office for National Statistics 
OSC Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
PCC Northumbria Police & Crime Commissioner (Kim McGuinness) 
PHE Public Health England 
PHOF Public Health Outcomes Framework 
PHW Public Health & Wellbeing 
PMIF Performance Management & Improvement Framework 
PO Policy Objective based on Gateshead Council’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

Power BI 
A collection of software services, apps, and connectors that work together to turn 
unrelated sources of data into coherent, visually immersive, and interactive 
insights/dashboards/reports. A Microsoft 365 product. 

PSED Public Sector Equality Duty – under the 2010 Equality Act.  
PSR Public Service Reform 

Page 44



 
 

QA Quality Assurance 
RAG Red. Amber. Green. A performance rating. 
R&D Resources and Digital (Directorate) 
Revenue 
Budget 

Revenue expenditures are typically referred to as ongoing operating expenses, which 
are short-term expenses used in running the daily business operations. 

R&M Repairs & Maintenance 

Risk  
Risk management is the process of identifying, assessing and controlling financial, 
legal, strategic and security risks to an organisation. 

SAP 
Standard Assessment Procedure (SAP) - methodology used by the govt to assess & 
compare the energy and environmental performance of dwellings.  

SEND Special Education Needs & Disability 
StoS Services to Schools 
SME Small or Medium Enterprise 
TBC To Be Confirmed 
TGHC The Gateshead Housing Company 

TADU 
Traffic Accident Data Unit - holds traffic accident, cycle flow and traffic flow data for the 
Tyne and Wear area. TADU   

ULEZ Ultra-Low Emission Zone 
VCS Voluntary & Community Sector 

 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



 
CARE, HEALTH & WELLBEING 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
6th December 2022 

 
 

TITLE OF REPORT:       Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report  
    (2021/22) and Strategic Plan  
 REPORT OF: Dale Owens, Strategic Director Care, Integrated 

Adults and Social Care Services  
 

 

SUMMARY 
 
The purpose of this report is to present the Safeguarding Adults Board (SAB) statutory 
Annual Report 2021/22 and the updated 2022 refresh of the Strategic Plan 2019/2024.  
 

 
Background 

 
1. The Care Act 2014 enshrined in law the principles of Safeguarding Adults and the 

Safeguarding Adults Board subsequently became a statutory body in April 2015. 
The Care Act states that a Safeguarding Adults Board must: 
• publish a strategic plan for each financial year.   
• publish an annual report which details how the Board and its members achieved 

the objectives as identified within the strategic plan 
 

2. The Gateshead Safeguarding Adults Board is independently chaired by Phil Conn, 
Oasis Community Housing. Partner agencies continue to work under immense 
pressure following the Covid Pandemic and the impact of public sector austerity 
measures, the cost-of-living crisis is now also providing services with additional 
pressures within the health and social care sector.  Despite this the Annual Report 
illustrates that considerable progress has been made.    

    
 
   Annual Report 2021/22 
 

3. The SAB 2021/22 Annual Report highlights progress throughout the 2021/22 
financial year. The report also articulates how partner governance arrangements 
ensure members are accountable for Safeguarding Adults. The SAB completed a 
challenge event in March 2022 to examine the effectiveness of the SAB, the results 
showed demonstrated strong partnership relationships, commitment to work 
together and enthusiasm for the work of the partners.    
 

4. Key areas of work in 2021/22 include the ICS wide pilot of forensic examination 
services for adults presenting with unexplained or non-accidental injuries, the 
introduction of the Fire Service Standard to support safeguarding, launch of the 
‘Tricky Friends’ animation helping those with cognitive difficulties to make and 
maintain positive friendships, launch of the Northumbria Police Force Vulnerability 
Strategy, embedding Primary Care Mental Health practitioners into primary care 
networks,   

 
 

Page 47

Agenda Item 5



 
 

launch of Gateshead Council ASSET team (Adult Services Support and 
Engagement Team), maintenance and preparation for implementation of Liberty 
Protection Safeguards. During 2021/22 the Safeguarding Adults Board continued 
to explore opportunities for working collaboratively at a regional level.  

 
Strategic Plan 2019/24 (2022 refresh) 

 
5. The revised Strategic Plan 2019/24 (2022 refresh) sets out how the Safeguarding 

Adults Board will achieve its five Strategic Priorities which are: 
 

•  Quality Assurance 
•  Prevention 
•  Communication and Engagement 
•  Operational Practice 
•  Mental Capacity 

 
6. The Strategic Plan includes key challenges to be addressed over the five-year 

period.  2023 will be the final year of the Strategic Plan, during 2023 the board will 
be working to develop their Strategic Plan for 2024-2029. 

 
Recommendation 
 

7. The committee is asked to consider and comment on the Safeguarding Adult Board 
Annual Report 2021/22 and Strategic Plan 2019/24 (2022 refresh).  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact: Catherine Hardman 

Page 48



 
 

1 

 

Community Safety Board 
Annual Report 

2013/14 

Gateshead Safeguarding Adults Board 
 

         Annual Report 
2021/22  

 

                        June 2022 

 

Page 49



 
 

2 

 

Contents         Page  
 

 
 

Introduction           3  
           
Policy Context         4   
 
Safeguarding in Gateshead       5   

Overview of Gateshead        5 
Gateshead Safeguarding Adults Board (SAB)     5   
Partner Governance Arrangements and Scrutiny    8 
Responding to Covid-19        8 
Strategic Plan 2019/24 and Annual Business Plan 2021/22  10 

 
Key Activities 2021/22        11   
 
Our Performance          28   

Safeguarding Adults Headline performance     28 
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards        30 
 

Learning from Safeguarding Adults Reviews (SARs)  31 
 
 
  
 

     
 
      
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 50



 
 

3 

 

Introduction 
 
 
In last year’s annual report, I noted in my introduction the extent to which “making safeguarding 
personal” seemed to have become truly personal for colleagues, particularly during a challenging 
year when our practices and approaches were altered considerably. This report is full of further 
examples of that as we continue to operate under immense pressures.  
 
This report demonstrates wonderfully another key principle of the care act – partnership. In March 
2022 we held a challenge event during our quarterly board meeting. Partners were invited to 
complete a survey to gather their views on the effectiveness of the SAB and then bring a SWOT 
analysis to the board meeting itself. One of the things that stood out for me from the event and the 
survey was the enthusiasm and praise for our partnership approach, this quote in particular stood out.  
 
“Gateshead SAB has strong partnership relationships and commitments from all key agencies to work 
together and support one another.” 
 
The pressures across our work as a partnership are such as we’ve never seen or experienced before 
and the risk that our most vulnerable become even more at risk and disenfranchised is significant. 
However, one of the perverse benefits of such a situation is that partnership becomes more important 
than ever. We’ve seen this during the pandemic when services and organisations from across 
Gateshead joined forces to serve and protect our most vulnerable.  
 
The learning we take from regional and national safeguarding adult reviews offer a bleak reminder 
that abuse and neglect are very present and often do irreversible damage to victims. So I’m proud 
that Gateshead refuses to rest on its laurels where safeguarding is concerned, seeking to reflect and 
adapt at every opportunity so the launch of Gateshead Council’s ASSET team is a welcome addition 
to partnership approaches to safeguarding residents.  
  
We’ve got lot’s to celebrate and this report is a wonderful reflection of the terrific work that all partners 
contribute to and reminds us; “if you want to go fast, go alone. If you want to go far, go together.” 
 
Finally 2022 saw Caroline O’Neil retire from her role as Strategic Director for Children, Adults and 
Families. I’m sure you all join me in thanking Caroline for her contribution to the work of the board and 
wishing her well in her retirement. 
.  
 
 
 

 
 
Phil Conn 
Chair, Gateshead SAB 

 

Page 51



 
 

4 

 

Policy Context 
 
The Care Act 2014 enshrined in law the principles of Safeguarding Adults, which aim to ensure 
that the most vulnerable members of society are afforded appropriate support and protection, and 
help them to live as independently as possible, for as long as possible. 

 
Chapter 14 of the Care and Support Statutory Guidance issued under the Care Act replaces the 
No Secrets document as the statutory basis for all safeguarding activity.  This was updated in 
March 2016 by the Department for Health.  
 
The Care Act identifies six key principles which underpin all adult safeguarding work and which 
apply equally to all sectors and settings:  
 
➢ Empowerment – people being supported and encouraged to make their own decisions and 

give informed consent 
➢ Prevention – it is better to take action before harm occurs 
➢ Proportionality – the least intrusive response appropriate to the risk presented 
➢ Protection – support and representation to those in greatest need 
➢ Partnership – local solutions through services working with their communities 
➢ Accountability – accountability and transparency in safeguarding practice 
 
The Care Act sets out the Safeguarding Adult responsibilities for Local Authorities and their 
partners. It places a duty upon Local Authorities to establish Safeguarding Adults Boards (SAB) 
and stipulates that SABs must produce a Strategic Plan and Annual Report.  The Statutory 
Guidance encourages the SAB to link with other partnerships in the locality and share relevant 
information and work plans.   
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 52

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/23/contents/enacted
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/care-act-statutory-guidance/care-and-support-statutory-guidance#safeguarding-1


 
 

5 

 

Safeguarding in Gateshead 
 
Overview of Gateshead 
 
Gateshead is a unitary authority with a population of around 202,000. Our Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment (JSNA) provides information about our population and the key issues facing people in 
Gateshead.  It is used to identify key strategic priorities to improve the health and wellbeing of our 
population. This introductory video provides more details about the JSNA. 
 
Gateshead SAB 
 
The Gateshead SAB became a statutory body in April 2015.  The Board’s vision for adult 
safeguarding in Gateshead is: 
 

‘Everybody in Gateshead has the right to lead a fulfilling life and should be able to live 
safely, free from abuse and neglect – and to contribute to their own and other people’s 

health and wellbeing’ 
 
The Board is responsible for assuming the strategic lead and overseeing the work of Adult 
Safeguarding and Mental Capacity Act arrangements in Gateshead. Within Gateshead we have 
an Independent Chair to enhance scrutiny and challenge. The Board has a comprehensive 
Memorandum of Understanding, which is updated annually, and provides a framework for 
identifying roles and responsibilities and demonstrating accountability. Our Safeguarding in 
Gateshead website www.gatesheadsafeguarding.org.uk provides a wealth of information about 
our SAB and our Gateshead Safeguarding Children’s Partnership (GCSP).   

In law, the statutory members of a SAB are defined as the local authority, the local police force 
and the clinical commissioning group (CCG) (Under the Health and Care Act 2022 the duties of 
the CCG will be subsumed into Integrated Care System’s). However, in Gateshead, we recognise 
the importance of the contribution made by all of our partner agencies and this is reflected by the 
wider Board membership (correct as of June 2022): 
 

• Gateshead Council 

• Northumbria Police 

• Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) – on behalf of NHS England, 

North East Ambulance Service and incorporating GP lead for Adult Safeguarding – This will 

change in July 2022 to the North East and North Cumbria Integrated Care System 

• Lay Members 

• Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust (GHFT) 

• South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust (STSFT) 

• Cumbria, Northumberland and Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust (CNTW) 

• Gateshead College 

• Tyne and Wear Fire and Rescue Service (TWFRS) 

• Probation Service  

• Oasis Community Housing 

Page 53

https://www.gatesheadjsna.org.uk/article/5094/Home
https://www.gatesheadjsna.org.uk/article/5094/Home
https://www.gatesheadjsna.org.uk/article/5102/Gateshead-JSNA
https://www.gatesheadsafeguarding.org.uk/article/9213/Gateshead-Safeguarding-Adults-Board-vision-and-principles
http://www.gatesheadsafeguarding.org.uk/


 
 

6 

 

• Connected Voice Advocacy 

• Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) 

• Healthwatch Gateshead 

 

Gateshead SAB Structure 

The Gateshead SAB sits within a clearly defined structure and has close links with other local 

multi-agency partnerships including the Health and Wellbeing Board, Community Safety 

Partnership and GSCP. 

 

The SAB agreed to review the role and function of the former SAB Executive Group in 2021/22.  It 

was decided that as the SAB and the Gateshead Children’s Safeguarding Partnership (GCSP) 

both have the same statutory partners, that a Joint Safeguarding Partnership Executive (SPE) 

group would be established to provide strategic oversight of both the SAB and GSCP. The 

Safeguarding Partnership Executive includes the three statutory partners, the Chairs of the SAB 

and the GSCP and the Business Managers of the SAB and the GSCP. The SPE will ensure that 

the statutory responsibilities of the SAB are being met, whilst delivering quality outcomes. 

 

Page 54



 
 

7 

 

Gateshead SAB Sub-Group arrangements 

 

• Quality, Learning and Practice Group (Chaired by a senior manager from Gateshead 
Council) 
 
The Quality, Learning and Practice Group was established in March 2021 following a 
restructure of the SAB Sub-Groups. The group is responsible for monitoring and reviewing 
performance data and driving forward quality via the quality assurance framework, case file 
audits and monitoring inspection recommendations. The QLP collate and review 
recommendations from statutory Safeguarding Adult Reviews and discretionary reviews and 
has oversight of multi-agency safeguarding training.  The QLP aims to ensure that the Multi-
Agency Safeguarding Adults policy and procedures and supporting practice guidance continue 
to be fit for purpose.  The Group has responsibility for keeping up to date with national policy 
changes that may impact upon the work of the SAB.  The Group also has responsibility for the 
development and implementation of the Communication and Engagement strategy. 
 

• Safeguarding Adult Review and Complex Case (SARCC) Group (Chaired by a senior 

manager from Newcastle Gateshead CCG - This will change in July 2022 a senior manager 

from the North East and North Cumbria Integrated Care System) 

 
The Safeguarding Adults Review Group (SARCC) consider Safeguarding Adult Review (SAR) 
referrals, commission reviews and subsequently monitor their progress. The SARCC may also 
oversee discretionary reviews into cases that do not meet the criteria for a SAR, where the 
group feel that there are multi-agency lessons to be learned.  It will collate and review 
recommendations from SARs and other reviews, ensuring that achievable action plans are 
developed and that actions are delivered.  The SARCC also provides a forum to discuss 
complex Safeguarding Adult cases that require additional scrutiny and support.  

 

• Joint Strategic Exploitation Group (Chaired by a senior officer from Northumbria Police) 

 

The Joint Strategic Exploitation Group is a sub-group of both the SAB and the GSCP. The 

group is responsible for overseeing all work with respect to all aspects of exploitation including 

modern slavery, criminal exploitation, sexual exploitation, trafficking, missing and female 

genital mutilation in Gateshead.  

 

The Board and the three sub-groups regularly commission time limited task and finish groups to 

undertake specific pieces of project work.  

 

 

 

 

Page 55



 
 

8 

 

Partner Governance Arrangements and Scrutiny 2020/21 

Board members are responsible for ensuring that governance and scrutiny arrangements for 
Safeguarding Adults are incorporated within the structure of their own organisations, and that 
there are mechanisms for disseminating and sharing information from the SAB. Examples of the 
governance and scrutiny arrangements for the three statutory partners include: 
 

• Gateshead Council – The Care, Health and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
receive updates from the SAB and key pieces of work are submitted to Cabinet.  The SAB 
performance dashboard and annual mandatory Safeguarding Adults Collection are 
scrutinised within the Adult Social Care performance clinic and strategic items are shared 
with the Children, Adult’s and Family Group Management Team.  The Gateshead Council 
Internal Audit service provide assurance that the Board and Gateshead Council are 
meeting their statutory duties.   
 

• Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group – An Executive Director holds the 
lead for the safeguarding portfolio. CCG internal assurance is provided via safeguarding 
reports to the Quality Safety and Risk Committee (Quarterly). Reports provide local updates 
on the work of the safeguarding partnerships and ensure that key safeguarding risks, 
issues and developments are reported within the CCG.  Reports also outline activity relating 
to Safeguarding Adult Reviews (SARs) Domestic Homicide Reviews (DHRs) and other non-
statutory reviews such as Appreciative Enquiries.  Governance and scrutiny arrangements 
will evolve under the new Integrated Care Board arrangements.  
 

• Northumbria Police – All learning from national and local serious case reviews are 
scrutinised through the organisational learning board and the organisational learning log. 
The organisational learning log is focused on the importance of identifying learning 
opportunities and drivers, embedding the value of lessons learned, and helping the  
organisation to become focused on the importance of continuous learning. Each Area 
Command and Department has a responsibility to consider drivers for lessons learned and 
to encourage organisational learning within their areas of business. The organisational 
learning log is submitted to the Organisational Learning Board for discussion and 
agreement of new actions, and to ensure organisational wide learning has been 
considered. Agreed recommendations and actions from the relevant ODG or board will be 
managed by the assigned learning owner. Areas of learning and best practice that require 
Force wide communication or change are escalated through Strategic Management Board.  
 
 

Responding to Covid-19 

 

This is the second annual report in which we reflect how we have responded to the challenges of 

the Covid-19 pandemic.  In the 2020/21 SAB Annual Report we highlighted how our SAB 

structural arrangements were amended, bringing together our strategic and operational partners 

virtually and more frequently to ensure that our multi-agency safeguarding arrangements and 

duties continued to operate and be effective. During 2021/22 we were able to operate our full 

schedule of Board and Sub-Group meetings on a virtual basis.   

 

Page 56



 
 

9 

 

Gateshead participated in the Local Government Association COVID-19 adult safeguarding insight 

project which was developed to create a national picture regarding safeguarding adult’s during the 

Covid-19 pandemic.  Our Gateshead safeguarding adult performance figures largely replicated the 

national picture with decreases in the volume of concerns during periods of lockdown and other 

Covid-19 restrictions followed by an increase once those restrictions are lifted.  

Clearly the impact of Covid-19 on all of our services has been profound, particularly for our 

residential and nursing care homes. As a SAB we were very mindful about creating a supportive 

environment for all of our partners, and ensured any new policies, procedures and practices did 

not result in unnecessary additional bureaucracy.  

Covid-19 has created many challenges for everyone who lives and works in Gateshead. The 
Director of Public Health’s annual report (Behind the Masks: Gateshead’s Covid Stories) focuses 
on how the pandemic has highlighted and worsened inequalities and calls for revitalised and re-
focused action on tackling them. We have all been in the same storm - but we have not all been in 
the same boat. The report brings together personal accounts from residents and the professionals 
who support them. Their stories, shared here in their own words, form an invaluable record of 
Covid's devastating impact and what we must learn from it to make Gateshead a place where 
everyone thrives. This video, produced to accompany the report, features contributors from 
healthcare, public sector and third sector organisations sharing their views on the impact of Covid-
19, growing inequalities across the borough and what we can learn from the pandemic. 

 
Covid-19: A Year We Must Not Forget 
is a powerful personal account of the 
pandemic from Gateshead’s Director of 
Public Health Alice Wiseman.  The poem, 
read by Alice and some of her fellow 
Directors of Public Health, recognises 
those who stepped up to face one of the 
biggest challenges of our lifetimes and 
highlights what can be achieved when we 
all pull together. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 57

https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/covid-19-adult-safeguarding-insight-project-third-report-december-2021
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/covid-19-adult-safeguarding-insight-project-third-report-december-2021
https://www.gateshead.gov.uk/media/31458/Director-of-Public-Health-Annual-Report-2022/pdf/DPH_Report_Annual_Report_online_Jan_2022.pdf?m=637788814165530000
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Sow9yyjfuJc
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=NG0AbGAEnBk


 
 

10 

 

Strategic Plan 2019/24 and Annual Business Plan 2021/22 
 
The Gateshead Strategic Plan 2019/24 was approved by the SAB in April 2019. The five-year plan 
incorporates five strategic priorities: 
 
 

• Quality Assurance 
 

• Prevention 
 

• Communication and Engagement 
 

• Operational Practice 
 

• Mental Capacity 
 
 
 
 
The Strategic Plan is supported by an Annual Business Plan 2021/22 to enable the Board to 
prioritise and focus activity over the five-year period.  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 58

https://www.gatesheadsafeguarding.org.uk/article/9216/Strategic-plan-and-annual-reports


 
 

11 

 

Key Activities 2021/22 

 

The Annual Report must demonstrate what both the SAB and its members have done to carry out 
and deliver the objectives of its strategic plan.  Some of our key activities for 2021/22 are 
documented below and are aligned to the SAB Strategic Priorities.  
 
➢ Quality Assurance 
 

• Quality Assurance Challenge Event 
The SAB held a Quality Assurance Challenge event in March 2022 in recognition that it is critically 
important that we are collectively aware of our strengths and areas we need to improve upon.  
There were two elements to the Challenge Event: 
 

1) Individual Member Quality Assurance  
 
 All SAB members were asked to complete a short SWOT (Strengths, Weaknesses, 
 Opportunities and Threats) analysis of safeguarding adults within their own organisations 
 and present their findings to the Board.   
 
2) SAB Effectiveness Survey 

 
Board Members were asked to complete an anonymous online survey to help us monitor 
the overall effectiveness of the Board.  The survey questions reflected those outlined within 
the national Adult Safeguarding Improvement Tool, developed in partnership by the 
Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO), the Association of Directors of Adult Social 
Services (ADASS), the Local Government Association (LGA), the NHS Confederation and 
NHS Clinical Commissioners. The tool outlines the characteristics of well-performing and 
ambitious partnerships.  The results of the survey were positive as demonstrated by the 
following anonymous quotes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
The survey helped the SAB to understand what works well and where we need to 
improve.  The survey will be repeated annually so that we can monitor progress. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Collectively there is a wealth of knowledge 

and expertise within the SAB and this 

ensures robust and well governed processes 

across the safeguarding agenda 

Gateshead SAB has strong partnership 

relationships and commitments from all 

key agencies to work together and 

support one another 

Page 59



 
 

12 

 

What works well: 

 
  
Areas for Improvement: 

 
 

 
 The information from both activities was used to refresh the Strategic Plan and feed into the 
 sub-group workplans.  
 

• Review of Out of Borough Placements 
As a result of a presentation at the Gateshead SAB on early learning from the County Durham 
Whorlton Hall organisational abuse case which was initially identified via the BBC Panorama 
programme, Gateshead SAB requested a review of all out of borough placements.  Gateshead 
Council and Newcastle Gateshead CCG undertook the review, with comprehensive findings 
shared with the SAB in September 2021.  The review confirmed that all Gateshead adults placed 
outside of Gateshead by the CCG or Local Authority are actively known to the placing 
organisation.  The review also identified that the vast majority of adults are placed in the North 
East and that the majority of adults placed out of borough are there due to their own choice / 
proximity to family. The SAB were reassured that reviews are taking place as required, and that 

Page 60



 
 

13 

 

agreed outcomes are being met. The SAB welcomed the review findings and requested that the 
review is undertaken on an annual basis.   
 

• Regional SAR Champions 
Gateshead has contributed towards the work of the North East Regional SAR Champion network 
which was established to improve SAR learning and practice across the region.  This group has 
been very proactive and succesful work to date includes: 

• Publication of North East SAR Quality Marker 
 Checklist 

• Creation of North East Review library via Microsoft 
 Teams – this was developed and  hosted by 
 Gateshead Council and continues to be hosted by 
 Gateshead 

• Agreed standard learning improvement template for 
 Review Summaries 

• Delivered a national webinar in October 2021 for the 
 Care and Health Improvement Programme 
 (CHIP) showcasing the good practice emanating 
 from the Regional SAR Champions 

 
 

• SAB Escalation and Challenge protocol 
In December 2021 the SAB introduced a SAB Escalation and Challenge protocol.  The purpose of 
the protocol was to ensure a prompt, sensitive and professional response to the management of 
escalating issues and to support partners to constructively challenge agencies regarding their 
practice in respect of safeguarding adults in Gateshead.  The protocol recognises that all 
professionals have a responsibility to escalate issues and challenge other professionals when they 
are corned about any issues relating to safeguarding adults with needs for care and support.  
 

• Performance Management 
The QLP Group continued to refine the Safeguarding Adults Board performance dashboard, 
enabling all partners to develop an understanding of key safeguarding adult themes and trends.  
This is compared with the regional safeguarding dashboard to help determine if we are an outlier 
in any aspects of safeguarding.   

 
Partners continued to develop their own safeguarding adult performance tools.  For example, 
STSFT developed a Datix safeguarding dashboard which provides safeguarding Informatics for 
internal and external reporting. The Named Nurse Safeguarding Adults has undertaken joint 
working with Tissue Viability Nurses (TVN) in order to progress TVN Datix dashboards and amend 
incident reporting parameters to standardise safeguarding threshold assessment. This will further 
promote a responsive safeguarding culture throughout the organisation. 
 

• Case File Audits 
The QLP Group instigated a themed case file audit focussed upon organisational abuse.  This was 
in recognition of the perceived increase in prevalence of organisational abuse cases.  The audit 
generated a number of recommendations which are being addressed via the QLP.  
 

Page 61

https://www.proceduresonline.com/gateshead/adultsg/local_resources.html
https://www.proceduresonline.com/gateshead/adultsg/local_resources.html
https://proceduresonline.com/trixcms2/media/11841/5-sab-escalation-and-challenge-protocol-dec21-1.pdf


 
 

14 

 

Individual partner organisations implement their own internal case file audit processes. For 
example, CNTW complete several routine audits on an annual basis, including safeguarding and 
MARAC.  Within STSFT a rigorous programme of safeguarding audits have continued throughout 
2021-22 to monitor safeguarding practice across STSFT. These have included MCA/DoLS policy 
adherence, compliance with safeguarding policy (inclusive of routine & selective enquiry) and self-
neglect.  GHFT have completed an audit of DNACPR (Do not attempt cardiopulmonary 
resuscitation) issued for patients with a learning disability across a six month period. 
 

• Integrated Care System (ICS) Safeguarding Professionals Network (Health) 
During 2021 the Newcastle Gateshead CCG safeguarding team were instrumental in establishing 
an ICS wide Safeguarding Professionals Network.  This has developed as the only forum in our 
area that is open to safeguarding (health) staff from both provider and commissioning 
organisations across health agencies.  The Network is well established and well attended and has 
been recognised by NHSE and a key forum to support the development of safeguarding practice 
across the ICS.  
 

 
➢ Prevention 

 

• Training 
The Gateshead Council Workforce Development Adviser worked with the SAB, Gateshead 
Safeguarding Children’s Partnership (GCSP) and the Community Safety Partnership to produce a 
comprehensive training offer for 2021/22.  Training courses advertised within the directory are free 
of charge to practitioners and volunteers within Gateshead. Training was delivered virtually and 
face to face to allow delegates to choose the most convenient method of learning to suit their job 
role. Provider training was delivered virtually to allow for flexibility of attendees due to the 
pressures faced by providers during the pandemic. 
 
The introduction of a practical application of Mental Capacity Act (MCA) course allowed 
practitioners to reflect on their practice and discuss how to deal with issues and complexities faced 
when carrying out MCA assessment. 

 
Examples of training and awareness raising for the SAB in 2020/21 include: 

 

✓ 16 x Care home/ provider reporting concerns Level 1 training courses 
✓ 17 x Safeguarding Adult reporting concerns Level 2 training courses 
✓ 1 x Safeguarding Adults Undertaking Enquiries Level 3 training courses 
✓ 10x New online multi-agency safeguarding adult’s policy and procedures briefing 
✓ Interactive Safeguarding Adult Review Workshop (Internal only) 
✓ 6 x Mental Capacity Act 2005 (MCA Level 1) Training 
✓ 3 x Practical Application of Mental Capacity Act (internal only) 
✓ 1 x Modern Day Slavery 
 

Our partners have evolved their internal safeguarding training in light of the pandemic. The 
Newcastle Gateshead CCG Safeguarding Team have developed an online approach to training 
which has included building and developing an online resource of recorded training for Primary 
Care staff to access via the CCG's intranet.  GHFT have sourced a Level 3 Safeguarding e-
learning training package.  CNTW have commissioned a Jewish cultural awareness course, 

Page 62



 
 

15 

 

provided by Jewish Community Council of Gateshead, where people from the Jewish community 
will come and educate the workforce, in the hope this will increase knowledge and understanding, 
to allow increased engagement with services. 

 

• Individual Placement and Support (IPS) Employment Service (CNTW) 
Gateshead has one of the highest social deprivation indicators in the country, with high levels of 
unemployment, which has a direct impact upon people’s ability to seek meaningful employment. 
The CNTW Individual Placement and Support (IPS) Employment Support service works across 
Gateshead, supporting people receiving community care and treatment from the Community 
Treatment Team and Early Intervention in Psychosis Team to pursue their paid employment 
ambitions.  Historically people with Serious Mental Illness (SMI) have lacked evidence-based 
support in relation to employment, often assuming their only option is to claim benefits. However, 
CNTW and CCG’s have invested heavily in the IPS Service in order to address this, viewing 
unemployment as a serious risk to long-term health and good employment as a health outcome to 
which we all aspire and to which everyone should have access as a fundamental right. Support 
provided from the team includes: 

• help getting or keeping a job 
• employment rights 
• benefit entitlement 
• employment opportunities 

 
In addition to supporting people into sustainable, good employment the Trust has been working 
with the Money and Pensions Service (MAPS) to create a financial wellbeing tool that can be used 
by any healthcare professional to assess the impact of finance circumstances on a person’s health 
and then facilitate accredited, independent financial support for the person. 
The hypothesis is that financial health has a significant impact on physical and mental health, so 
by understanding financial health we will be better able to assess and treat mental health 
difficulties. Development of this tool began in 2020 but it has never been more pertinent given the 
accelerating cost of living crisis and the demand for mental health treatment and support. 
The Trust are currently engaged in an evaluation of the tool and will publish the findings publicly 
once the trial concludes. The ambition is that financial wellbeing tool will form part of core 
assessments across health services, supporting people using services and the teams providing 
care and treatment to build a holistic picture and rapidly involve accredited, independent financial 
experts or direct to high quality self-help. 
 
The Under-Secretary for the DWP 
visited St Nicholas Hospital in 
Newcastle to meet with James 
Duncan, Chief Executive of CNTW 
NHS FT, an IPS Service User and 
IPS Service staff to discuss the 
concerns and agree a strategy. 
The Trust will work with Local 
Authority partners to progress 
ideas based on the evidence of 
the financial wellbeing tool trial. 
 

Page 63



 
 

16 

 

• The Modern Slavery Liberty Project 
The Changing Lives Northumbria Liberty Project supports victims of modern slavery in the 
Northumbria area.  Linked to the project is the establishment of the Northumbria Modern Slavery 
Liberty Strategic Group. The purpose of the meeting is to bring together strategic leads to share 
practice and knowledge, to discuss current trends and changes identified across Northumbria 
Police Force area in relation to Modern Slavery. The Gateshead SAB Business Manager is a 
member of the strategic group, ensuring Gateshead are active participants in shaping the regional 
approach to Modern Slavery, in particular the Victim Care Pathway.  
 

• Domestic Abuse 
In 2021/22, a Domestic Abuse Local Partnership Board was established within Gateshead to 
support the implementation of appropriate safe accommodation as outlined within the Domestic 
Abuse Act 2021.  The Board, chaired by Gateshead Council Chief Executive, held its first meeting 
in November 2021 supported by the Strategic Domestic Abuse Forum.  Gateshead Council, in 
collaboration with key stakeholders, has produced a Domestic Abuse Safe Accommodation 
Strategy and Needs Assessment and has approved a range of funding proposals to help 
strengthen local support for victim-survivors (including children) and ensure appropriate safe 
accommodation provisions within Gateshead.  We are looking to produce a Gateshead Violence 
Against Women and Girls Strategy in 2022/23 which sets out the actions we intend to take to 
increase support for survivors, bring perpetrators to justice, and, ultimately, reduce the prevalence 
of violence against women and girls. 

 
The Gateshead Domestic Abuse service is a motivated and skilled team of Independent Domestic 
Violence Advisors (IDVA) who have continued to deliver a service to those that need it throughout 
the pandemic. Creative working approaches to engage with clients have been implemented. 
Funding from the Police and Crime Commissioner in 2021 has meant that six more staff within the 
existing team are being IDVA trained.  
 
Spotlight on Oasis Community Housing – A whole organisational approach to domestic abuse 
 

It might seem odd to announce that we’ve taken a whole organisational approach to domestic abuse, who 
wouldn’t say they’re doing that? Especially us organisations working within the safeguarding or support 
services arena. We’ve been delivering domestic abuse support and group work programmes for a number 
of years now so wouldn’t we qualify as adopting a whole organisational approach? The bitter reality was 
no, we fell short and needed to make some changes, we needed to take our knowledge and experience as 
a support service and apply it to a policy for those who work and volunteer within our organisation.   
Oasis Community Housing recognises that anyone can experience domestic abuse and that the impact can 
be severe. We wish to give the opportunity for staff to feel that they are able to disclose incidences of 
domestic abuse with the confidence that such disclosures will be handled professionally, confidentially and 
supportively. 
 
We believe passionately that we have a responsibility to provide all our staff with a safe and effective 
working environment and, wherever possible we will offer support to employees experiencing domestic 
abuse, around their Health, Safety and Wellbeing at Work. 
 
For some staff, the workplace is a safe haven and the only place that offers a route to safety. Employees of 
Oasis Community Housing will be supported in order that they can remain productive and effective at 

Page 64



 
 

17 

 

work. Employees who may recognise that they are perpetrators of domestic abuse will also be encouraged 
to seek specialist help to address their behaviour. 
 
Oasis Community Housing acknowledges that domestic abuse is a significant problem which has a 
devastating impact on victims and their families. Our new policy represents a commitment to take all 
reasonable steps possible to combat the reality and impact of domestic abuse on those being abused and 
to challenge the behaviour of perpetrators.  
 
This policy ensures that both “affected employees” and “alleged perpetrators” of domestic abuse are 
aware of the support that is available within the organisation and from specialist external agencies. It also 
provides guidance to line managers when supporting staff who are affected by domestic abuse.  
 
The practical outworking of this approach is to have a champions at every level of the organisation from 
support workers to trustees, people who are trained to respond to signs of a colleagues experiences or 
their disclosure of abuse. We’ve carried out awareness raising in recent months and have celebrated this 
approach to ensure that anyone experiencing domestic abuse feels able to seek support from their 
employer.  
 
As a further measure to improving our efforts to tackle domestic abuse all of our staff have undergone 
SafeLives RIC assessment training, ensuring that whatever their role our teams are able to respond 
promptly to instances of domestic abuse, offer immediate support and refer appropriately.  
 
 
Spotlight on Gateshead Health Foundation Trust – Practice Domestic Abuse interventions 
Throughout the Covid pandemic there has been a national picture of increased domestic violence and 
Gateshead is no different.  We have a domestic violence lead nurse who works closely with partners at the 
local authority, police and social services.  He has also ensured extra training was provided to staff in the 
Covid testing centres and details of support organisations were printed on the reverse of the Covid 
information sheets so that potential victims who attended for swabs could access assistance if required.  
One initiative to be introduced is the Grab Bag.  Providing grab bags commenced following the admittance 
of a pregnant lady to the antenatal ward, feeling unwell and fleeing domestic violence, she only had the 
clothes on her back and no money or phone. To arrange the grab bags we received funding from charitable 
finds/sponsor/donations to be able to organise these bags  The ‘Grab Bag’ project helps fund the provision 
of basic necessities for these patients, which will be distributed via the hospital’s domestic violence 
safeguarding team. The ‘Grab Bag’ includes basic essential items including clothing, toiletries, a mobile 
phone, a snack/drink and a travel voucher using the Trust’s patient transport service. These will be given to 
vulnerable patients fleeing domestic abuse on their discharge to a place of safety.  Charitable Funds 
manager, Clare King, said “On behalf of the charity, I would like to say a big thank you to Casa Rosa, Birtley 
who have kindly volunteered to fundraise and have recently held a fantastic afternoon of Halloween face 
painting for children’s trick or treating.”  "I would also like to thank Morrisons Blaydon and Morrisons 
Birtley for their continuous support and for the donations, which have helped us set up this initiative and 
purchase some of the contents for the bags. "Finally, I would like to thank QE Transport who has shown 
incredible support by donating travel vouchers to ensure our patients are transported securely to their 
place of safety. “These small gestures will make such a big difference to our patients in these 
circumstances.” Nurse and domestic abuse lead said: “We will be launching this project in support of ’16 
days of action against domestic violence’ and White Ribbon UK, which are both two important campaigns 

Page 65

https://16daysofaction.co.uk/
https://16daysofaction.co.uk/
https://www.whiteribbon.org.uk/


 
 

18 

 

supporting and raising awareness of domestic abuse. “I’d like to say a big thank you to Gateshead 
Domestic Abuse Team for the mobile phone and advice during the initial incident with the pregnant lady. 
We are hoping this initiative will help vulnerable women, men or families move to a place of safety. “Even 
if we are able to play a small part in making someone’s life safe, we are doing our jobs as nurses and as a 
Trust.” 

 

•  Development of Forensic Examination services 
In July 2021 the CCG Safeguarding Team secured funding from NHS England (NHSE)  to develop 
an ICS wide pilot to develop forensic examination services for adults who present with 
unexplained or non-accidental injuries.  The bid was successful and NHSE awarded £10,000 
funding to NGCCG to lead and support the pilot which has been taken forward during 2021-2 
through to 2023.  The funding has been used to: 

• Develop Forensic Awareness training for GPs and clinical staff 

• Fund a Forensic Examination Conference 

• Deliver training for staff to undertake Forensic examination. 

• Develop a knowledge hub /Resource hosted by the Faculty of Forensic and Legal Medicine.  

• Managing Demand 
Throughout 2021/22 our Safeguarding partners noted that there was an increase in the volume of 
adult concerns, and an increase the complexity of safeguarding adult cases. 
 
For example, Northumbria Police Adult Concern Notifications have doubled in the MASH since its 
inception in 2018. The number of notifications rose from 32,898 in 20/21 to a predicted 39,308 for 
21/22 and these numbers are expected to grow moderately year on year from 22/23 onwards. In 
the coming years there are several societal factors linked to COVID recovery which are expected 
to contribute to a rise in A.C.N submissions. Financial austerity, poor mental health and increased 
substance misuse are all areas being discussed within adult safeguarding partnerships that raise 
concern around adult’s ability to protect themselves from abuse or neglect.  

 
Another area of increasing demand for Safeguarding Adult Boards is the focus on Complex Adult 
Safeguarding. Often vulnerable adults have underlying needs around substance misuse, 
homelessness and mental health. To support our response to crisis situations Northumbria Polixc 
have adopted a preventative early intervention approach which involves working with partners to 
best support vulnerable adults and signpost them to the most appropriate service at the first point 
of contact, and harm reduction teams work closely with partners in this area.  
 
The SAB responded to the increase in Adult Concerns during 2021/22 by creating a workstream 
which analysed our adult concern pathways.  A new Adult Concern decision-making tool has 
subsequently been developed and will be published in June 2022. 
 

• Fire Service Standard 
Tyne and Wear Fire and Rescue Service have commenced preparations for adherence to the new 
Safeguarding Fire Standard which will be introduced in 2022. The Fire Standards Board oversee 
the identification, organisation, development and maintenance of professional standards for fire 
and rescue services in England.  The Board is responsible for approving standards and the 
approach to their development.  This includes the introduction of the Safeguarding Fire Standard 
in 2022, set by the National Fire Chiefs Council (NFCC) which aims to ensure that fire and rescue 

Page 66



 
 

19 

 

services are doing all that they can to support safeguarding. Its desired outcome is that services 
work proactively to promote the safeguarding of those within their communities as well as 
employees and volunteers, reducing the risk of abuse, harm and neglect. TWFRS is a fire and 
rescue service that actively promotes the safeguarding of those in its community and its 
employees and volunteers. They work proactively to reduce the risk of abuse, harm and neglect. 

  
TWFRS are compliant with safeguarding legislation, understanding and effectively fulfilling our 
obligations and responsibilities to its Local Safeguarding Adults Boards and Local Safeguarding 
Children’s Board and Partnership. Employees and volunteers are trained, supported and 
empowered to respond to safeguarding needs, appropriate to their roles and responsibilities and 
we collaborate appropriately with others to ensure a coordinated approach to safeguarding.By 
adopting the NFCC Fire Standards Safeguarding TWFRS will see: 

  
1. Improved safeguarding outcomes for communities, employees and volunteers and a 

 raised awareness of safeguarding evidenced by: 

• measurable safeguarding referrals that encompass both early identification and 
threshold assessments before referral to Local Authorities 

• an increase in the number of employees and volunteers trained in safeguarding. 
2. Fire and rescue services become trusted and reliable partners on safeguarding to Local 

 Authorities, statutory agencies, and universal services. 
3. Increased numbers of at-risk community members, employees and volunteers living and 

 working safely because safeguarding risks are identified and responded to sooner. 
4. Standardised approach to Safeguarding will help to maximise the efficiency of cross 

 border, collaborative, and shared learning opportunities. 
 

The number of safeguarding adult referrals submitted by TWFRS in Gateshead has risen from 51 
in 2020-21 to 65 in 2021-22, a 27% increase. This increase comes after presentations to the 
Senior Leadership Team, Station Managers and Watch Managers on the importance of submitting 
safeguarding referrals, even when other services/agencies are in attendance. 

 

• Joint Strategic Exploitation Group refresh 
 The Joint Strategic Exploitation Group is a sub-group of both the Gateshead Safeguarding 

Children’s Partnership (GSCP) and SAB. The remit of the group is to lead on the development of 
strategic work in relation to all aspects of exploitation, including but not limited to: 

• Sexual Exploitation 

• Criminal Exploitation 

• Modern Slavery and Trafficking 

• Female Genital Mutilation 

• Missing 
 

There are 39 partners represented on our Strategic Exploitation Group from a range of different 
organisations.  Agenda items are often interesting and varied, examples of which include: 

• Regular updates from the Violence Reduction Unit 

• Online Exploitation 

• Regional Count Lines Coordinator update 

• Overview of impact of Foetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder 

• Missing Adults ovierview 

Page 67



 
 

20 

 

Operation Vienna is an excellent example of collaborative preventative work to reduce 
exploitation.  This successful ongoing operation is a partnership between Northumbria Police and 
Gateshead Council. 3 PC’s work in the Civic Centre fully embedded and focus on dealing with 
unscrupulous landlords in the Bensham / Saltwell area who exploit vulnerable victims. In 
partnership with the local authority police have visited all of the landlords in the Selective Landlord 
Licensing area where the landlords have to sign up to a set of rules ensuring an acceptable code 
of practice highlighting their role and responsibilities aware that they may be subject to legal action 
if they fail to comply with the recorded conditions. As a result of this embedded work several 
landlords have been fined and moved out of the area, drugs supply operations have been 
disrupted and several vulnerable adults who were cuckooed have been safeguarded. The 
Operation is modelled on a national initiative called Clear Hold Build; Following the success of 
Operation Vienna this approach is to be adopted in other parts of the force.      
 

• Tricky Friends Animation 
In November 2021 the SAB launched their 'Tricky Friends' animation which is aimed at helping 
people to understand what good friendships are, when they might be harmful, and what they can 
do.  The video was initially developed by Norfolk Safeguarding Adults Board, with the aim of 
supporting people with learning disabilities and autism, those with cognitive difficulties and wider 
audiences to make and maintain positive friendships.  We want to reduce the risk of harm and 
exploitation in groups who may be less able to recognise the intentions of others.  We hope that 
this animation is used as a way to help people to think about the issues, to start conversations, 
and keep people safe while enjoying friendships.  The animation is only 3 minutes long, and can 
be used with or by anyone – carers, family, organisations, groups. 
 

• Northumbria Police Protecting Vulnerable People 
Protecting Vulnerable People is a force priority. To support this a Force Vulnerability Strategy was 
launched this year with four key pillars: Working Together, Our People, Leadership and Early 
Intervention and Prevention. Northumbria Police acknowledges that Protecting Vulnerable People 
can only be accomplished through collaborative multi-agency Safeguarding and Community 
Safety Partnerships and by working together with agencies we can truly understand and respond 
to the changing nature of vulnerability demand. Key to this response is adopting an Early 
Intervention and Preventative Approach which will have greater longer-term benefits in preventing 
harm and exploitation. Harm Reduction Teams are now embedded across the force and will play a 
key role in tackling emerging issues identified with vulnerability, working with partners to adopt a 
problem-solving approach. 

 
Force wide “Vulnerability Matters” training is being rolled in the first quarter of 2022. This training 
will support our officers to take a trauma informed approach to dealing with vulnerability and assist 
officers to identify vulnerable adults in the community. In support of the Vulnerability Matters 
training an 18- month long force campaign, commencing in May 2022 will focus on Vulnerability 
and ensure that Protecting the Vulnerable is front and centre of our force response. In addition, we 
are providing bespoke training sessions to our force control room call takers to ensure they are 
able to recognise and respond to vulnerability at the first point of contact. All of our leadership 
courses for newly promoted Sergeants and Inspectors also includes an input on the strands of 
Vulnerability which includes Vulnerable Adults.  
 
 
 

Page 68

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Yl4Gs4j-ZBQ


 
 

21 

 

• Missing Adults 
The Gateshead Safeguarding Adults Business Manager continued to work alongside Northumbria 
Police to lead on the regional approach to Missing Adults. The regional Missing Adults Across 
Northumbria protocol was updated to ensure that it reflected the National Missing Adults 
framework.   
 
Missing Adult Case Study 
The partnership approach to missing has resulted in improved outcomes for our missing adults in 
Gateshead.  For example, one vulnerable female presented daily Missing adult episodes. MDT 
meetings took place involving Northumbria Police, housing and mental health services regarding 
the appropriateness of her accommodation. As a result, she was placed in an alternative semi-
supported living provision with 24hr support. As a result, the frequency of her missing episodes 
drastically reduced, with a bespoke plan in place to cater for her individual needs.  

 

• Embedding Primary Care Mental Health practitioners into primary care networks 
In recent months we have seen the introduction and embedding of Primary Care mental health 
practitioners into Primary care networks across Newcastle and Gateshead. The mental health 
practitioners play a pivotal role in providing sooner access to a mental health professional for the 
local population and are committed to offering a positive service user experience and 
engagement. They can provide a person centred and holistic approach offering triage, brief 
intervention, and signposting to meet the needs of the service user. Mental health practitioners 
work closely with other professionals both in primary care and with Cumbria, Northumberland, 
Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust (CNTW). Service users who engage with the mental health 
practitioner will be able to discuss their mental health difficulties and any other issues which may 
be impacting on their wellbeing. They will be working closely with social prescribers, link workers, 
GPs and voluntary care providers to ensure that access to the most appropriate support is 
available, including early identification and response to safeguarding concerns.  A systems 
approach is used to ensure that all holistic needs are met and to promote collaborative working to 
meet the needs of each individual and their circumstances.  
 
➢ Community Engagement and Communication 

 

• Safeguarding Adults Week  
Gateshead SAB Safeguarding Adults Awareness Week was held in November 2021 to coincide 
with the national safeguarding adult awareness events co-ordinated by the Ann Craft Trust.  
Although the Covid-19 pandemic reduced opportunities for face to face activities outside of 
‘bubbles’, Gateshead organisations were still keen to be involved in Safeguarding Adults Week 
and use the opportunity to raise awareness about different aspects of Safeguarding Adults. 
Highlights of the week included:  

• Gateshead Millennium Bridge lit purple for the entire week to provide a visual symbol for 
safeguarding adults 

• Half day workshop on safeguarding vulnerable dependent drinkers facilitated by Alcohol 
Change UK 

• Annual Forum for Safeguarding Adult Champions 

• Launch of the Gateshead ‘Tricky Friends’ Video 

• CCG Quality Forum for Care Home Managers with a focus on Safeguarding Adults 

• Gateshead Council social care managers coming together to discuss the transitions 
agenda, with a commitment to develop a transitional safeguarding procedure 

Page 69

https://proceduresonline.com/trixcms2/media/12485/joint-missing-adults-protocol-feb-2022-amended.pdf
https://proceduresonline.com/trixcms2/media/12485/joint-missing-adults-protocol-feb-2022-amended.pdf
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Yl4Gs4j-ZBQ


 
 

22 

 

• Missing Adults Webinar led by Northumbria Police 

• TWFRS shared a positive case study focussed on the theme ‘What is my Role in 
Safeguarding’ 

• Oasis Community Housing shared a news article about Safeguarding Adults Week: the 
right to live a life free from harm 

• Adult Social Care in-house providers undertaking a range of activities including bingo, 
quizzes and selling cakes for a homelessness charity 

• STSFT Safeguarding Team focused upon a different safeguarding theme each day. Day 
1 encouraged the creation of cultures where people could be listened to and speak out, 
advocating Making Safeguarding Personal  

• Extensive twitter coverage via @GatesheadSafe and partner twitter accounts.  From 1st 
November – 24th November @GatesheadSafe had: 

o 43 Tweets 
o 14 new followers (total number is now 670) 
o 730 profile visits 
o 9,404 tweet impressions 

 

• Gateshead Health Foundation Trust had 
information stands in the trust talk to staff 
as part of safeguarding awareness week 
and have created resources files which 
have gone out to every ward and 
department in the organisation.  

 
 

 

 

 

• Communication  
Gateshead SAB has continued to maximise opportunities to ensure that our resources are 
accessible to our partners and workforce.  Our Safeguarding in Gateshead website 
www.gatesheadsafeguarding.org.uk is kept up to date.  Our online multi-agency policy and 
procedures has a useful local practice resources and local guidance section which includes a 
wealth of information such as our 7-minute briefings and an online video and learning library.  We 
have an active Twitter account @GatesheadSafe which has over 700 followers and is a useful 
platform to share our resources and new initiatives.  Our Safeguarding Adult Champions scheme 
continues to be a useful mechanism for sharing information and raising awareness about 
safeguarding adults in Gateshead.  We have 142 Safeguarding adult Champions who are 
responsible for raising awareness about safeguarding adults within their own organisation, 
ensuring that all staff and volunteers are familiar with the Gateshead multi-agency policy and 
procedures, disseminating updates and being a single point of contact for safeguarding adults. 
 
Our partners play a pivotal role in ensuring that safeguarding adults leaning and information is 
shared.  For example, STSFT produce a bi-monthly safeguarding newsletter which is shared with 
all STSFT employees via both the team brief and through the safeguarding champion’s forum. 
This newsletter highlights learning from SARs/DHRs & CSPRs and incorporates any regional / 
local updates inclusive of 7-Minute Briefings. The newsletter is held on the Trust intranet site. 
 

Page 70

http://www.gatesheadsafeguarding.org.uk/
https://www.proceduresonline.com/gateshead/adultsg/index.html
https://www.proceduresonline.com/gateshead/adultsg/index.html
https://www.gatesheadsafeguarding.org.uk/article/13412/Safeguarding-Adults-Champions-Scheme


 
 

23 

 

➢ Improved Operational Practice 
 

• Gateshead SAB Multi-Agency Policy and Procedures 
The Gateshead SAB Multi-Agency Policy and Procedures were launched in July 2021 along with a 
sustained programme of briefing sessions to raise awareness.  This included 
✓ Multi-Agency briefing sessions 
✓ Workshop for Safeguarding Staff within the QE Hospital 
✓ GP Time In, Time Out webinar 
✓ Interactive forum for commissioned providers 
✓ Targeted briefings for adult social care front line practitioners 

 
The multi-agency policy and procedures were updated in October 2021 to include appropriate 
pathways following the death of an adult either prior to a Safeguarding Adults Concern being 
raised or during a Section 42 Enquiry. 
 
Alongside the new multi-agency policy and procedures, new practice guidance and briefings have 
been introduced throughout the year.  This includes 7 minute briefings on transitional safeguarding 
and professional curiosity.  
 

• Multi-Agency Exploitation Hub 
Northumbria Police led on the review of the regional multi-agency Exploitation Hub which supports 
the six Local Authorities and Health colleagues to continue to work together to provide a multi-
agency response to those at risk of sexual and criminal exploitation and all aspects of Modern 
Slavery.  A re-launch of the Hub place in Autumn 2021, cognisant of the diverse needs and 
vulnerabilities of exploited victims. A consistent chair from Northumbria Police chairs the SAB Joint 
Strategic Exploitation Group and has a focus on all age exploitation, learning from practice and 
improving collaboration across partnerships. 
 

• Information Sharing 
 Local, regional and national case reviews and audits consistently 

highlight the need to clarify when and how information can and 
should be shared; missed opportunities to record, understand 
the significance of and share information in a timely manner can 
have serious consequences for the safety and welfare of 
children and adults at risk. It is essential that collaborative 
working and good information sharing is established throughout 
agencies, at all levels, which is then embedded through effective 
safeguarding practice.  

 
 The new Information Sharing Protocol (ISP) and flowchart has 

been developed to address information sharing both at strategic 
level and operational level within the arenas of Safeguarding 
Children and Adult Safeguarding. It is intended that agencies 
with the potential to be involved in safeguarding investigations 
will sign up to the use of this protocol. This protocol is agreed 
with the purpose of ensuring compliance with the Data 
Protection Act 2018 and the UK General Data Protection 
Regulations (UK GDPR) and the Human Rights Act 1998. 

Page 71

https://proceduresonline.com/trixcms2/media/13755/7min-transitional-safeguarding.pdf
https://proceduresonline.com/trixcms2/media/12484/7min-professional-curiosity.pdf
https://proceduresonline.com/trixcms2/media/13014/ispv50222-approved.pdf
https://proceduresonline.com/trixcms2/media/13015/is-flowchart-and-7-rules.pdf


 
 

24 

 

• Self-Neglect 
 Covid-19 and the associated restrictions have been seen to have an impact upon the increasing 

number and complexity of safeguarding concerns involving self-neglect, that are being reported in 
the North East. Reduced face-to-face contact with people (and access to their homes) as well as 
an increased reluctance for people to access support and services are thought to be contributory 
factors to this. Research and local experience highlight that many aspects of self-neglect work are 
particularly challenging for front-line workers as a result of: divergent agency thresholds for 
triggering concern and involvement; competing value perspectives; care management workflow 
arrangements; and unclear legal frameworks. A regional self-neglect task and finish group was 
therefore established to lead on a communication awareness campaign across the region.   

 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Operationally within Gateshead there has been some excellent examples of how our partners     
have come together to support residents who are self-neglecting. Our Gateshead Council Housing 
team have provided the following case study: 
  
Case Study – Helen 
 
Helen didn’t know she had a hoarding disorder until Gateshead Council’s housing team carried out 
a home visit and expressed concerns about the amount of household items accumulating in the 
property and that she may injure herself or be unable to seek help quickly in the event of a fire.  
Whilst Helen agreed to dispose of some of the hoarded items, she was thankful for the support 
she received from the housing officers.   
 
Over a three-year period, Helen worked hand in hand with her Housing Officer in making her 
home clean and safe, and sought professional support fo help her manage underlying issues that 
were contributing toward her hoarding.  

 

 

Homelessness  

 

Alcohol and 

Substance Misuse 

 
 

Trauma 

 

 

Hoarding 

 

 

Self-Care 

 

 

Engagement 

 
Self Neglect 

Overview 

A series of seven 7-minute briefings 
has been produced primarily aimed 
at professionals that outlines all 
aspects of self-neglect. Each theme 
has its own A4 sized “flyer style” 
format that can be printed out or 
attached and circulated via e-mail. 
The intention is that these briefings 
will form part of toolkit to support 
and enhance local self-neglect 
guidance. 

Page 72

https://proceduresonline.com/trixcms2/media/14159/7-sn-reg7mb-homelessness-04042022.pdf
https://proceduresonline.com/trixcms2/media/14157/7-sn-reg7mb-alcohol-and-substance-misuse-04042022.pdf
https://proceduresonline.com/trixcms2/media/14157/7-sn-reg7mb-alcohol-and-substance-misuse-04042022.pdf
https://proceduresonline.com/trixcms2/media/14161/7-sn-reg7mb-trauma-04042022.pdf
https://proceduresonline.com/trixcms2/media/14158/7-sn-reg7mb-hoarding-04042022.pdf
https://proceduresonline.com/trixcms2/media/14160/7-sn-reg7mb-self-care-04042022.pdf
https://proceduresonline.com/trixcms2/media/14156/7-sn-reg7mb-engagement-04042022.pdf
https://proceduresonline.com/trixcms2/media/14155/7-sn-reg7mb-selfneglectoverview-04042022.pdf
https://proceduresonline.com/trixcms2/media/14155/7-sn-reg7mb-selfneglectoverview-04042022.pdf


 
 

25 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

• Organisational Abuse 
The North East Safeguarding Adults network have highlighted to the national safeguarding 
network the need for national guidance on organisational abuse. This follows inconsistent 
approaches to how partners work together to manage and respond to cases of organisational 
abuse. A regional task and finish group has been established to undertake some regional 
benchmarking on organisational abuse and Gateshead are participants of this group.  In 
Gateshead we are piloting a new procedure for how we respond to organisational abuse.   To 
support this process, Gateshead Council have invested in a new safeguarding co-ordinator and 
safeguarding support assistant to respond to organisational abuse cases. 
 

•   Revised Approach to Safeguarding Adult Reviews 
The SARCC group have refined the approach to managing SAR referrals. All appropriate SAR 
referrals will result in a Rapid Review within the SARCC.  On receipt of an appropriate SAR 
referral, the SAB Business Manager now circulates a Rapid Review Initial Scoping and Information 
Sharing form to all SARCC members, with the expectation that it will be completed within 5 
working days.  All completed forms are circulated in advance of the SARCC meeting, enabling 
partners to digest information prior to the meeting.  It was recognised by SARCC  members that a 
significant number of our rapid reviews resulted in actions for the CQC and it was suggested that 
the CQC be invited to future rapid reviews within the SARCC that involve registered providers. 
This request was made to the lead CQC Inspector for Gateshead and it was subsequently agreed 
that the CQC now attend.  
 
Learning from Safeguarding Adult Reviews in Gateshead has been improved.  On a quarterly 
basis the Safeguarding Adults Business Manager prepares a summary of local, regional and 
national safeguarding adult reviews and shares with the QLP and the SAB.  Within the Local 
Authority, the  Adults Principal Social Worker and workforce development  have come together to 
arrange two interactive practice shorts on a quarterly basis for adult social care staff to share the 
learning from these quarterly briefings.  These engaging sessions encourage our front line 
practitioners to think about how they would approach  these complex safeguarding scenario’s, and 
to share what support and resources are available within Gateshead.  
 
 
 

‘I knew I had to clear the clutter 
that was slowly filling my house, 
but I couldn’t do it alone. The 
team at Gateshead Council 
were so helpful and gave me 
the courage and motivation I 
needed to make a change’.   
 

Page 73

https://view.officeapps.live.com/op/view.aspx?src=https%3A%2F%2Fproceduresonline.com%2Ftrixcms2%2Fmedia%2F9838%2Finitial-scoping-and-information-sharing.docx&wdOrigin=BROWSELINK
https://view.officeapps.live.com/op/view.aspx?src=https%3A%2F%2Fproceduresonline.com%2Ftrixcms2%2Fmedia%2F9838%2Finitial-scoping-and-information-sharing.docx&wdOrigin=BROWSELINK


 
 

26 

 

• Launch of Primary Care Local Enhanced Service Agreement 
A key achievement of Newcastle Gateshead CCG during 2021 was the implementation of a Local 
Enhanced Service Agreement (LES) with Primary Care which has been developed to ensure that 
GP Practices are appropriately reimbursed for the cost associated with support to multi agency 
working and safeguarding.  This represents a step change in development of engagement and 
information sharing to support safeguarding practice with NGCCG being an early adopter of this 
approach within the region. 
 

• Support for Residential and Nursing Care Homes 
Gateshead Health Foundation Trust have provided support to the Care Homes during the 
pandemic from both an Infection Prevention Control (IPC) and tissue viability perspective. There 
have been increasing concerns regarding pressure damage in Care Homes and the initiative 
regarding this is to be reinvigorated with a Pressure Damage Collaborative task and finish group. 
 

• Launch of Gateshead Council ASSET team (Adult Services Support and Engagement Team) 
Gateshead Council launched the new ASSET (Adult Services Support and Engagement Team) in 
October 2021.  The ASSET team work together with key partners to provide an early signal driven 
intervention for residents who are experiencing or predicted to experience chaotic lifestyles, 
multiple exclusions and negative social outcomes for themselves and their families.  ASSET 
adopts an enabling collaborative approach in which the person identified as needing support, and 
those providing the support, work together to determine outcomes that draws on strengths and 
aspirations.  This is relationship-based, solution focussed and co-ordinated with other parallel 
processes they may be involved in. The approach aims to assist in identifying those at risk of 
entering Care Act arrangements at an earlier stage and deciding on the most appropriate course 
of action which may include support to engage with services, both statutory and non-statutory, 
provision of information and advice and signposting. The key objectives of ASSET are: 

 
 
 
➢ Implementing Mental Capacity Act (MCA) / Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) 

 

• Maintain compliance with Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards 
Gateshead Council, as DoLS Supervisory Body, continues to remain legally compliant and there 

are no local backlogs.  

Page 74



 
 

27 

 

Gateshead Council remains committed to investment in the DoLS staff team responsible for the 

processing and managing of all DoLS applications, ensuring there is the ability to meet most of our 

demands “in-house”, thereby improving efficiency.  

 

• Preparation for implementation of Liberty Protection Safeguards 

The landscape with respect to the proposals for the introduction of the Liberty Protection 
Safeguards via the Mental Capacity (Amendment) Act 2019 during 2021/22 remained fluid and 
was closely monitored by partners within Gateshead. During 2021 the CCG Safeguarding team 
have led the development of a multi-agency Liberty Protection Safeguards (LPS) Implementation 
Group which has been with the support of key statutory partners taken forward development work 
in preparation for the implementation of LPS. 
 

All SAB partners are rigorously preparing, for example STSFT have devised a Business case to 

ensure the Trust has the right skill set to robustly implement LPS. 

• Connected Voice Advocacy - Outstanding Service winner 

Connected Voice Advocacy has held the contract for statutory 

advocacy with Gateshead Council for over five years.  In 

recognition of their contribution towards safeguarding during the 

past year, they were nominated for Outstanding Service in the 

National Advocacy awards and they subsequently were 

announced to be the winners.  The judges were impressed with 

how Connected Voice Advocacy has promoted safeguarding 

throughout its service, particularly demonstrating the impact they 

are having.  Throughout the pandemic safeguarding became a 

priority and welfare calls were made to people drawing on 

advocacy. The service were pro-active, ensuring that care homes 

and hospitals were not making blanket decisions and maintaining 

a person-centred approach. The service have delivered online 

training events on the role of advocacy and safeguarding, 

undertaken social media campaigns on safeguarding and 

improved their safeguarding policy with  flow chart for practitioners.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 75



 
 

28 

 

Our Performance 2020/21 
 

Safeguarding Adults Headline Performance 
 
A summary of the headline performance information is provided below.   
 

• Volume of Concerns and Enquiries 

For a Concern to progress to a Section 42 Enquiry it must meet the statutory criteria.  The 
Safeguarding duties apply to an adult who: 

• Has needs for care and support (whether or not the local authority is meeting any of those 

needs) 

• Is experiencing, or at risk of, abuse or neglect 

• As a result of those care and support need is unable to protect themselves from either the 

risk of, or the experience of abuse or neglect 

In 2021/22 there were 1720 Safeguarding Adult Concerns which led to 476 Section 42 
Safeguarding Enquiries.  This demonstrates a steady increase in the volume of safeguarding adult 
concerns since 2017, despite the Covid-19 pandemic.  
 
During this reporting period the country began to come out of the previous covid lockdown with 
Covid rules being eased in April 21, restrictions being moved to the third stage in England in May 
21 and finally in November 21 the Omicron variant was detected resulting in the moves to Plan B 
in Dec 21. From a peak in April 21 there was consistent reduction in the number of concerns 
coming into the LA until mid-August when they began to slowly rise again up to a peak in 
December before dropping off significantly for the remaining 3 months of the year. This pattern 
has resulted in the highest number of concerns coming into the LA in the last 5 years, however 
this has not directly translated into a similar rise in the number of S42 enquires that needed to be 
dealt with as the number of these has remained relatively similar to the previous year. 
 

 

Page 76



 
 

29 

 

In percentage terms, 27.7% of Concerns led to a Section 42 Enquiry. The number of concerns 
progressing to an enquiry is lower than the 2020-21 NE (42.5%) and England (30.6%) averages. 
 

• Categories of Abuse 

Utilising a count of completed Section 42 Enquiries, and allowing for multiple recording of abuse, 

the most common category of abuse in Gateshead continues to be Neglect and Acts of Omission 
which represented 42.2%. This was followed by Physical Abuse (21.3%) and Psychological 
(15.7%).   
 
Neglect and Acts of Omission in Gateshead continues to be an outlier compared to North East and 
England averages, however this has reduced from the levels of previous years where over 50% of 
cases were recorded in this category. 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 77



 
 

30 

 

•  Age 

In Gateshead, 76.7% of Concerns were raised for adults aged 65 and over.  
 

 
  

 

Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) 

For the period April 2021 to March 2022 Gateshead Council received 2351 Deprivation of Liberty 

Safeguard applications.  This was a slight increase in activity from the previous financial year 

(2275) and compared to activity from previous years represents a steady increase on the 

demands placed on local authorities in meeting statutory obligations. 

The highest rate for DoLS applications remains with those over the age of 65. Within Gateshead 

this represents 2062 applications (87.7% of all applications) for those aged over 65 and 289 

(12.3%) for those under 65. 

There were 457 applications which have not been authorised, due to various standard reasons.  

The primary reason for non-authorisation of a DoLS was down to a ‘Change in Circumstances’, 

which took place in 346 cases. 

Our demographics remain in accordance with previous data with predicted higher percentages of 

those 85+ being more likely to be subject to DoLS authorisations, (38.8%) and those more likely to 

be female (58.8%).   

 

 
 
 

Page 78



 
 

31 

 

Learning from Safeguarding Adults Reviews (SARs) 
 
• Gateshead SARs 
 
The SARCC Group is responsible, on behalf of the Gateshead SAB, for statutory SARs introduced 
by the Care Act 2014.  All reviews and enquiries are reported back to the SAR Group for scrutiny 
and challenge.  Learning from reviews is fed into the Quality, Learning and Practice Group when 
there are specific actions or learning that needs to be taken forward.  
 
During 2021/22 the SARCC received 9 Safeguarding Adult Referrals.  Of those: 
 

• 3 progressed to a SAR  
 
Adult C - Adult C was in contact with numerous services following his release from prison in 
January 2020.  His mental health appeared to be deteriorating for some time.  Throughout  his 
involvement with agencies, he displayed an ongoing florid ideation of being persecuted, that 
agencies were conspiring to harm him and ultimately were responsible  for number of 
unfortunate events in his life. Adult C continued to present multiple times to agencies, in 
particular police and ambulance services until his detention under the Mental Health Act in 
November 2020 on an acute mental health ward.  Following discharge his continued belief of 
persecution resulted in  him sleeping rough, even though he had a tenancy with The 
Gateshead Housing Company, he was placed back into remand.  Following his return into the 
community and  into his tenancy Adult C was found deceased, aged 41, with evidence of drug 
taking next to his body. 

 
Adult D - Adult D was a resident in a Gateshead Care Home.   She had been discharged from 
hospital in November 2021 after being diagnosed with volvulus (an obstruction caused by 
twisting of the stomach or intestine).  She was re-admitted into hospital in February 2022 and 
subsequently died. There were claims that she had not had bowel movements for one month. 
Areas of focus of the SAR will include: 
o What was included within the discharge planning following hospital stay for volvulus in 

November 2022 
o Management of bowel movements 
o What was the multi-disciplinary approach to alcohol consumption and non-compliance with 

medication / self-care 
o Application of the Mental Capacity Act, specifically with respect recording of supported 

decision making and understanding risk 
o Perceptions / attitudes towards Adult D who was known to consume large quantities of 

alcohol and self-neglect 
 

Adult E - Adult E was a resident in Gateshead Care Home.  In February 2022 the Care Home 
manager contacted the police to report that another resident had grabbed Adult E by the hair 
and dragged her to the floor causing a head injury. Adult E was taken to hospital, but was 
returned to the Care Home later that day without treatment.  Two days later Adult E was 
assessed by nurse on duty as unresponsive. She was admitted to hospital and was 
subsequently discovered to have intracerebral hemorrhage.  Neurosurgery felt that this was not 
typical of trauma and was most likely to be an underlying amyloid angiopathy.   The impact of 

Page 79



 
 

32 

 

the altercation however cannot be ruled out.  Adult E was subsequently discharged on an end-
of-life pathway and she sadly passed away. Areas of focus of the SAR will include: 

o The discharge of the alleged perpetrator to the Care Home and the management of 
risks associated with her challenging behaviour, particularly after the altercation with 
another resident  

o What risk plans were in place for Adult E. Was her challenging behaviour assessed 
with respect to risk to others rather than risk to herself? 

o Need to investigate whether hospital treatment and discharge for Adult E were 
appropriate.   

o Care and support of Adult E within the Care Home between discharge and re-
admission in February 2022 

 
It is anticipated that these SARs will be completed during 2022/23. 
 

• 2 resulted in other reviews 
 
One SAR referral was referred to a LeDeR review (Learning from lives and deaths – people 
with a learning disability and autistic people).  The findings from the review have not yet been 
completed.  
 
One SAR referral resulted in a records review completed by the Quality Lead at Newcastle 
Gateshead CCG.  The findings were shared with the commissioning team and the CQC. 

 
Due to the impact of Covid-19 there were no SARs completed during 2021/22.  There has 
however been significant work undertaken on our open SARs and reviews. The Mrs VC 
Appreciative Inquiry has been completed and will be presented to the SAB in June 2022. The 
Adult B SAR will be presented to the SAB in September 2022.  The findings of these reviews will 
feature in the 2022/23 SAB Annual Report. 

 
 

• Learning from Regional and National Safeguarding Adult Reviews (SARs) 
The Quality, Learning and Practice Sub-Group review regional and national SARs and relevant 
Domestic Homicide Reviews. Case details are summarised and the group consider key findings 
relevant for Safeguarding Adults in Gateshead. The information is then shared with the SAB.  
During 2021/22 the following SARs were considered in detail: 
 

• Joanna, Jon and Ben – Norfolk 

• Alan - Sunderland 

• Anne - Sandwell 

• Burnt Bridges - Calderdale 

• Katharine - Dorset 
 
Partner agencies are encouraged to share the findings within their own organisations.  For 
example, following every SAB meeting Gateshead Council deliver two interactive webinars for 
Adult Social Care staff to share the learning from the SARs and to identify how this may impact 
upon practice.   The Northumbria Police Strategy, Innovation and Partnerships team learning and 
improvement function ensures that internal and external learning from reviews is cascaded across 
the force and embedded in policy and practice.  

Page 80

https://www.norfolksafeguardingadultsboard.info/publications-info-resources/safeguarding-adults-reviews/joanna-jon-and-ben-published-september-2021/
http://www.sunderlandsab.org.uk/?page_id=163
https://www.sandwellsab.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/Anne-overview-report.pdf
https://safeguarding.calderdale.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/burnt-bridges.pdf
https://www.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/documents/35024/281402/Dorset+SAR+Systems+Findings+Report++Katherine+October+14.pdf/df37056a-51cd-68c2-5133-491180d96d51


 
 

 

 

 

Gateshead Safeguarding Adults Board 

Strategic Plan 2019 - 2024  

2022 Refresh  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 81



 
 

1 
 

CONTENT 

         Page 
 

1. Introduction       2 
 

2. Policy Context       3   
 

3. Gateshead Safeguarding Adults Board   4 

• Our Vision       4 

• Governance Arrangements    4 
 

4. Developing the Plan      6 
 

5. Strategic Priorities and Key Actions   7 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 82



 
 

2 
 

Introduction 

This is the second Strategic Plan for the statutory Gateshead Safeguarding 
Adults Board (SAB) post implementation of the Care Act (2014) on April 1st 
2015.  This plan has been reviewed and updated in June 2022.  This is with the 
recognition that the Covid-19 pandemic has resulted in unprecedented 
challenges placed upon our services, and is expected to have a long-lasting 
detrimental impact upon our communities from a socio-economic and health 
perspective.  

The Gateshead SAB remains committed to making Safeguarding in Gateshead 
person-led and outcome focussed whilst ensuring that there is an 
underpinning ethos of prevention.  The Board have worked hard to ensure that 
they are Care Act compliant and have demonstrated via internal and 
independent scrutiny that we deliver quality services.    

The Gateshead SAB continues to provide strategic leadership for our approach 

to responding to statutory duties detailed within the Mental Capacity Act. As 

such we are preparing for changes to legislation introduced via the Mental 

Capacity (Amendment) Act 2019 which includes the abolition of the 

Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) and the subsequent introduction of 

Liberty Protection Safeguards.  

The challenges faced by the Board are evolving. Since the commencement of 
our last Strategic Plan in 2016 we have seen challenges in relation to the 
stability of the care market, a growth in mechanisms for responding to 
complex cases and extensive learning from national, regional and local 
Safeguarding Adult Reviews.  This is combined with uncertainties caused by 
continued austerity and Brexit.  

As part of the consultation process for this Strategic Plan an anonymous 
responder said: 

 

‘In this very challenging economic climate keep up the good 

work as a lot of what you do goes unnoticed, but it is vital to 

the individuals that are being safeguarded’ 

Page 83



 
 

3 
 

The national and local policy landscape is constantly changing, and we will 

review the Strategic Plan on an annual basis to ensure that the Strategic 

priorities remain right for Gateshead.  We have a strong commitment from its 

members to implement the Strategic Priorities identified within this plan.  This 

five-year Strategic Plan is supported by annual Business Plans to enable the 

Board to prioritise and focus activity.  

 

Policy Context 

The Care Act 2014 has enshrined in law the principles of Safeguarding Adults, 

which will ensure that the most vulnerable members of society are afforded 

appropriate support and protection, and help them to live as independently as 

possible, for as long as possible.  Chapter 14 of the Care and Support Statutory 

Guidance issued under the Care Act replaces the No Secrets document as the 

statutory basis for all safeguarding activity. The Care Act sets out the 

Safeguarding Adult responsibilities for Local Authorities and their partners and 

places a duty upon Local Authorities to establish SABs. 

A corner stone of the Care Act is the general responsibility placed on all local 
authorities to promote wellbeing. The Care Act emphasises the assumption 
that individuals are best placed to judge their own wellbeing, and that 
protection from abuse and neglect is fundamental.  
 
The Care Act identifies six key principles which underpin all adult safeguarding 
work, and which apply equally to all sectors and settings: 

• Empowerment – people being supported and encouraged to make their 
own decisions and give informed consent 

• Prevention – it is better to take action before harm occurs 

• Proportionality – the least intrusive response appropriate to the risk 
presented 

• Protection – support and representation to those in greatest need 

• Partnership – local solutions through services working with their 
communities 

• Accountability – accountability and transparency in safeguarding 
practice 
 

Page 84



 
 

4 
 

Schedule 2 of the Care Act (2014) stipulates that SABs must publish a Strategic 

Plan each financial year, identifying how the Boards and their members will 

protect adults in their respective areas from abuse and neglect. 

 

Gateshead Safeguarding Adults Board  

Our Vision 
Our vision for Adult Safeguarding in Gateshead is: 
 
‘Everybody in Gateshead has the right to lead a fulfilling life and should be able 
to live safely, free from abuse and neglect – and to contribute to their own and  

other people’s health and wellbeing’ 
 
In Gateshead we believe that Safeguarding is everyone’s business.  This means 
- whoever you are, wherever you are and whatever position you hold – you 
have a responsibility to take action to help protect our local residents when 
you hear about allegations of abuse or neglect.  
 
We know you share our vision and it is practiced by all our partner 
organisations.  Safeguarding cannot be fully delivered by agencies acting in 
isolation – and can only be achieved by working together in partnership to help 
protect and support adults at risk of, or experiencing, abuse or neglect.  
 
Governance Arrangements 
The Gateshead SAB became a statutory body in April 2015, assuming the 

strategic lead and overseeing the work of Adult Safeguarding arrangements in 

Gateshead.  We have an Independent Chair to enhance scrutiny and challenge. 

The Board has a comprehensive Memorandum of Understanding, which 

provides the framework for identifying roles and responsibilities and 

demonstrating accountability.  We have developed strong links with the Local 

Safeguarding Children’s Board, Health and Wellbeing Board and the 

Community Safety Board. 

In law, the statutory members of a SAB are defined as the local authority, the 
local police force and the relevant clinical commissioning group. However, in 
Gateshead, we recognise the importance the contribution made by all of our 

Page 85



 
 

5 
 

partner agencies and this is reflected by the wider Board membership (correct 
as of June 2022): 
 

• Gateshead Council 

• Northumbria Police 

• Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) (on behalf of 
NHS England, North East Ambulance Service and incorporating GP lead 
for Adult Safeguarding) – This will change in July 2022 to the North East 
and North Cumbria Integrated Care System 

• Lay Members 

• Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust 

• South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust 

• Cumbria, Northumberland Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust 

• Gateshead College 

• Tyne and Wear Fire and Rescue Service 

• Probation Service 

• Oasis Community Housing 

• Connected Voice Advocacy 

• Healthwatch Gateshead 

• Department for Work and Pensions 
 

The SAB is supported by three Sub-Groups: 

• Quality, Learning and Practice Group (QLP) (Chaired by a senior 
manager from Gateshead Council) 
 
The Quality, Learning and Practice Group was established in March 2021 
following a restructure of the SAB Sub-Groups. The group is responsible 
for monitoring and reviewing performance data and driving forward 
quality via the quality assurance framework, case file audits and 
monitoring inspection recommendations. The QLP collate and review 
recommendations from statutory Safeguarding Adult Reviews and 
discretionary reviews and has oversight of multi-agency safeguarding 
training.  The QLP aims to ensure that the Multi-Agency Safeguarding 
Adults policy and procedures and supporting practice guidance continue 
to be fit for purpose.  The Group has responsibility for keeping up to 
date with national policy changes that may impact upon the work of the 

Page 86



 
 

6 
 

SAB.  The Group also has responsibility for the development and 
implementation of the Communication and Engagement strategy. 
 

• Safeguarding Adult Review and Complex Case Group (SARCC) (Chaired 
by a senior manager from Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning 
Group – From July 2022 this will change in July 2022 to the North East 
and North Cumbria Integrated Care System) 
 

 The Safeguarding Adults Review Group (SARCC) will consider 

 Safeguarding Adult Review (SAR) referrals, commission reviews and 

 subsequently monitor their progress.  The SARCC may also oversee 

 discretionary reviews into cases that do not meet the criteria for a 

 SAR, where the group feel there are multi- agency lessons to be 

 learned. It will collate and review recommendations from SARs and 

 other  reviews, ensuring that achievable action plans are developed 

 and that actions are delivered.  The SARCC also provides a forum to 

 discuss complex Safeguarding Adult cases that require additional 

 scrutiny and support. 

• Strategic Exploitation Group (Chaired by a senior officer from 
Northumbria Police) 
 
The Strategic Exploitation Group is a sub-group of both the SAB and the 

Local Safeguarding Children’s Board.  The group is responsible for 

overseeing all work with respect to all aspects of exploitation including  

modern slavery, criminal exploitation, sexual exploitation, trafficking, 

missing and female genital mutilation in Gateshead.  

 

Developing the Strategic Plan 

The Gateshead SAB Strategic Plan 2019-24 has been developed in consultation 

with a variety of stakeholders.  It is underpinned by performance information, 

learning from reviews and feedback from members of the general public and 

safeguarding adult service users.  Targeted consultation includes: 

Page 87



 
 

7 
 

• Board member consultation 
 

• Online survey which was circulated to all Sub Group members, key 
stakeholders, commissioned providers and members of NCVS who 
support voluntary organisations within Gateshead  
 

• Face to face consultation with: 
o Shared Lives carers 
o Young women in supported housing provision 
o Gateshead Council tenants 

 

Strategic Priorities and Key Actions 

The consultation process identified that the five SAB Strategic Priorities that 

had been in place since 2016 remained fit for purpose for 2019-24, those are: 

• Quality Assurance 

• Prevention 

• Communication and Engagement 

• Operational Practice 

• Mental Capacity  
 

1. Quality Assurance 

The SAB will continue to prioritise Quality Assurance in its widest sense.  This 

will enable the Board to demonstrate quality and effectiveness at both 

strategic and operational levels.   It aims to support a better understanding of 

how safe adults are locally and how well local services are carrying out their 

safeguarding responsibilities in accordance with the Care Act and the 

Gateshead Multi-Agency Policy and Procedures. In particular, the Board will 

ensure that quality is driven by learning. 

Key Actions 2019 - 24 include: 

• Develop training for front line practitioners that is guided by learning 

from reviews and inquiries 

Page 88



 
 

8 
 

• Develop and implement annual Quality Assurance challenge event  

• Enhance our multi-agency approach of sharing learning with front line 

practitioners 

• Revise the Safeguarding Adults Review Policy and Practice Guidance to 
include a strengthened approach to practical application of learning 
 

• Prepare our SAB for the new CQC regulatory model and assessment 
framework which is expected to commence in April 2023 
 
 

2. Prevention 

Prevention is one of the six Principles of Safeguarding.  Within Gateshead we 

have prioritised preventative work and have produced a range of practice 

guidance notes and bespoke training courses to support our front-line 

practitioners.  The Board would like to see Prevention at the forefront of all 

Policies, Procedures and Practice Guidance and woven into practice.    

Key Actions 2019 - 24 include: 

• Develop and implement a Multi-Agency Risk Management (MARM) 
framework as a mechanism for supporting vulnerable residents who do 
not meet the statutory criteria for Safeguarding Adults.  
 

• Support closer integration of public services across the wider Gateshead 
System, including the work of Public Sector Reform and the Gateshead 
Care Partnership.  Understand and respond to potential safeguarding 
implications of the Health and Social Care Integration White Paper  
 

• Become Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACE) / Adult Attachment / 
trauma informed  
 

• Revise the Self-Neglect Practice Guidance note and deliver updated 
multi-agency practitioner training 
 

• Revise the Financial Abuse Practice Guidance note, taking into account 
the issues arising from implementation of Universal Credit 

Page 89



 
 

9 
 

 

• Strengthen multi-agency arrangements for Modern Slavery in 
Gateshead; to include awareness raising, responding to pre-planned and 
unplanned incidents and quality assurance 
 

• Raise awareness about Gateshead pathways and provision for all aspects 
of exploitation, and work in partnership with the new regional Victim 
Hub 
 

• Build community resilience so that our residents are better equipped to 
keep themselves safe from harm  
 

• Develop a more flexible training programme, to include more e-learning 
and virtual learning opportunities  
 

• Develop and implement organisational abuse policy and procedure 
 

• Improve partnership working to safeguard people who experience 
homelessness 
 

• Understand the impact of Mental Health Act reform upon the wider 
safeguarding agenda. Support the Gateshead community mental health 
transformation programme. 

 

3. Communication and Engagement 

The Safeguarding Adults Board has made significant improvements in Making 

Safeguarding Personal to ensure that those adults involved within the 

safeguarding process have their wellbeing promoted and, where appropriate, 

that regard is given to their views, wishes, feelings and beliefs when deciding 

any action.  Consultation has demonstrated that there continues to be a lack of 

understanding about Safeguarding within the wider community, which can 

impact upon the effectiveness of Safeguarding Adults as a whole.  

Key Actions 2019 - 24 include: 

• Effectively communicate and champion our good practice 
 

Page 90



 
 

10 
 

• Enhance communication and engagement with partners and providers 
who are not routinely engaged with the Board and Sub-Groups 
 

• Promote Safeguarding Adult key messages within our communities 
 

• Widely promote our Safeguarding website and social media presence 
 

• Implement our Safeguarding Adult Champion Scheme and develop Safe 
Reporting Centres 
 

• Develop a safeguarding adult resource library which includes 
communication and engagement tools, including visual media aids  
 

• Develop mechanisms to ensure that the views of adults at risk and carers 
inform the work of the SAB 

 

4. Operational Practice 

Whilst this is a Strategic Plan, the SAB must ensure that operational practice is 

fit for purpose.  Whilst significant improvements have been introduced by the 

SAB and our key partners we know from our quality assurance processes and 

the sharing of best practice nationally and regionally that further 

improvements can always be made.  

Key Actions 2019 - 24 include: 

• Work with the Health and Wellbeing Board and Community Safety Board 
to improve how our partner organisations identify and respond to 
complex cases  
 

• Refresh the SAB Multi-Agency Policy and Procedures by enhancing 
accessibility and simplifying the procedures 
 

• Enhance our approach to managing risk, to include: 
o Understanding perpetrator motivations 
o Person centred approach v managing risk 
o Identifying and responding to coercive and controlling behaviour 

 

Page 91



 
 

11 
 

• Improve communication flow with referrers, providers and Adult at risk 
after a concern has been submitted 
 

• Strengthen multi-agency safeguarding transition arrangements, 
including procedures for responding to child to parent violence 

 

• Develop a shared approach to missing adults, including consideration of 
the use of ‘vulnerability markers’ 
 

• Further embed Making Safeguarding Personal throughout Safeguarding 
Adults practice 
 

• Work in partnership to manage levels of demand.  This will include the 
development of an Adult Concern decision making tool.  
 

• Develop a Gateshead Safeguarding Adults Board People in a Position of 
Trust (PIPOT) Policy 

 

5. Mental Capacity 

Understanding and applying the Mental Capacity Act is central to the 

Safeguarding Adults process.  It remains one of our most common areas for 

improvement in Gateshead, and beyond.  Legislative changes are again on the 

horizon with the proposed Mental Capacity (Amendment) Bill which will 

reform the Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) and replace them with 

Liberty Protection Safeguards.  The agenda will continue to evolve as new ways 

of working and case law is embedded into practice. Practitioners need tools 

and guidance to support them with the practical application of the Mental 

Capacity Act within everyday safeguarding, assessment and care provision. 

Key Actions 2019 - 24 include: 

• Understand, and effectively respond, to changes within the Mental 
Capacity Act (Amendment) Act 
 

• Develop a mechanism for assuring that the proposed Liberty Protection 
Safeguards are effectively implemented within Gateshead 

Page 92



 
 

12 
 

 

• Develop and implement a programme of awareness raising for front line 
practitioners, providers, partners and the wider public about the 
application of the Mental Capacity Act 
 

• Explore how a health diagnosis supports the practical application of the 
Mental Capacity act 
 

• Continue to ensure that referrals for advocacy are made in accordance 
with the Care Act 2014 
 

 

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



 

              
 
 
 
 
 
 
TITLE OF REPORT:  Annual Work Programme 
 
REPORT OF: Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive  

Mike Barker, Strategic Director, Corporate Services and 
Governance 

 
Summary 

 
The report sets out the provisional work programme for the Care, Health and Wellbeing 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the municipal year 2022/23. 
 
 
 
1. The Committee’s provisional work programme was endorsed at the meeting held on 14 

June 2022 and Councillors have agreed that further reports will be brought to future 
meetings to highlight current issues / identify any changes/additions to this programme.  

 
2. Appendix 1 sets out the work programme as it currently stands and highlights proposed 

changes to the programme in bold and italics for ease of identification.    
 
Recommendations  
 
3.  The Committee is asked to 
 

a) Note the provisional programme;  
 

b) Note that further reports on the work programme will be brought to the Committee 
to identify any additional policy issues, which the Committee may be asked to 
consider. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Contact: Angela Frisby Extension: 2138 
 
 
 

CARE, HEALTH & WELLBEING 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

6 December 2022

Page 95

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 

 

Draft Care, Health and Wellbeing OSC Work Programme 2022-23 
14 June 2022 
1.30pm 
 

• Performance Management and Improvement 
Framework- Year End Performance 2021-22  

• CQC Assurance Framework 
• Results of Covid 19 Survey 
• OSC Work Programme 

13 September 2022 
5.30pm 

Meeting Cancelled 

25 October 2022 
1.30pm 

• Workforce and Digital inclusion - Place - 
based approaches (including health and care 
recruitment) 

• CQC Assurance Framework - Update 
• Social Services Annual Report on 

Complaints and Representations – Adults (bf 
from Sept mtg) 

• ICS/Gateshead place focus(bf from Sept 
mtg)  

• Health and Wellbeing Board / Better Care 
Fund –Update 

• OSC Work Programme 
6 December 2022 
1.30pm 

• Performance Management and Improvement 
Framework – Six Month Update 

• Update on Primary Care Networks / Work to 
Attract and Retain a multi professional 
health workforce in Gateshead/ Access to 
GP appointments during transition out of 
Covid (focusing on how different practices 
manage demand that they cannot fulfil; same-
day appointments only; in person and phone 
appointments; access barriers to appointments 
via landline, mobiles and online booking and 
any particular groups experiencing difficulty 
securing appointments 

• Annual Report of Local Adult Safeguarding 
Board and Business Plans & emerging 
priorities (bf from Sept mtg) 

• OSC Work Programme 
31 January 2023 
1.30pm 

• Substance / Alcohol Misuse and Support 
available to residents – Update/ Asset case 
studies – links to Poverty and Inequality to 
include wider support – eg help with housing 
and jobs whilst/ once addiction being 
addressed)  

• Carers Support update 
• Healthwatch Gateshead -Update  
• Dental Services for Adults -Progress Update 
• OSC Work Programme 

7 March 2023 
1.30pm 

• Specific Health Conditions Commonly 
Affecting Minority Communities in 
Gateshead (eg sickle cell disease, Tay-Sachs 

Page 97



Appendix 1 

 

and haemophilia) (to focus on how well trained/ 
equipped local health services are to respond)  

• Work to tackle Health Inequalities in 
Gateshead – Update  

• Home Care Transformation/ Standards 
• OSC Work Programme 

18 April 2023 
1.30pm 

• Health and Wellbeing Board – Update  
• Community Mental Health Transformation – 

Update  
• OSC Work Programme 

 
Issues to slot in –  

• The new LPS (Liberty Protection Safeguards) Update 
• Updates on ASC White Paper 

 
 

Page 98


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of last meeting
	4 Performance Management and Improvement Framework - Six Month Update
	CHWB OSC Draft 6-month Performance Report 2022-23
	Appendix 1 - PMIF 6-month performance reports
	0. DRAFT
	PO 1 Every Child analysis
	1. Give Every Child the Best Start docx
	PO 2 Enable all analysis
	2. Enable all docx
	PO 3 Economic and jobs analysis
	3. Economic. docx
	PO 4 Standard of Living analysis
	4. Standard of living docx
	PO 5 Sustainable analysis
	5. Sust Comms docx
	PO 6 Ill Health Prevention analysis
	6. Ill health prevention
	Balanced Scorecard Analysis
	Draft Balanced Scorecard Oct22 (5)

	Appendix 2 - PMIF overview document
	Appendix 3 - Glossary of terms

	5 Annual Report of Local Safeguarding Board and Business Plans and emerging priorities
	Safeguarding Report OSC December 2022
	CARE, HEALTH & WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
	Background
	Annual Report 2021/22
	Recommendation
	Contact: Catherine Hardman

	2021 22 SAB Annual Report FINAL
	201924 Strategic Plan 2022 refresh

	6 OSC Work Programme
	REPORT OF:	Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive
	Summary
	Recommendations
	APPENDIX 1 CHW OSC Draft Work Prog2022-23v9 (003)


